
1 
 

 CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 
Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 

Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 
Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 

Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 
Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 

Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 
 

Charles Dane, Interim City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 

 

AGENDA  

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

 
e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 

www.hopewellva.gov 
rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: November 21, 2017 MUNICIPAL BUILDING REGULAR MEETING: 
Work Session – 5:30 p.m. 
Regular Business – 6:15 p.m. 
Public Hearings – 7:30 p.m. 
Closed Meeting - TBD 

OPEN MEETING 
 
5:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 
 
MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 
 
Roll Call 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

WORK SESSION 

5:30 p.m. WS-1 Urban Land Institute Final Report and Presentation 
 

6:15 p.m.             Regular Business 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1 Report to City Council 
 
 ISSUE:  This item will be reserved for updates to City Council from administration  
 
 This requires no action of Council. 
 
R-2 Transfer $32, 000 from Development Code capital account to allow the purchase of 

three vehicles for Building Official, Building Inspector and Planning Division 
 

ISSUE:   The Department of Development had six vehicles to accommodate ten staff 
members. Recently, two of those vehicles were taken to Public Works for repair, and 
were deemed unsalvageable. Development has funds in its capital account, and seeks to 
transfer some of those funds to purchase three vehicles. 

  

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


2 
 

 RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends that Council approve the  
transfer of up to $32,000 of Development’s capital account to be used to purchase 
three vehicles. 

 
 MOTION:            
 
              
  Roll Call 
 
R-3 2018 Draft Legislative Priorities 
 

ISSUE:   In anticipation of the 2018 General Assembly Session, Administration has 
prepared the City’s Annual Legislative Priorities for presentation to the City’s Legislative 
Delegation, including the draft resolution. 
 

 RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends that Council approve the draft 
resolution endorsing the 2018 General Assembly Legislative Priorities 

  
MOTION:            

 
              
  Roll Call 
 
R-4 Request for City Council to approve the following agreements between VDOT and  
 the City: 
 

A. VDOT Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) to consider inclusion and 
approval of five new projects submitted by staff for the FY19 and FY20 VDOT 
Revenue Sharing Program for street pavement resurfacing, driveway aprons, 
drainage improvements, pavement reconstruction, curb and gutter, and pavement 
reconstruction. 
 

B. VDOT Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) to consider inclusion and 
approval of one new project submitted for the FY19 and FY20 VDOT Transportation 
Alternatives Set Aside Program for expansion of non-motorized travel choices (bike 
lanes) and by improving the cultural, historical and environmental aspects of the 
transportation infrastructure. 

 
C. VDOT Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) to consider inclusion and 

approvals of projects submitted by staff for FY18 and FY19 Urban Maintenance 
Inventory and Lane Mileage Reimbursement Payments based on the VDOT 
Residency and VDOT District Office and Central Office recommendations (e.g., two 
new street sections in Cobblestone subdivision, one new street in Anchor Point 
subdivision, road widening on N. 6th Avenue, etc.) 

 
ISSUE:  VDOT has several grants and projects requiring City Council’s approval and  
requiring that the City, through its interim city manager, sign the required  
agreements. 



3 
 

 
 RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that Council approve projects R-4 A 

through C, and to approve the interim city manager signing all appropriate 
documents related thereto. 

 
MOTION:            

 
              
  Roll Call 
 
R-5 Encroachment Authorization Agreement with Columbia Gas 
 

ISSUE:  Columbia Gas is currently upgrading and renewing its citywide distribution 
network, and is seeking to place a gas distribution regulator station on City property. This 
new regulator station is necessary to ensure more reliable gas pressure distribution 
throughout the City Point zone.  

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council approve the Encroachment  

Authorization Agreement with Columbia Gas, and to approve the interim city 
manager signing all appropriate documents related thereto. 

 
 MOTION:            
 
              
  Roll Call 
 
R-6 Hopewell Police Department – Recruitment and Retention  
 

ISSUE:   Presentation to inform Council on issues facing the Hopewell Police 
Department, and other law enforcement agencies nationwide. 
 

 No action required of Council 
 
R-7 Real Estate Assessor Request for reallocation of funds 
 

ISSUE:  The Real Estate assessor’s office currently has unused funds in two accounts, 
which it is requesting be reallocated for immediate use. The assessor is requesting that 
$25,000 of unused salary be moved to account 503200, and $48,343 be moved to 503130.  
With this allocation, the real estate assessor can fund temporary staff, as needed. The 
funds allocated to 503130 will be used to reassess residential property in 2018. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council reallocate $25,000 to  
 account 503200, and reallocate $48,343 to  account 503130.  
 
 MOTION:            
 
              
  Roll Call 



4 
 

 
R-8 Approval of Hopewell Water Renewal Fund (Fund 032) Capital Projects Budget  
 Amendment 
 
 ISSUE:  The FY2018 budget approved by Council did not include the HWR Fund capital  

projects budget. Planned capital improvements for certain FY2018 HWR Fund capital 
projects have already been initiated and require prompt attention by Council 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council approve the amendment of 
FY 2018 Fund 032 capital projects budget to increase the total funding and 
appropriations by $1,470,000. 
 

 MOTION:            
 
              
  Roll Call 
 
R-9 Approval of issuance of $14,473.06 refund to AdvanSix Resins & Chemicals, LLC 
 

ISSUE:  Virginia Code § 58.1-3981 Correction by commissioner or other official  
performing his duties,  and Hopewell Ordinance No. 2007-10 authorize the  
City Treasurer to approve and issue refunds for erroneously assessed taxes up to $2,500.  
Amounts over $2,500 require approval by City Council.  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that council approve the $14,473.06 
refund to AdvanSix Resins & Chemicals, LLC. 
 

 MOTION:            
 
              
  Roll Call 
 

 
7:30 p.m.   Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 
 
Prayer by Chaplain Michael Wyche of the John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America led by Mayor Shornak. 
 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be 
approved or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 
 
C-1 Minutes:  August 28, October 10, October 23, October 24, October 25, November 2, 2017 
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Personnel Change Report attached 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:  None 

 



5 
 

C-6 Routine Grant Approval: Hazardous Materials Commodity Flow Study Grant - $20,800 
from the Virginia Department of Emergency Management to the Hopewell Fire 
Department; Firefighting Foam Operations Grant - $31,000 from the Virginia Department 
of Emergency Management to the Hopewell Fire Department; Regional FLIR Thermal 
Image Camera Grant - $36,000 from the Virginia Department of Emergency Management 
to the Hopewell Fire Department 

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: December 12, 2017 - Rezoning of property from 
residential low-density (R-1) to limited commercial (B-2) for property located in the 
Broadway Subdivision; request for street vacation; resolution revising animal license fees 

C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: CPMT- (September 18, August 21, July 17, 
June 26, May 15, April 17, 2017); School Board - (October 19, September14, September 
18, 2017); Petersburg Area Regional Tourism – (March 18, May 19, September 15, 2017) 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:  
C-10 Additional Announcements: Upcoming Events by Aaron Reidmiller, Director, Parks and 

Recreation 
 

Communications from Citizens 
A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, shall be part of the 
Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. Each speaker will be limited to three (3) 
minutes. No citizen will be permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the 
regular agenda of the meeting. (Rule 405.) 
 

Public Hearings 
Each person addressing the Council shall step to the microphone, give name and address and 
limit comments to five (5) minutes or less. No person shall be permitted to address Council a 
second time until all others have been heard once and no one shall speak more than twice on any 
subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body and not to any 
member thereof. No person other than the Council and the person having the floor shall enter 
into any discussion either directly or through a member of the Council without permission of the 
Mayor. No question shall be asked a Council member (including Administration) except through 
the presiding officer. (Rule 405.) 
 
PH-1 Marjorie Gray request to vacate a portion of an alley adjacent to 1507 Miles Avenue 

and 2957 Courthouse Road 
 

ISSUE: Marjorie Gray is requesting the vacation of an alley to add square footage to her 
property, and to erect a fence.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration does not recommend that Council approve this 
request. However, if Council does see fit to approve the request, Administration requests 
that Council approve the requested vacation of the alley adjacent to 1507 Miles 
Avenue and 2957 Courthouse Road, contingent upon a plat approved by the 
Director of Development and an easement approved by the City Engineer. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 



6 
 

 
PH-2 Request to amend the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, Article XI-A, Corridor 

Development District (B-4) to allow self-service storage facilities, by Conditional Use 
Permit 

 
ISSUE: The City has received a request to amend its Zoning Ordinance to add a self-
service storage facility, with a Conditional Use Permit, in the B-4 Zoning District. This 
matter was presented to Council at its October 24, 2017 meeting, and is now being 
brought back for Council approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends that Council approve the 
request to amend Article XI-A, Corridor Development District (B-4) of the 
Hopewell Zoning Ordinance to allow self-service storage facilities, by Conditional 
Use Permit. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
PH-3 Request to amend a Conditional Use Permit to decrease the required size of a single 

family home from 1,200 square feet to 1,000 square feet 
 

ISSUE: The City has received an application to amend a previously-approved CUP to 
decrease the size of the home from 1,200 feet to 1,000 square feet. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends that Council approve the 
request to amend the CUP to decrease the required size of the single family home 
from 1,200 square feet to 1,000 square feet. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
PH-4 Spot Blight 
 

ISSUE: City staff has reviewed six properties that qualify for demolition, rehabilitation, 
and/or acquisition through the Spot Blight ordinance. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends that Council determine if the 
City should move forward with the proposed demolition, rehabilitation or 
acquisition through the Spot Blight ordinance. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 



7 
 

 
CLOSED MEETING 

 
MOTION:  To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration of 
prospective candidates for employment (city manager, city attorney); (2) discussion of 
appointment of specific appointees of city council (HRHA, Youth Services 
Commission, Recreation Commission); (3) discussion of performance of specific 
appointees of city council (Economic Development Authority) and (4) consultation 
with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding 
specific legal matters (including city council meetings, bankruptcy and lien payments, 
finance director agreement) requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in 
accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [three items], and (8), respectively. 
 
 Roll Call  
 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public 
business matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in 
the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 
 
Roll Call 
 
Reports of the City Attorney:   
 
Reports of the City Clerk:  
 
Reports of City Council: 
 
 Committees  
 
 Individual Councilors   
 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 
 

Other Council Communications 

Adjournment  



 
Work  

Session 
 

 



City of 
Hopewell 

Waterfront 



Virginia 

What is a TAP?
■ The TAP Program provides local public sector 

and non-profit organizations with a tool to 
solve real estate and land use problems in a 
uniquely objective way. 

■ At the same time, TAPs provide District 
Council members a means to give back to 
ULI and their local communities.

■ ULI members volunteer to serve on a panel 
and are not compensated for their time, only 
their expenses.



Virginia 

TAP-What We Did
■ Received briefing materials before event
■ 1.5 days
■ Toured site 
■ Met with stakeholders – discussed history, 

concerns, and needs
■ Identified key issues 
■ Discussed alternatives
■ Developed recommendations
■ Presentation of recommendations



Virginia 

Panelists
■ Jon Eisen – Managing Principal, The Eisen 

Group, Washington DC 
■ Lory Markham – OneSouth, Richmond VA
■ David M Stembel III – AIA, Grimm and 

Parker, Calverton MD 
■ Bill Eubanks – Creative Director, Seamon 

Whiteside, Charleston SC
■ Mike Callahan – AICP, Renaissance Planning, 

Charlottesville VA



Virginia 

Stakeholder Participants
■ Deborah Randolph, Economic Development Authority
■ Wendy Austin, Executive Director, Friends of the Lower 

Appomattox
■ Aaron Reidmiller, Director, Recreation & Parks
■ Kevin Healy, Owner, The Boathouse
■ Mayor Jacqueline Shornak
■ Elliot T. Eliades, Chairman, Planning Commission
■ Chris Neal, Planning Commissioner
■ Smith Bradford
■ Doris P. Renn (owner of adjacent property)
■ Evan Kaufman, Hopewell Downtown Partnership



CONTEXT WESTON MANOR



CONTEXT MARINA



CONTEXT CITY PARK



CONTEXT LIBRARY AND DOWNTOWN



CONTEXT BOATHOUSE



CONTEXT BEACON



CONTEXT   UNDERSTANDING SITE



13

CONTEXT   UNDERSTANDING SITE



PROCESS   STAKEHOLDER DIALOGUE



PROCESS STAKEHOLDER DIALOGUE



Stakeholder Memories
■ Walking from City Point to Downtown
■ Services available downtown – haircut, 

food, shopping
■ Beacon Theater
■ Birthday parties on the cheap 
■ Where can you go for happy hour?
■ Fishing on river
■ Cleanup activities



Stakeholder Wish List
1. Better first impression of 

Hopewell
2. Can’t wait for something 

to fall into our lap
3. Focus on attainable 

goals and maintain long 
term goals

4. Better collaboration of 
departments involved 
with development

5. How to make 
gentrification a good 
word

6. Improve City pride and 
ownership – increase 
engagement

7. More strategic 
development 

8. Take advantage of 
more funding sources

9. Better signs and 
directions to river

10. Create a reason for 
people to be in 
Hopewell – roadmap



Comments
■ Most beautiful places should belong to 

everyone
■ Viable, Livable, Memorable
■ Goals must be attainable
■ Don’t leave your candy in the lobby
■ Use of the river has different meaning for 

different people and “seeing” river is also 
a use of the river



PROCESS   PANEL WORKSESSION



Assets
■ Waterfront 
■ 2 Rivers – viewable 

& able to get to it
■ Downtown 
■ Beacon Theater
■ Boathouse 

Restaurant
■ “Small Town” Feel
■ Community Feel
■ Library

■ Hospital
■ Weston Manor 
■ Ft. Lee is a partner 

that can help
■ Special Events well 

attended
■ Trail development
■ Marina – covered slips 

always full
■ City owns key 

properties



Weaknesses
■ Motel
■ Zoning Ordinance
■ School Accreditation
■ Infrastructure – potholes, 

drainage, wavy roads
■ Federal Parks – no sense 

of partnership
■ Negative attitudes toward 

Hopewell from outside 
and inside the city – “we 
all smell Hopewell”

■ Low/Moderate Income 
Community (limits 
disposable income)

■ Old housing stock and 
too much rental

■ Truck Traffic
■ Access to River not 

promoted/hard to find
■ Lack of Wayfinding 

signs
■ Nothing to draw people 



Weaknesses

■ Maintenance
■ Cleanliness of areas along river & in river
■ No Capital Improvement Plan
■ Not Planning for next generations
■ Goals of Council change with each election – 

hard to have long term planning
■ Piecemeal development because we just want 

to see something 



3

1

2

4

5

8

7

6

 

9

10

11

12

1-4  City of Hopewell
5-8  Historic Hopewell Foundation

9 Bradford Cross
10-11 Doris Renn
12  Appomattox Municipal Cemetery



Key Assumptions
■ Waterfront belongs to 

everyone 
■ Development should 

not be piecemeal
■ Don’t give it away
■ Zoning doesn’t support 

what is needed
■ Everything should be 

proportionate to 
Hopewell

■ Believe in your assets!
■ Niche is waterfront 

and downtown 
■ Focus on “missing 

teeth” not just Bluffs
■ A mix of uses is more 

feasible than 
mixed-use

■ It is OK to wait for the 
“right” development



Key Assumptions
■ Trucks will still use 

Route 10 to 6th 
Street

■ Increase connectivity 
with new streets

■ Local streets already 
walkable & bikeable

■ Extend trail to marina 
– not phase 1

■ Focus resources on 
the primary 
multimodal corridors 

■ Randolph
■ 21st

■ Broadway
■ Appomattox



Redevelopment

■ Advantages
■ Pearls on Strings
■ Urban Farm 

associated with 
Hospital

■ Good bones, 
walkable, blocks 
good size

■ Barriers 
■ Average 2100 sf 

unit
■ 20 du/ac
■ Desire without a 

roadmap 



PROCESS   PANEL WORKSESSION



Questions
■ Best use of the waterfront - assumptions

■ Preserve and enhance all these properties for their water 
based / water connection uses. 

■ All of the properties are stronger if connected with the River 
Trail and connected back into the neighborhoods and the 
downtown.

■ Create and follow a comprehensive, holistic strategy, one 
not individualized by property. 

■ Maintain public access throughout all properties encourage a 
restaurant zone to build on the Boathouse. 

■ Turn the Motel into an asset.
■ Maximize recreation on the river.



Questions
■ Best use of each property

■ The Bluffs – plan for the best development possible. 
■ Historic Weston Manor – consider development on open spaces
■ Doris Renn Properties – a major key asset, consider the 

development of a second marina along the river
■ The Park – consider the water edge for kayak rental and personal 

craft launching, and the upper portion as a restaurant site. 
■ The Marina – maintain existing use. Reserve area for a future 

retail use. 
■ Route 10 Gateway – leverage the planned ‘H’ gateway art work
■ The Boathouse – leverage the success of this restaurant to bring 

others to the City 
■ The Motel – unique architecturally and can be a great asset to the 

City as a boutique hotel
■ City Park – connect the City Park the downtown by way of Library 

Street



Questions
■ Given environmental constraints what are 

possible uses, location of, and density?

The density issue should be resolved through the development of 
the new / completed Comprehensive Plan, and with revised zoning 
ordinances. The market will determine the highest density for each 
property. Use the Comp Plan and Zoning Ordinances to “make green tape 
not red tape” for developers. See the key assumptions in the answer to 
question 1. All future development shall respect these assumptions. 

The density issue for each of the water front properties has to be 
considered with development in the downtown core of the City. 
Affordable housing developers are already planning one new affordable 
project funded with low income housing tax credits (LIHTC) from VHDA 
Virginia Housing and Development Agency. More will follow to this market. 
Package downtown properties for affordable housing developers. 



Questions
■ Complete Streets - linkages and connections, trails and water 

access, and create walkability? Changes to Route 10 needed 
to facilitate traffic & create a gateway?

■ Trucks will continue to enter the City via West Randolph Road from the 
bridge. 

■ Enforce the 6th Street cut-off for trucks.
■ West Randolph Road is a great street, a spine, down through Poythress 

Street. 
■ Plan pedestrian improvements on West Randolph. 
■ Create a trail loop with the downtown streets and the River Trail. 
■ Use Library Street to make a great gateway to the river and the beach at City 

Park. 
■ Consider another access to the River Trail at 6th.
■ Highlight development opportunities down town. 
■ Create bike lanes on 21st and Broadway (as they are very bike-able, flat 

streets with posted speeds suitable for biking). 
■ Focus on downtown streets and access to river trail, and completing the loop. 



Questions
■ In light of development along Gateway (Boathouse 

restaurant, public art “H”, and Riverwalk) how 
should development be phased to create synergy?  

■ First, invest in the framework, the bones, invest (though not 
necessarily to the same level everywhere) in the framework to 
connect the pieces. The River Walk is priority 1. 

■ Second, don’t rush it, set realistic goals, plan and carry out one 
improvement a year. 

■ The Bluffs may remain without private development for 5-10 years 
until the value is in the property for the right development. The 
‘highest and best use’ will be informed by the market. 

■ Phasing and implementation is going to be driven by what the City 
can afford and what the market asks for and when. Make 
connections and then fill in. 



Questions
■ City desires development of key vacant properties to 

set us apart as a regional waterfront designation and 
maintain public access.  How is this possible?  What is 
niche? What is market strategy?  

■ Hopewell is the place where a custom steel-hull boat 
builder bought an old Ford automobile showroom 
opened up a shop that made the City the center of 
custom boat building on the James River. Embrace this 
uniqueness. Hopewell’s foundation is history – river & 
main street. Hopewell is accessible. Be open and 
embrace the future. With these assets, they will come, 
and create your future. 



Questions
■ Hopewell is rich in history and water, with the great bones 

of a downtown. Hopewell has desire. So, what is the road 
map?

■ Embrace the river
■ Connect the assets 
■ Don’t be desperate
■ Make development perpendicular to the water 
■ Maintain and accentuate river / water front access of all kinds 
■ Utilize public access easements 
■ Balance redevelopment on both the river and downtown    
■ Don’t let the zoning restrict development 
■ Create a pattern book for future development of low to 

moderate housing 
 



Questions
■ What is market strategy? 

■    Focus on the Positive
■ Main street
■ Trails and open space 
■ History 
■ Beacon Theater
■ Appomattox Regional Library 
■ John Randolph Hospital 
■ Accredited Schools (get them all to this level) 



PROCESS   PANEL WORKSESSION



LONG TERM STRATEGIES

1. Complete/Approve Comprehensive Plan
2. Zoning Code Overhaul (Waterfront Overlay)
3. Capital Improvement Program
4. Adopt a Complete Streets Policy 
5. Road Diet w/Bike lane on Randolph
6. Develop a Wayfinding Program
7. Complete Linkages/Connectivity Project
8. Develop Hopewell “Brand” and Marketing Strategy
9. Infill and Redevelopment (Focus on “Missing 

Teeth”)
10. Create and Implement a Street Tree Program



SHORT TERM STRATEGIES
1. Create Zoning Overlay District for Waterfront
2. Narrow Right-Of-Way and Encourage Alley Loaded 

Garages
3. Establish Architectural Standards for new “Cluster” Zoning
4. Expand Enterprise Zone to include Marina Site
5. Do RFP (Public/Private Partnership) for Development of 

Marina 
6. Make Connection - Downtown to Waterfront
7. Designate Downtown & Waterfront as UDA

(Urban Development Area)
1. Hold a Public Art Competition for Public Wayfinding
2. Annual Event Program - Showcase the Waterfront
3. Create Healthy Food Financing Initiative



PROCESS   PANEL WORKSESSION



CONCEPTS



Land Use Diagram



CONCEPTS



Connectivity Plan



Randolph 
Road Diet



The Bluffs
Residential Concept 1 incorporates a cluster 
approach with lots of approximately 35’ x 80’ 
served by a 30’ two-way alley and each unit 
fronting open space.  

Single-family residential units proposed as 
detached with 5’ side setbacks (including eaves), 
20’ rear setbacks, and 10’ front setbacks. This 
arrangement would allow floor plates of 24’ x 50’ 
or 1,200 SF per floor.

A 2.5 floor ratio scenario would allow up to 3,000 
SF.  Two floors would allow 2,400 SF. The 30’ 
two-way alley could accommodate on-street 
parking for guests and overflow.

Pedestrian connections could be provided 
through the site as indicated by the orange lines 
with arrows. It will be critical to dedicate public 
open space to open the waterfront for physical 
and visual access.



Bluffs Site Plan
The Bluffs residential concept utilizes attached 
townhomes to maximize development for the 
property.

There is a strong integration of pedestrian 
connectivity and green space throughout the 
neighborhood.

A “String of Pearls” of green spaces and trails 
connect neighborhoods and encourage public use 
of waterfront properties.

It should be noted that this scheme, like many 
others developed during the TAP, cannot be 
accomplished under the current zoning 
regulations.  

Changes to the zoning ordinance code need to 
include allowing 

∙ a horizontal mix of uses
∙ changes in density and lot size 
∙ changes in maximum building heights
∙ changes in frontage requirements
∙ changes in buffer requirements

 



CONCEPTS  Redevelopment 
The Redevelopment 
Option 1 shows 
development of the 
areas along 21st 
Avenue and the area 
in front of Weston 
Plantation.  Lots of 
various sizes and 
alley accesses.  Large 
and small green 
spaces provide for 
pedestrian links and 
visual relief.  The 
concept demonstrates 
a relationship 
between two of the 
proposed residential 
layouts and 
demonstrates viable 
community options for 
the adjacent 
properties. 



CONCEPTS  Redevelopment 
An alternate 
redevelopment 
scheme that 
recommends 
residential facing 
tree-lined 
streetscapes with 
alley access with 
interior nodes of 
green space for 
uses such as 
passive and active 
parklets and 
community gardens. 

The Riverfront will 
remain public 
access with a chain 
of parks, trails, and 
open space.



CONCEPTS   Prototype Lot 30’x100’



CONCEPTS
This rough sketch 
illustrates a possible 
single-family detached 
layout for the area near 
Weston Manor.  The lots 
can be narrower if alley 
fed.  This would also 
allow a more pedestrian 
friendly streetscape.  
Stormwater is being 
accommodated through 
ponds that are roughly 
10% of the entire area.  
Pedestrian connections 
link this area with 
adjacent developments.  
The green space and 
links provide needed 
public open space and 
needed river access 
where accessible.



CONCEPTS   Prototype Lot 50’x100’



Waterfront

A redevelopment scheme that recommends horizontal 
mixed-use including flex-use, residential, marina shops, 
vendor kiosks, public access to the river, and public 
amphitheater.



Alternative Waterfront

An alternate redevelopment scheme that also shows the links 
between the various land uses.



Alternative Waterfront

An alternate redevelopment scheme that recommends horizontal mixed use including 
flex-use, marina shops, vendor shops and public access along the entire riverfront.

It should be noted that this scheme, like the others, cannot be accomplished under the 
current zoning regulations.  Changes to the code need to include allowing a horizontal 
mix of uses, changes in density and lot size requirements, changes in maximum building 
heights, changes in frontage requirements, and changes in buffer requirements.



Questions?



 
REGULAR 
BUSINESS 

 



REPORTS 
OF THE 

CITY 
MANAGER 

 



 
R-1 

 
 



 
R-2 

 
 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

 
  

       
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Transfer up to $32,000 from Development Code Capital 
Account to the proper account to allow the purchase of three vehicles for the Building Official, 
Building Inspector and Planning Division of the Department of Development.  
 
ISSUE:  As of September 2017 the Department of Development had six vehicles to accommodate four 
building inspectors, one Building Official, one Zoning Inspector, and the Planning and GIS division.  In 
October two vehicles were sent to the Public Works Garage for repair. It is has been concluded that two 
vehicles are not salvageable.  The Department is requesting the purchase of three vehicles for the 
Building Official, a Building Inspector and the Planning and GIS division.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Administration recommends the City Council approve up to $32,000 be 
transferred from the Development Code Capital Account to purchase  
 
TIMING:   City Administation is requesting approval of this request on November 21, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND:  See above 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Account Balance Sheet 
       
STAFF:         Tevya W. Griffin, Director of the Department of Development 
                          

                 
                  

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 



Council action form  11-21-17        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-21-
2017 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  2018 Draft Legislative Priorities  
 
ISSUE:  The City Administration will give a presentation on the Draft 2018 Legislative Priorities for 
the Virginia General Assembly.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The City Administration recommends approval of the Resolution endorsing 
the 2018 General Assembly Legislative Priorities. 
 
TIMING:  City Council action is requested on November 21, 2017. The last date to prefile any new 
legislation is December 4, 2017.   
 
BACKGROUND:  In anticipation of the 2018 General Assembly Session, the City Administration has 
prepared the City’s Annual Legislative Priorities for presentation to the City’s Legislative Delegation. 
As a result of taking a proactive approach to issues that are considered by the Virginia General 
Assembly, City Officials and City Administration strive to improve the City’s ability to deliver quality 
services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Salary and benefit package. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  1. Draft 2018 Legislative Priorities 
         2. Resolution endorsing the 2018 Legislative Priorities 
 
STAFF:   Legislative Committee Members: Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Councilor Anthony “Tony” 
Zevgolis, Charles E. Dane, Interim City Manager, Stefan Calos, City Attorney and Herbert Bragg, 
Director, Intergovernmental & Public Affairs and Legislative liaison.   

 



 

RESOLUTION 

A resolution by the Council of the City of Hopewell to endorse, for the City 
of Hopewell, legislative priorities set forth within the City’s Draft 2018  
State Legislative Agenda, and to request the Hopewell delegation to the 
General Assembly of Virginia to take legislative action consistent with and 
in vigorous support of such proposals. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of Hopewell that this Council hereby 
endorses as priorities for the City of Hopewell the legislative proposals set forth in 
the City’s 2018 State Legislative Agenda, a copy of which is attached to this 
resolution. The Council respectively requests that the Hopewell delegation to the 
General Assembly of Virginia take legislative action consistent with and in 
vigorous support of such proposals. 

 

                          ---oo0oo--- 

 Given under my hand and the Corporate Seal of the City of Hopewell, 
Virginia this 21st  day of November 2017, I do certify that the foregoing is a true 
and correct copy of a resolution of the City of Hopewell duly adopted on the 21st 
day of November 2017. 

 

           ________________________________________ 
Ronnieye Arrington 
City Clerk 

 
 

 

 



























































































































































PROPOSED 2018 GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES

PRESENTED BY HERBERT H. BRAGG, DIRECTOR

INTERGOVERNMENTAL & PUBLIC AFFAIRS AND LEGISLATIVE LIAISON



MACHINERY & TOOLS

•The City of Hopewell OPPOSES any attempt to 
eliminate  or reduce the use of machinery and tools 
tax 



FUNDING FOR K-12 

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS full funding for K-
12 education



STATE AID TO LOCAL POLICE DEPARTMENT

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS full funding for 
state aid to Local Police Department (HB599



STATE MANDATES 

•The City SUPPORTS full funding of all state 
mandates and OPPOSES any others that are not 
funded



HISTORIC REHABILITATION TAX CREDITS

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credits



CHARTER CHANGE

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS a proposed 
Charter change to allow the City Clerk to appoint 
and remove  a deputy City Clerk



STATE ASSESSMENT FOR K-12 SCHOOLS

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS changes in state 
assessment and accountability system for K-12 
schools



HIGH POVERTY SCHOOL DISTRICTS

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS funding for high 
poverty school districts. 



CHESAPEAKE BAY FOUNDATION

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS the Chesapeake 
Bay Foundation $50 million dollar funding request 
for the Stormwater Local Assistance Fund



WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT FUND 

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS continued funding 
of the Water Quality Improvement Fund to help 
municipalities further reduce nutrient discharges into 
State Waters



VIRGINIA FIRST CITIES COALITION DRAFT 2018 
LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS and endorse the 
Virginia First Cities Coalition DRAFT 2018 
Legislative Agenda 



VIRGINIA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 2017 LEGISLATIVE 
PROGRAM 

•The City of Hopewell SUPPORTS and endorse the 
Virginia Municipal League 2017 Legislative 
Program 



 

 

 

 

R-4 
 

 



Council action form  11-21-2017.        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □  Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-27-
2017 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Regular Business – Item R-1 
 
 
ISSUE:  In May/June 2018 VDOT Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) will consider inclusion and 
approval of five (5) new projects City staff recently submitted for the FY19 and FY20 VDOT Revenue Sharing 
Program.  Four of the five projects were submitted last year but were not selected to receive funding. 
 
By December 1, 2017 the City must provide VDOT the subject Resolution Letter to the Richmond District Office 
Local Assistance Program (LAP) Manager.  The project application and estimate forms were submitted by the 
November 1, 2017 statewide deadline.  Full funding as requested is not guaranteed; however, based on past 
performance, City staff believes these applications will rank favorable with the CTB.  The projects submitted for 
approval are ranked in terms of priority and future funding.  They are as follows: 
 

1. Street Pavement Resurfacing (Remove/Replace/Reconstruction of existing pavement) {Limits: Various 
Local Neighborhood and Collector Streets citywide “Blue Zone” map} 

2. Moultrie Avenue (C&G / Driveway Aprons / Drainage Improvements / Pavement Reconstruction) 
{Limits: Jackson Street to Bluefield Avenue}.  NOTE: Preliminary Engineering ONLY in FY18 Funding 

3. Courthouse Road (C&G / Driveway Aprons / Drainage Improvements / Pavement Reconstruction) 
{Limits: Ashland St to Berry St/High Ave}.  NOTE: Preliminary Engineering ONLY in FY18 Funding 

4. Prince Henry Avenue (C&G / Driveway Aprons / Drainage Improvements / Pavement Reconstruction) 
{Limits: Pecan Ave to Pelham St}. 

5. Stewart Ave (C&G / Driveway Aprons / Drainage Improvements / Pavement Reconstruction) {Limits: 
Courthouse Rd to Bassett St}. 

 
 
Required Program Guidelines, VDOT requires the following action: 
 

1. A formal Resolution Letter to be passed by City Council endorsing the submitted FY19 and FY20 
Revenue Sharing Projects indicated above.  The Resolution Letter showing the council voting action is 
due on December 1, 2017.  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends Approval. 

 



Council action form  11-21-2017.        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □  Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-27-
2017 

 
TIMING:   City Council Action is recommended on November 21, 2017.   The resolution letter needs to be 
submitted on December 1, 2017 to accompany the five (5) project submissions previously submitted on 
November 1, 2017. 
  
BACKGROUND:   RSP Applications included. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Through the subject Administration Agreement, the project(s) are proposed to be locally 
administered by the City, through the Office of the City Engineer, thereby saving available grant funds.  Refer to 
attached “Revenue Sharing Detailed Designation of Funds Form” for each project.  The Project Cost and 
Reimbursement table is provided on each individual project form.  The “Project Financing” table specifically 
indicates the total estimated City Match for each project.  The “Summary of Projects” sheet shows a total of 
$2,130,000 spread over the next three (3) fiscal years. This total assumes the City was able to locate and/or 
appropriate, or both, enough project funding to pursue the full value of the program allocation match.  The VDOT 
funding appropriations are treated as available place card funding if acted upon.  This is a 50/50 cost sharing 
participation program. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
 

1. RSP Application Priority #1 – Pavement Rehabilitation (Various Streets) 
2. RSP Application Priority #2 – Moultrie Ave Improvements 
3. RSP Application Priority #3 – Courthouse Rd Improvements 
4. RSP Application Priority #4 – Prince Henry Ave Improvements 
5. RSP Application Priority #5 – Stewart Ave Improvements 

 
 
STAFF:    Edward Watson, DPW Director 
  Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 
  Austin Anderson, Construction Manager 



Revenue Sharing Application

Pavement Reconstruction - Mill and Overlay Local Streets

Project Status: Processing Project ID: F7-0000003155-R01

  General

Project Information

Locality's Priority #

1

Route #

9999

Local Road Name, if available

Various

Has project previously received Revenue Sharing
funding?

No

Does project meet a transportation need identified in the CTB’s Statewide Transportation Plan (VTrans)?

No

Is project in Locality’s Capital Improvement Plan and only by receipt will these funds advance the project
advertisement date?

Yes

Current Advertisement

2021-09-17

Advanced Advertisement

2018-09-14

Is project work for pavement resurfacing or bridge rehabilitation
where the maintenance analysis determines the infrastructure does
not meet the Department’s performance guidelines?

No

Project Type

Construction

Scope of Work

Reconstruction

Project ID: F7-0000003155-R01 Page 1 of 4  



Description of Work

Administered By

Locality

  Location

Location

Districts Served

Richmond

MPOs Served

Tri-Cities
Metropolitan
Planning
Organization

PDCs Served

Crater

Jurisdictions Served

Hopewell City

Length (miles)

5.2

From

Various Local and Collector Streets

To

Various Local and Collector Streets

SYIP Allocations

Other Committed Funds

  Financial

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing (state) matching funds requested for this project for:

FY2019 Amount

$200,000

FY2020 Amount

$200,000

Total Amount

$400,000

Total Locality Match corresponding to TOTAL VDOT
allocation requested for this application:

Amount

$400,000

Provide Existing Project VDOT UPC(s) or DRPT Project Number(s), if applicable

Project UPC/DRPT
Project ID

UPC Description VDOT / DRPT ($)

$0

Total SYIP: $0

Project ID: F7-0000003155-R01 Page 2 of 4  



Cost Estimate

Provide Information on Other Committed Funds if Applicable

Other Funds Committed to
Project

Description of Fund Type Amount

$0

Total Other Committed Funds: $0

Please provide project phase schedule and cost estimate information

Phase Milestone

PE (Survey, Environmental, Design)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$40,000

Start Date

9/3/2018

Phase Milestone

RW (Right of Way and Easement Acquisition, Utility
Relocation)

Status

Not Needed

Cost Estimate

$0

Start Date

Phase Milestone

CN (Construction, Oversight, Inspection,
Contingencies)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$760,000

Start Date

10/1/2018

Total Cost Estimate: $800,000

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing Request $400,000

Locality Match $400,000

Total SYIP $0

Total Other Committed Funds $0

Project ID: F7-0000003155-R01 Page 3 of 4  



Project Financial Information

Total Cost Estimate $800,000

Total Project Funding $800,000

Current Attachments

  Supporting Documents

Description

Pavement Reconstruction Map

Attachment Type

Project Sketch

File Name

Hopewell VDOT RSP FY18 Pavement Reconstruction
Map.pdf

Description

Capital Improvement Plan

Attachment Type

Capital Improvement Plan

File Name

City of Hopewell Capital Improvement Program 11-1-
17.xlsx

 
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
600 East Main Street, Suite 2102
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 786-4440

 
VDOT Central Office

1401 East Broad Street
Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 367-7623 (toll-free)
711 (hearing impaired)

  © 2016 Commonwealth Transportation Board

Project ID: F7-0000003155-R01 Page 4 of 4  



Revenue Sharing Application

Moultrie Avenue Roadway and Drainage Improvement

Project Status: Processing Project ID: F7-0000003160-R01

  General

Project Information

Locality's Priority #

2

Route #

9999

Local Road Name, if available

Moultrie Avenue

Has project previously received Revenue Sharing
funding?

No

Does project meet a transportation need identified in the CTB’s Statewide Transportation Plan (VTrans)?

No

Is project in Locality’s Capital Improvement Plan and only by receipt will these funds advance the project
advertisement date?

Yes

Current Advertisement

2023-09-15

Advanced Advertisement

2019-09-13

Is project work for pavement resurfacing or bridge rehabilitation
where the maintenance analysis determines the infrastructure does
not meet the Department’s performance guidelines?

No

Project Type

Construction

Scope of Work

Reconstruction

Project ID: F7-0000003160-R01 Page 1 of 4  



Description of Work

Administered By

Locality

  Location

Location

Districts Served

Richmond

MPOs Served

Tri-Cities
Metropolitan
Planning
Organization

PDCs Served

Crater

Jurisdictions Served

Hopewell City

Length (miles)

0.3

From

Jackson Street

To

Bluefield Avenue

SYIP Allocations

Other Committed Funds

  Financial

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing (state) matching funds requested for this project for:

FY2019 Amount

$50,000

FY2020 Amount

$280,000

Total Amount

$330,000

Total Locality Match corresponding to TOTAL VDOT
allocation requested for this application:

Amount

$330,000

Provide Existing Project VDOT UPC(s) or DRPT Project Number(s), if applicable

Project UPC/DRPT
Project ID

UPC Description VDOT / DRPT ($)

$0

Total SYIP: $0

Project ID: F7-0000003160-R01 Page 2 of 4  



Cost Estimate

Provide Information on Other Committed Funds if Applicable

Other Funds Committed to
Project

Description of Fund Type Amount

$0

Total Other Committed Funds: $0

Please provide project phase schedule and cost estimate information

Phase Milestone

PE (Survey, Environmental, Design)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$100,000

Start Date

9/14/2018

Phase Milestone

RW (Right of Way and Easement Acquisition, Utility
Relocation)

Status

Not Needed

Cost Estimate

$0

Start Date

Phase Milestone

CN (Construction, Oversight, Inspection,
Contingencies)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$560,000

Start Date

9/16/2019

Total Cost Estimate: $660,000

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing Request $330,000

Locality Match $330,000

Total SYIP $0

Total Other Committed Funds $0

Project ID: F7-0000003160-R01 Page 3 of 4  



Project Financial Information

Total Cost Estimate $660,000

Total Project Funding $660,000

Current Attachments

  Supporting Documents

Description

Capital Improvement Plan

Attachment Type

Capital Improvement Plan

File Name

City of Hopewell Capital Improvement Program 11-1-
17.xlsx

 
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
600 East Main Street, Suite 2102
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 786-4440

 
VDOT Central Office

1401 East Broad Street
Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 367-7623 (toll-free)
711 (hearing impaired)

  © 2016 Commonwealth Transportation Board

Project ID: F7-0000003160-R01 Page 4 of 4  



Revenue Sharing Application

Courthouse Road Improvements

Project Status: Processing Project ID: F7-0000003161-R01

  General

Project Information

Locality's Priority #

3

Route #

9043

Local Road Name, if available

Courthouse Road

Has project previously received Revenue Sharing
funding?

No

Does project meet a transportation need identified in the CTB’s Statewide Transportation Plan (VTrans)?

Yes

Is project in Locality’s Capital Improvement Plan and only by receipt will these funds advance the project
advertisement date?

Yes

Current Advertisement

2021-10-04

Advanced Advertisement

2019-09-30

Is project work for pavement resurfacing or bridge rehabilitation
where the maintenance analysis determines the infrastructure does
not meet the Department’s performance guidelines?

No

Project Type

Construction

Scope of Work

Reconstruction

Project ID: F7-0000003161-R01 Page 1 of 4  



Description of Work

Administered By

Locality

  Location

Location

Districts Served

Richmond

MPOs Served

Tri-Cities
Metropolitan
Planning
Organization

PDCs Served

Crater

Jurisdictions Served

Hopewell City

Length (miles)

1.3

From

Ashland Street

To

Berry Street

SYIP Allocations

Other Committed Funds

  Financial

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing (state) matching funds requested for this project for:

FY2019 Amount

$100,000

FY2020 Amount

$0

Total Amount

$100,000

Total Locality Match corresponding to TOTAL VDOT
allocation requested for this application:

Amount

$100,000

Provide Existing Project VDOT UPC(s) or DRPT Project Number(s), if applicable

Project UPC/DRPT
Project ID

UPC Description VDOT / DRPT ($)

$0

Total SYIP: $0

Project ID: F7-0000003161-R01 Page 2 of 4  



Cost Estimate

Provide Information on Other Committed Funds if Applicable

Other Funds Committed to
Project

Description of Fund Type Amount

$0

Total Other Committed Funds: $0

Please provide project phase schedule and cost estimate information

Phase Milestone

PE (Survey, Environmental, Design)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$200,000

Start Date

10/1/2018

Phase Milestone

RW (Right of Way and Easement Acquisition, Utility
Relocation)

Status

Not Needed

Cost Estimate

$0

Start Date

Phase Milestone

CN (Construction, Oversight, Inspection,
Contingencies)

Status

Not Needed

Cost Estimate

$0

Start Date

Total Cost Estimate: $200,000

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing Request $100,000

Locality Match $100,000

Total SYIP $0

Total Other Committed Funds $0

Project ID: F7-0000003161-R01 Page 3 of 4  



Project Financial Information

Total Cost Estimate $200,000

Total Project Funding $200,000

Current Attachments

  Supporting Documents

Description

Courthouse Rd Aerial Map - Typical Section

Attachment Type

Project Sketch

File Name

REV Courthouse Rd Aerial Map - Typical Section.jpg

Description

Courthouse Rd Cross Section Overlay Project Sketch

Attachment Type

Project Sketch

File Name

Courthouse Rd Cross Section overlay.png

Description

Chapter 5, See Page 8 For Project Reference

Attachment Type

Local Comprehensive Plan

File Name

Chapter 5 - Transportation Plan.pdf

Description

Capital Improvement Plan

Attachment Type

Capital Improvement Plan

File Name

City of Hopewell Capital Improvement Program 11-1-
17.xlsx

 
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
600 East Main Street, Suite 2102
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 786-4440

 
VDOT Central Office

1401 East Broad Street
Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 367-7623 (toll-free)
711 (hearing impaired)

  © 2016 Commonwealth Transportation Board

Project ID: F7-0000003161-R01 Page 4 of 4  



Revenue Sharing Application

Prince Henry Avenue Improvements

Project Status: Processing Project ID: F7-0000003168-R01

  General

Project Information

Locality's Priority #

4

Route #

9999

Local Road Name, if available

Prince Henry Avenue

Has project previously received Revenue Sharing
funding?

No

Does project meet a transportation need identified in the CTB’s Statewide Transportation Plan (VTrans)?

No

Is project in Locality’s Capital Improvement Plan and only by receipt will these funds advance the project
advertisement date?

Yes

Current Advertisement

2020-10-05

Advanced Advertisement

2018-10-01

Is project work for pavement resurfacing or bridge rehabilitation
where the maintenance analysis determines the infrastructure does
not meet the Department’s performance guidelines?

N/A

Project Type

Construction

Scope of Work

Reconstruction

Project ID: F7-0000003168-R01 Page 1 of 4  



Description of Work

Administered By

Locality

  Location

Location

Districts Served

Richmond

MPOs Served

Tri-Cities
Metropolitan
Planning
Organization

PDCs Served

Crater

Jurisdictions Served

Hopewell City

Length (miles)

0.2

From

Pecan Avenue

To

Pelham Street

SYIP Allocations

Other Committed Funds

  Financial

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing (state) matching funds requested for this project for:

FY2019 Amount

$125,000

FY2020 Amount

$0

Total Amount

$125,000

Total Locality Match corresponding to TOTAL VDOT
allocation requested for this application:

Amount

$125,000

Provide Existing Project VDOT UPC(s) or DRPT Project Number(s), if applicable

Project UPC/DRPT
Project ID

UPC Description VDOT / DRPT ($)

$0

Total SYIP: $0

Project ID: F7-0000003168-R01 Page 2 of 4  



Cost Estimate

Provide Information on Other Committed Funds if Applicable

Other Funds Committed to
Project

Description of Fund Type Amount

$0

Total Other Committed Funds: $0

Please provide project phase schedule and cost estimate information

Phase Milestone

PE (Survey, Environmental, Design)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$50,000

Start Date

9/14/2018

Phase Milestone

RW (Right of Way and Easement Acquisition, Utility
Relocation)

Status

Not Needed

Cost Estimate

$0

Start Date

Phase Milestone

CN (Construction, Oversight, Inspection,
Contingencies)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$200,000

Start Date

6/3/2019

Total Cost Estimate: $250,000

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing Request $125,000

Locality Match $125,000

Total SYIP $0

Total Other Committed Funds $0

Project ID: F7-0000003168-R01 Page 3 of 4  



Project Financial Information

Total Cost Estimate $250,000

Total Project Funding $250,000

Current Attachments

  Supporting Documents

Description

Capital Improvement Plan

Attachment Type

Capital Improvement Plan

File Name

City of Hopewell Capital Improvement Program 11-1-
17.xlsx

 
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
600 East Main Street, Suite 2102
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 786-4440

 
VDOT Central Office

1401 East Broad Street
Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 367-7623 (toll-free)
711 (hearing impaired)

  © 2016 Commonwealth Transportation Board

Project ID: F7-0000003168-R01 Page 4 of 4  



Revenue Sharing Application

Stewart Avenue Improvements

Project Status: Processing Project ID: F7-0000003169-R01

  General

Project Information

Locality's Priority #

5

Route #

9999

Local Road Name, if available

Stewart Avenue and Bassett Street

Has project previously received Revenue Sharing
funding?

No

Does project meet a transportation need identified in the CTB’s Statewide Transportation Plan (VTrans)?

No

Is project in Locality’s Capital Improvement Plan and only by receipt will these funds advance the project
advertisement date?

Yes

Current Advertisement

2021-09-10

Advanced Advertisement

2019-09-06

Is project work for pavement resurfacing or bridge rehabilitation
where the maintenance analysis determines the infrastructure does
not meet the Department’s performance guidelines?

No

Project Type

Construction

Scope of Work

Reconstruction

Project ID: F7-0000003169-R01 Page 1 of 4  



Description of Work

Administered By

Locality

  Location

Location

Districts Served

Richmond

MPOs Served

Tri-Cities
Metropolitan
Planning
Organization

PDCs Served

Crater

Jurisdictions Served

Hopewell City

Length (miles)

0.3

From

Courthouse Road

To

Bassett Street

SYIP Allocations

Other Committed Funds

  Financial

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing (state) matching funds requested for this project for:

FY2019 Amount

$110,000

FY2020 Amount

$0

Total Amount

$110,000

Total Locality Match corresponding to TOTAL VDOT
allocation requested for this application:

Amount

$110,000

Provide Existing Project VDOT UPC(s) or DRPT Project Number(s), if applicable

Project UPC/DRPT
Project ID

UPC Description VDOT / DRPT ($)

$0

Total SYIP: $0

Project ID: F7-0000003169-R01 Page 2 of 4  



Cost Estimate

Provide Information on Other Committed Funds if Applicable

Other Funds Committed to
Project

Description of Fund Type Amount

$0

Total Other Committed Funds: $0

Please provide project phase schedule and cost estimate information

Phase Milestone

PE (Survey, Environmental, Design)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$20,000

Start Date

9/14/2018

Phase Milestone

RW (Right of Way and Easement Acquisition, Utility
Relocation)

Status

Not Needed

Cost Estimate

$0

Start Date

Phase Milestone

CN (Construction, Oversight, Inspection,
Contingencies)

Status

Not Started

Cost Estimate

$200,000

Start Date

6/3/2019

Total Cost Estimate: $220,000

Project Financial Information

VDOT Revenue Sharing Request $110,000

Locality Match $110,000

Total SYIP $0

Total Other Committed Funds $0

Project ID: F7-0000003169-R01 Page 3 of 4  



Project Financial Information

Total Cost Estimate $220,000

Total Project Funding $220,000

Current Attachments

  Supporting Documents

Description

Capital Improvement Plan

Attachment Type

Capital Improvement Plan

File Name

City of Hopewell Capital Improvement Program 11-1-
17.xlsx

 
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
600 East Main Street, Suite 2102
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 786-4440

 
VDOT Central Office

1401 East Broad Street
Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 367-7623 (toll-free)
711 (hearing impaired)

  © 2016 Commonwealth Transportation Board

Project ID: F7-0000003169-R01 Page 4 of 4  



Council action form  11-21-2017.        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □  Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-21-
2017 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Regular Business – Item R-2 
 
 
ISSUE:  In May/June 2018 VDOT Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) will consider inclusion and 
approval of one (1) new project City staff recently submitted for the FY19 and FY20 VDOT Transportation 
Alternatives Set-Aside Program.   
 
The Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside Program is intended to help local sponsors fund community based 
projects that expand non-motorized travel choices and enhance the transportation experience by improving the 
cultural, historical and environmental aspects of the transportation infrastructure.  The program does not fund 
traditional roadway projects or provide maintenance for these facilities.  Instead it focuses on providing pedestrian 
and bicycle facilities, community improvements and mitigating the negative impacts of the highway system. 
 
The TA Set-Aside Program is part of the Federal-aid Highway System.  It is not a traditional grant program with 
funding provided up-front; but rather a reimbursable program.  The City must first incur project expenses and 
then request reimbursement.  If this application is approved for funding, the City will need to establish a Capital 
Projects Expense Account and Revenue Account to administer this reimbursement program over two (2) fiscal 
years.  The program allows a maximum 80% federal reimbursement of eligible project costs and requires a 
minimum 20% local match contribution.   
 
In this current application cycle, the City applied for $949,579 in Total Project Costs over Fiscal Years 2019 and 
2020.  The TA reimbursement funding would be $759,663 with a 20% City match of $189,916. 
 
By December 1, 2017 the City must provide VDOT the included Resolution Letter to the Richmond District 
Office Local Assistance Program (LAP) Manager.   
 
Required Program Guidelines, VDOT requires the following action: 
 

1. A formal Resolution Letter to be passed by City Council endorsing the submitted FY19 and FY20 TA 
Set-Aside Application indicated above.  The Resolution Letter showing the council voting action is due 
on December 1, 2017.  

 

 



Council action form  11-21-2017.        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □  Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-21-
2017 

RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends Approval. 
 
TIMING:   City Council Action is recommended on November 21, 2017.   The Council Funding Match 
resolution letter needs to be submitted on December 1, 2017 to accompany the one (1) project submission 
previously submitted on November 1, 2017. 
  
BACKGROUND:   The bicycle lane facility map for the purpose of pursuing TA federal funds was 
previously endorsed by Council (Item R-7 October 10, 2017).  The bicycle lane facility improvement strategy was 
extracted from the Transportation Chapter of the draft Comprehensive Plan 2027. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The City would need to commit $189,916 (20% Match Contribution) by December 1, 2017 
for the TAP Application to continue through the screening process.  Staff recommends that the City match of 
$189,916 be appropriated from surplus funds on the recently completed Route 10 Primary Extension/State of 
Good Repair paving projects. 
 
If the application is selected to receive TA funding in May/June 2018 the City would need to appropriate the full 
amount of $949,579 to a new Capital Projects account over FY 19 and FY 20.  FY 19 would be $526,919 and FY 
20 would be $422,660.  80% of the total project cost would then be eligible for reimbursement once the project 
expenses are incurred. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
 

1. Active Connections in Hopewell – Project Description and Map 
2. Active Connections in Hopewell – Project Budget 
3. City of Hopewell TAP Application Submitted November 1, 2017 
4. TA Set-Aside Resolution Sample 

 
 
STAFF:    Edward Watson, DPW Director 
  Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 
  Austin Anderson, Construction Manager 



August 2016 
 
 

 

Active Connections in Hopewell Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside Resolution 

                 

Whereas, in accordance with the Commonwealth Transportation Board construction 
allocation procedures, it is necessary that a resolution be received from the sponsoring 
jurisdiction or agency requesting the Virginia Department of Transportation establish a 
Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside project to be administered by the City of Hopewell 
 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City of Hopewell requests the Commonwealth 
Transportation Board to establish a project for the City of Hopewell 
 

Be It Further Resolved, that the City of Hopewell hereby commits to provide a minimum 
20 percent matching contribution for this project and any additional funds necessary to complete 
the project,  
 

Be It Further Resolved, that the City of Hopewell hereby agrees to enter into a project 
administration agreement with the Virginia Department of Transportation and provide the 
necessary oversight to ensure the project is developed in accordance with all state and federal 
requirements for design, right of way acquisition, and construction of a federally funded 
transportation project, 
 

Be It Further Resolved, that the City of Hopewell will be responsible for maintenance 
and operating costs of any improvement / facility constructed with Transportation Alternatives 
Set-Aside funds unless other arrangements have been made with the Department, 
 

Be It Further Resolved,that if the City of Hopewell subsequently elects to cancel this 
project the City of Hopewell hereby agrees to reimburse the Virginia Department of 
Transportation for the total amount of costs expended by the Department through the date the 
Department is notified of such cancellation.  The City of Hopewell also agrees to repay any 
funds previously reimbursed that are later deemed ineligible by the Federal Highway 
Administration. 

 
Be It Further Resolved, that the City of Hopewell Council hereby grants authority for 

the City Manager to execute project agreements for any approved Transportation Alternatives 
Set-aside projects for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 

 
Adopted this _____ day of ______________, 20____ 
_______________________________, Virginia 
By: ______________________________________ 
Attest 



TA Set-Aside Application

Active Connections in Hopewell

Project Status: Processing Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01

  General

1. Project Sponsor

Organization

City of Hopewell

Name

Charlie Dane

Title

Interim City Manager

Address

300 N. Main Street

Address 2

Suite 216

City

Hopewell

State

Virginia

ZIP Code

23860

ZIP+4

2700

Email

cdane@hopewellva.gov

Telephone

(804) 541-2271

Fax

() -

2. Project Manager

Name

Austin Anderson

Title

Construction Manager

Address

224 N. Main Street

Address 2

Suite 310

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 1 of 17  



City

Hopewell

State

Virginia

ZIP Code

23860

ZIP+4

2700

Email

aanderson@hopewellva.gov

Telephone

(804) 541-2379

Fax

() -

Project Information

Sponsor DUNS Number

010060101

Is this an existing project?

No

Project Title

Active Connections in Hopewell

Provide a description of the project and a clearly defined scope of the improvements to be made utilizing
Transportation Alternatives funds. Should additional space be needed, please use the Upload Supporting
Documents feature. Label the document “Project Description".

The City of Hopewell, Virginia is a small, working-class community of 22,591 residents located at the confluence of
the Appomattox and James Rivers. Hopewell has been focusing its revitalization along the riverfront and in connecting
its neighborhoods to the downtown. Through shared-use paths, the City has begun connecting neighborhoods to
Mathis Park, Hopewell High School, and Patrick Copeland Elementary School. Hopewell is also working to connect the
Hopewell Marina, recently opened Boathouse at City Point restaurant, and Riverside Park Greenway to City Park and
Downtown Hopewell through the Hopewell Riverwalk Trail along the Appomattox River as part of a 22-mile regional
trail network. Both of these projects underscore the true goals of Hopewell: connecting the community and its
residents by bicycle and encouraging healthy, active living. This project will connect the two shared-use paths to a
new network of a combination of on-street shared bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes. These new bicycle routes
will be arteries connecting residential neighborhoods to the heart of Hopewell’s commerce, education, and recreation
for daily needs and activities. Along Route 10, a new 8-foot-wide asphalt trail will be built in the existing Right of Way.
All other bicycle routes will be in-street shared lanes, making use of the existing wide travel lanes. Neighborhood
routes will connect to newly designated bicycle lanes on major roads in Hopewell, uniting the corners of the
community and creating a direct, uninterrupted flow of bicycle connections between the existing shared use paths.
This will result in a safer, healthier, and more active Hopewell. This project spanning 65,794 linear feet is Phase I of a
two-phased city-wide network of bicycle lanes and shared-use paths intended to increase accessibility, encourage
bicycling and outdoor activity, and more safely connect neighborhoods to key destinations. (See full description
attached.)

Project Short Description

Hopewell has focused its revitalization on connecting its neighborhoods to the downtown and riverfront. This project
connects two shared-use paths, four schools, six parks, and downtown destinations to a new city-wide network of
bicycle routes.

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 2 of 17  



Select primary category of eligibility even if other categories may apply.

Construction of bicycle and pedestrian facilities

Does this project qualify as a “Safe Routes to School” project based on this criteria below?

Eligible infrastructure activity
Project is located within 2 miles of an elementary / middle school (K-8th)

Yes

Do you wish to pursue this as a SRTS project?

No

  Location

Location

Districts Served

Richmond

MPOs Served

Tri-Cities
Metropolitan
Planning
Organization

PDCs Served

Crater

Jurisdictions Served

Hopewell City

According to the 2010 Census, is the population of your locality less than 5,000?

No

Is this project located within a Transportation Management Area (TMA)?

No

Identify beginning and ending termini as referenced on the location map.

Start Location

Atwater Road/River Road Intersection

End Location

City Point - Pecan Avenue/Water Street

ZIP Code

23860

ZIP +4

2700

  Funding

Project Funding

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 3 of 17  



Total Project Cost* is to be limited to the project described in this application and based on the beginning
and ending termini provided. This should not be considered the “whole” of a multi-phased project.
According to the attached Detailed Cost Estimate (Project Budget), the following project costs can be
demonstrated:

TA Funding (Current/Prior/Future) needed for this project - Cannot exceed
80% of Total Project Cost

$759,663

Local 20% Match Required - Based on the TA Funding above. Field
Autocalculated.

$189,916

Other Project Funds (Non-TA Funds) - Include local funds, other grants and
donations

$189,916

Total Project Cost* - Sum of above; should match the attached Detailed
Cost Estimate (Project Budget)

$949,579

Federal Transportation Alternatives Funding

This Application (FY2019-FY2020) Prior TA Funding Received

Federal TA Funds $759,663 $0

Local 20% Match $189,916 $0

Do you plan to use in-kind to meet all or part of the 20% local match requirement?

No

If not using in-kind, identify the proposed funding source(s) for the required match on this project.

The $189,916.00 in matching funds are from the Hopewell General Fund.

A local 20% match contribution is required – how much additional local contribution (above the required
20%) is proposed? Include this amount in Other Project Funds (Non-TA Funds).

$0

Is there additional (above the 20% match) non-sponsor or non-local funding secured at this time - other
grants, state funds, corporate donations, etc.?

No

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 4 of 17  



If federal funds are expended on PE, regulations require that the project progress to a completed
construction phase. In the event that additional TA funding is not secured, what funding source(s) will be
utilized to complete this project?

The City of Hopewell approved these Bike Lane Improvements as specified in the City's Comprehensive Plan on
October 10, 2017. The City is committed to ensuring the completion of the project and is committing its cash match to
cover most preliminary engineering and design costs. As both PE and Construction funding are efficiently proposed
in the total Phase I project budget, this project would be fully implemented upon receipt of this TA grant application.
No additional TA funding would be necessary for Phase I to be completed successfully and for a bicycle route network
to be created in Hopewell. Phase II (not proposed for funding at this time) would simply expand and extend bicycle
routes and build on the network already established in Phase I.

  Concept

Project Concept

Describe the sponsors on-site evaluation to determine the project's constructability and cost. Include
the date and identify those who attended the on-site evaluation.

The City of Hopewell has been developing plans for bicycle routes and accessibility for years. Since the development
of Comprehensive Plan 2027, multiple public hearings, Council meetings, and project meetings have advanced it
from idea to the formal proposal here. The concept and preliminary mapping have been developed by Construction
Manager Austin Anderson, City Engineer Johnnie Butler, GIS Coordinator David Thompson, and Economic
Development Specialist Jake Elder. Anderson and Butler have a combined over 50 years of experience for working
on similar types of multi-modal and transportation projects. The Draft Comprehensive Plan was reviewed in April 2016
and an October 2017 site tour involving Anderson and Elder identified specific segments, lengths, and project
requirements.

Describe any possible challenges or obstacles that could require additional design consideration, cost
or design waivers.

None for Phase I of this project. It is intentionally simple works within existing right of ways and wide roadways.
Contingency costs are built into the budget in the event there are cost complications.

Has the local VDOT Office had an opportunity to offer comments regarding the project scope, conceptual
project plans, preliminary drawings or cost estimate? Have these comments been incorporated into this
application?

No

The use of federal transportation funds requires compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA); describe how this project will meet these design requirements. If this is a pedestrian and/or
bicycle facility, include a description of the proposed surface (concrete, asphalt, etc.) and width of the
completed facility including any bridges.

Most of the project will be on-street bicycle markings and lane. The surface for the trail along Route 10 will be asphalt
with a width of 8-feet.

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 5 of 17  



Describe any anticipated challenges to meeting ADA design requirements including slope / terrain,
width/clearance limitations, historic features, etc.

None.

Is the project located within a designated historic district or within a downtown business district?

Yes

How will the project improve the aesthetic value of the affected area? What economic impacts will the
proposed changes have?

The Active Connections in Hopewell bicycle network will directly connect more residential neighborhoods across
Hopewell, including to, from, and around Downtown Hopewell - the city's central business district. It will increase
accessibility for students, families, and residents throughout the downtown, where new restaurants, shops, and bars
are complementing the renovated Beacon Theatre and Appomattox Regional Library across from City Park.
Downtown Hopewell also connects to City Park which is the eastern terminus of the incoming Riverwalk Trail for
pedestrians and bicyclists. In fact, it will greatly increase connectivity without changing the appearance of the
downtown.

It is expected that the sponsor will maintain the facility for its useful life. Provide details regarding
maintenance and upkeep of the completed facility – identify who will be providing upkeep, what services
will be provided, how long the services will be provided and where the funding for these services will
come from.

The City of Hopewell will be maintaining this project out of its operating budget. Due to the limited number of new
trails and the main signs and stripings, the City does not anticipate significant maintenance and upkeep costs.

Project Features

As a pedestrian and/or bicycle facility, mark which best describes the project’s primary transportation
function:

Residential connections

Does this project support or improve an existing or planned highway project?

Not applicable.

  Improves Transportation Network

Project Improves Transportation Network

Response Supporting Information

Does the project provide new access
(access that does not currently exist) to
transit stations, commuter lots, bus
stops, etc.?

Yes This project does provide new access to the only
bus transit in Hopewell - the Hopewell Circulator
- managed by the Petersburg Area Transit. The
proposed bicycle network would directly
intersect with bus stops along W. Randolph

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 6 of 17  



Road, South 6th Avenue, West Broadway, River
Road, Mesa Drive, South 15th Avenue, and
Downtown Hopewell. With no other public transit
or train access in Hopewell, this bicycle network
is both a cost-efficient and comprehensive way
to provide new access, connecting more
residents, students, and workers to the only
existing bus route through Hopewell and into the
surrounding region. This proposed bicycle
network also provides new access to connect
the community to the three elementary schools
and the only high school in Hopewell. Combined,
these four schools serve 3,124 students – all of
which would be connected by Phase I of this
proposed project. Increased bicycle access will
provide families and students with new, healthy,
and active options of getting to and from school.

Does the project provide connections to
existing regional trails or pedestrian /
bicycle facilities? Does the project
provide a “missing link” in the existing
transportation network?

Yes Through the shared-use Cabin Creek Trail, the
City has begun connecting neighborhoods to
Mathis Park, Hopewell High School, and Patrick
Copeland Elementary School. With the incoming
shared-use Riverwalk Trail, Hopewell is
connecting the Hopewell Marina, recently
opened Boathouse at City Point restaurant, and
Riverside Park Greenway to City Park and
Downtown Hopewell along the Appomattox
River as part of a 22-mile regional trail network.
But these two trails, the latter and longer of which
will only be two miles when completed, are
separated across the city and there are no
connections or bicycle facilities that would direct
users across the city. Phase I of the Active
Connections in Hopewell project directly links
these two shared-use trails, connects to the
Appomattox River Trail, and creates an
extensive and accessible bicycle network
across Hopewell. This project is consistent with
the goals and objectives of the City of
Hopewell's Comprehensive Plan 2027, Tri-
Cities MPO 2040 Plan, and 2015 Bicycle,
Transit, and Pedestrian Connector Plan.

Does the project provide
bicycle/pedestrian facilities where none
previously existed?

Yes Phase I incorporates 12 new bicycle lane
segments across 18 streets (shown in green on
the attached map) and two neighborhood
connector routes across 13 streets (shown in
green on the attached map). Phase I alone
facilitates east to west connections and north toProject ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 7 of 17  



facilitates east to west connections and north to
south connections with an interconnected
network of bicycle routes linking major
community destinations, including City Point,
City Park, the Hopewell Marina, the Boathouse
Restaurant, John Randolph Medical Center, City
Hall, Downtown Hopewell, the Hopewell
Community Center, Beacon Theatre, and Mathis
Park. In FY2019, the following project segments
will be constructed: - Segment #1 W Randolph
Rd Main St to 6th Ave – 2,158 LF - Segment #2
Riverside Loop, Riverside Ave, N 21st Ave, W
Broadway to N Mesa Drive – 8,397 LF -
Segment #3 Mesa Drive between W Broadway
and Miles/Danville and River Road – 4,759 LF -
Segment #4 Miles Ave between S Mesa Drive
and Oaklawn Blvd – 3,861 LF - Segment #5
Danville Ave between S Mesa Drive to S 17th to
S 15th Ave – 5,361 LF - Segment #6 W
Broadway between N 21st Ave and Main St
Connecting to W Randolph Rd – 4,840 LF In
FY2019, the following project segments will be
added to the FY2019 routes: - Segment #1 & 2
Oaklawn Blvd/S 15th Ave between Winston
Churchill Drive and W Broadway – 7,701 LF -
Segment #3 Appomattox St to Cedar Lane to
Pecan Ave – 6,585 LF - Segment #5 City Point
Rd between 6th Ave and Hopewell St – 2,946
LF - Segment #6 Neighborhood Connector
Loop #1 – 14,179 LF - Segment #7
Neighborhood Connector Loop #2 Smithfield
Ave – 5,007 LF

Does this project increase opportunities
to meet daily needs without motorized
transportation?

Yes Hopewell currently lacks public transit, and with
few bicycle trails, accessibility is low unless you
have a car. However, Hopewell has been
preparing this project for years to connect the
community – from residential neighborhoods to
schools, parks, the riverfront, and downtown
commercial activity. This comprehensive bicycle
network would be transformative for the
community and would vastly increase
accessibility for the residents who do not have
access to or choose not to commute by
motorized transportation. 11.8% of households
do not have a vehicle available in Hopewell -
almost twice the Virginia rate (6.4%), and 41.5%
only have one vehicle available - 1.5 times the

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 8 of 17  



Virginia rate (30.5%). Yet, with little bus transit,
fewer than 1% of workers commute by public
transit in Hopewell - compared to 4.6% of
workers in Virginia overall. Clearly defined and
safe bicycle routes would vastly improve the
options for workers, students, and other
residents in getting around Hopewell. This
proposed bicycle network also connects the
community to four schools in Hopewell: the
Patrick Copeland Elementary School (654
students), the Harry E. James Elementary
School (648 students), Dupont Elementary
School (692), and Hopewell High School (1,130
students). These are all three of the elementary
schools and the only high school in Hopewell.
Combined, these four schools serve 3,124
students – all of which are connected by Phase I
of this proposed project. Increased bicycle
access will provide families and students with
more affordable and more active means of
getting to and from school. The project is also
critical for a working-class, economically-
depressed community. Hopewell lags behind
Virginia with a median household income of only
$39,064 compared to Virginia's $65,015.
Moreover, Hopewell's per capita income is a
paltry $20,700, only 61% of Virginia's PCI of
$34,152. Yet, a new bicycle network in tandem
with other efforts to redevelop will be essential to
this revitalization.

Does this project add features/devices
that will improve bicycle and pedestrian
safety (ex. crosswalks, bike/ped signals,
lighting, physical barriers to separate
facilities, etc.)?

Yes This project includes clearly marked on-street
bicycle lanes with lane striping and consistent
signage directing bicycles around Hopewell.

Does this project incorporate traffic
calming design elements such as bump
outs, raised intersections, street trees or
crosswalks in a contrasting color?

No Bike lanes at crosswalks would be in contrasting
colors so as to enhance safety for pedestrians
and bicyclists alike. Along Route 10, separate
bicycle lanes along in 8-foot-wide asphalt will
keep separate vehicular traffic from cyclists and
pedestrians. Parts of the bike lanes along
Broadway and Mesa Drive will have land buffers.

Is this project in the locality’s
local/regional transportation plan? If yes,
provide name of plan and date

Yes The Citywide Bicycle Map endorsed by City
Council on October 10, 2017. It has been in the
draft Comprehensive Plan 2027 for years and

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 9 of 17  



completed. received its most prominent public discussions
in April 2016 and October 2017. The upcoming
public hearing for federal funding in mid-
November will further showcase this proposed
bicycle network to the community.

  Sponsor's Ability to Administer

Sponsor’s Ability to Administer Federal Project

Federal regulations require that the sponsor provide a full-time employee who is responsible for all
major project decisions as explained in Chapter 3.1 of the VDOT LAP Manual. This person is referred to
as the sponsor’s Responsible Person (RP) and may or may not be the Project Manager. Failure to provide
a qualified RP may eliminate the project from consideration.

Identify the full-time staff member assigned as the “Responsible Person” for this project:

Name

Austin Anderson

Title

Construction Manager

Years in this position

3

39. Describe the experience and / or training that qualifies this individual to be the responsible person
for a federal-aid transportation project.

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 10 of 17  



Education/Certifications

Anderson received his Bachelor's
of Science from the Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State
University in 2007. In 2015,
Anderson received his license as
Stormwater Management and
Erosion and Sediment Control
Combined Administrator through
the Virginia Department of
Environmental Quality.

Training / Classes

Anderson received his Engineer-in-
Training Certificate in 2008 through
the Virginia Department of
Professional and Occupational
Regulation.

Project Related Experience

Anderson has been the Project
Manager for over 20 bridge
maintenance, rehabilitation,
construction and reconstruction
projects in the District of Columbia,
State of Maryland, and
Commonwealth of Virginia between
2008-2014, including seven federal
aid bridge projects. Anderson also
managed a VDOT and locally
funded transportation project at
Stingfellow Road, which was a $3
million portion of a $22 million
project between 2013-2014 in
Fairfax County. Though this project
did not have federal funding, it was
administered by VDOT, held to
federal standards, and received a
CQIP score of 95%. This project
was completed on time and on
budget. Anderson has also been
the Project Manager for a City of
Hopewell traffic signal project at the
Hummel Ross Road and E.
Randolph Road intersection in
2016, which was advertised in April
2016, awarded in May 2016, and
completed in October 2016.
Anderson oversaw all phases of
this project from preliminary
engineering to construction. This
was completed on time and on
budget.

Select from the following the best choice describing the RP’s experience:

The RP has successful experience providing oversight or administering a federal-aid transportation project within the
previous five years

Regarding the experience noted above, briefly describe the two (2) most recent federal-aid projects
including project scope, phases included (PE, RW, CN), cost and whether or not the project finished on-
time and on-budget.

1) Glebe Road Bridge over Route 50 (Arlington County, VA): Managed the entire $5 million project from 2011-2012,
including completely new signalized intersections on either side of the bridge with new foundations, poles, arms,
controllers, detection equipment, pedestrian actuation, and new lane striping. All work was on construction of a multi-
modal trail and bridge. This project was completed on-time and on-budget. 2) Twin Lakes Parkway Bridge
Reconstruction (Fairfax County, VA): Managed the $2 million project in 2014. Phases included PE, surveying, RW,
construction, and all required reporting for this multi-modal trail and bridge reconstruction project. This project was
completed on-time and on-budget.

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 11 of 17  



Describe the RP’s role and responsibilities while overseeing these projects.

Austin Anderson served as the Project Manager for both of these two multi-modal construction projects listed,
managing up to 70 employees and contractors at peak construction.

Has the RP completed VDOT’s Core Curriculum on-line training found on VDOT’s Locally Administered
Projects webpage?

No

VDOT is required by federal regulation to ensure that the sponsor is adequately staffed to ensure the
project is satisfactorily completed. Sponsors may supplement their staff with consultants, including for
project management duties.

Is the Responsible Person also the Project Manager (PM)?

Yes

Will the sponsor need to supplement its staff to complete this federal-aid project?

No

Federal regulations require that the sponsor demonstrate “sufficient accounting controls” to administer
a federal-aid project. This requirement is identified in Chapter 2.2 of the VDOT LAP Manual. Briefly
describe the local financial management system – currently in place that will track / monitor project costs.
Include the type of software used (if applicable) and the process by which costs are verified for
reimbursement.

The City of Hopewell uses MUNIS for tracking project costs and effectively managing its projects. Approved vendor
invoices with Accounts Payable check copies accompany all reimbursement requests to demonstrate that vendors
have been paid before seeking reimbursement. Project Manager Austin Anderson has significant experience working
with VDOT LAP office on processing reimbursement requests for eligible City of Hopewell projects.

  Project's Readiness to Proceed

Project's Readiness to Proceed

Design / engineering will be performed:

Utilizing an outside consultant firm yet to be procured

Is this project part of a larger / multi-phased construction project?

Yes

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 12 of 17  



Include a map clearly identifying the proposed phases and their status, and describe how the prior /
future phases relate to this project.

See map attached. The orange routes are shared use pathways that are either completed already or being
implemented right now. Phase I: Blue and green routes are included in this project. Total Cost: $949,579.00 Phase II:
The black routes are future multimodal connectivity projects that will increase access and further enhance efficacy
and access of this project with the blue and green routes. The black routes will in no way inhibit the current proposal,
and the current proposal will be a fully connected network without the black routes being implemented. Total Cost:
TBD at current time

These funds will not participate in the costs of master plans, feasibility and/or preliminary engineering
studies. Has this work been completed using other funding source(s)?

Yes

Attach a copy of the plan / study and briefly summarize the results below.

This proposed bicycle network in the Active Connections in Hopewell project has been described and planned
already in the Comprehensive Plan 2027, consistent with the goals of the City of Hopewell and approved by the City
Council and supported by the MPO.

Has design work started?

No

The ability to secure right of way (including easements) needed for a project is critical to a project’s
success; which of the following best describes the right of way situation for this project:

All right of way required is publicly owned (local and/or state)

This program will not participate in the cost of relocating overhead utilities for scenic beautification or
betterment purposes. It will however participate in the costs required to eliminate conflicts. Are there
existing utility poles located within the proposed project area that will need to be relocated in order to
complete the proposed improvements and/or meet ADA width/clearance requirements?

No

Are there other conflicts / obstacles that must be addressed for the project to move forward?

No conflicts / obstacles present

If awarded, these funds will be available October 1, 2018 - the beginning of the federal fiscal year 2019.
How long after this date will you be ready to begin incurring costs for reimbursement?

6 months

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 13 of 17  



  Sponsor Certification

Sponsor Certification

Public Notice Attached

No

Date of Public Hearing

Endorsement Attached

No

Date of Endorsement

Resolution Attached

No

Date of Resolution from Project Sponsor

Sponsor certifies the following:

We are familiar with Transportation Alternatives eligibility criteria and the Locally Administered
Projects (LAP) Manual.

Yes

We will provide technical guidance and oversight to staff and/or consultants throughout project
development.

Yes

Budget accurately reflects cost of proposed project based on preliminary work performed.

Yes

Project development will comply with all state and federal regulations, including ADA requirements.

Yes

We understand this project must be substantially complete and/or ready for construction within four
(4) years of the initial federal funding.

Yes

We will be responsible for ensuring future maintenance and operating costs of the completed
project.

Yes

By selecting agree I certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Yes

Sponsor Name

Austin Anderson

Date

11/1/2017

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 14 of 17  



  Attachments

Detailed Cost Estimate (Project Budget)

Click to download a template.

PROJECT BUDGET REQUIRED FOR ALL APPLICATIONS

This template is an example to be used in creating a detailed project cost estimate. Prepare a budget that is broken
down by developmental phases – Preliminary Engineering, Right of Way and Construction – including specific line
items that are appropriate to the project described in this application.

VDOT Project Oversight Charges include coordination, plan review, environmental charges, attendance at the pre-
construction meeting, and Civil Rights reviews, as required. Five to seven percent of the total cost of PE, RW, and CN
is a good rule of thumb for determining VDOT charges on a Transportation Alternatives Program project.

If this project is part of a larger, multi-phased endeavor, the project budget should only address costs for the specific
project scope described in the current application and identified by the termini provided. Remember that with new TA
projects, each project segment (termini) will be funded separately receiving a new project agreement and project
number. EXCEPTION: If this project has received past TE/TA funds and is a continuation of the proposed TE/TA
project as described in previous applications, a separate column should be added to the budget identifying the prior
funds received. The current/future application funds should be kept separately, and when added to prior funds,
should equal the total project cost.

Provide a general schedule – tentative begin and end dates – for each phase. These dates will assist in planning and
preparation for each new developmental phase. Note that a new federal authorization is required for each phase (PE,
RW, CN) and must be secured prior to moving forward.

  Supporting Documents

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 15 of 17  

https://smartportal.virginiahb2.org/app/components/application/attachment_c.docx


Current Attachments

Description

City Council Approval Documentation

Attachment Type

Locality Concurrence with Change

File Name

Council Approval.pdf

Description

Full Project Description

Attachment Type

Other

File Name

Active Connections in Hopewell - Project Description.pdf

Description

Project Budget

Attachment Type

Detailed Cost Estimate

File Name

Active Connections in Hopewell Project Budget.pdf

Description

FYI - Public Notice, MPO Endorsement, and Resolution

Attachment Type

Other

File Name

Other Attachments .pdf

Description

Comprehensive Plan 2027 Excerpt

Attachment Type

Local Comprehensive Plan

File Name

Comprehensive Plan 2027 Excerpt.pdf

Description

Tri-Cities MPO 2040 Plan

Attachment Type

Local/Regional Economic Development Strategy

File Name

Tri-Cities MPO_2040MTP_Adopted10Aug17.pdf

Description

Draft - Bicycle Transit Pedestrian Connector Plan

Attachment Type

Other

File Name

Draft_BTP Connector Plan_11-1-17.pdf

Description

Project Map

Attachment Type

Project Sketch

File Name

Active Connections in Hopewell - Project Map.pdf

 
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
600 East Main Street, Suite 2102
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 786-4440

 
VDOT Central Office

1401 East Broad Street
Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 367-7623 (toll-free)
711 (hearing impaired)

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 16 of 17  



  © 2016 Commonwealth Transportation Board

Project ID: F10-0000003028-R01 Page 17 of 17  



Active Connections in Hopewell 

 
Project Description 
The City of Hopewell, Virginia is a small, working-class, waterfront community of 22,591 residents 
located at the confluence of the Appomattox and James Rivers. Hopewell has been focusing its 
revitalization along the riverfront and in connecting its neighborhoods to the downtown, which 
the City had been lacking previously. Through shared-use paths, the City has begun connecting 
neighborhoods to Mathis Park, Hopewell High School, and Patrick Copeland Elementary School. 
Hopewell is also working to connect the Hopewell Marina, recently opened Boathouse at City 
Point restaurant, and Riverside Park Greenway to City Park and Downtown Hopewell through the 
Hopewell Riverwalk Trail along the Appomattox River as part of a 22-mile regional trail network. 
Both of these projects underscore the true goals of Hopewell: connecting the community and its 
residents by bicycle and encouraging healthy, active living. 
 
This project will connect the two shared-use paths to a new network of a combination of on-
street shared bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes. These new bicycle routes will be arteries 
connecting residential neighborhoods to the heart of Hopewell’s commerce, education, and 
recreation for daily needs and activities. This comprehensive bicycle network would be 
transformative for the community and would vastly increase accessibility for the residents who 
do not have access to or choose not to commute by car. According to the U.S. Census American 
Community Survey 2011-2015, 11.8% of households in Hopewell do not have a vehicle available 
- almost twice the Virginia rate (6.4%), and 41.5% in Hopewell only have one vehicle available - 
1.5 times the Virginia rate (30.5%). Yet, with only one bus line in Hopewell, fewer than 1% of 
workers commute by public transportation in Hopewell - compared to 4.6% of workers in Virginia 
overall. Clearly defined and safe bicycle routes would vastly improve the options for workers, 
students, and other residents in getting around Hopewell. 
 
Community Demographic Profile Hopewell Virginia 

No Vehicle Available 11.8% 6.4% 

One Vehicle Available 41.5% 30.5% 

Commute To Work by Vehicle 82.8% 77.5% 

Commute To Work by Carpool 11.5% 9.4% 

Public Transportation 0.9% 4.6% 

Walked or Other Means 3.4% 3.9% 

Per Capita Income $20,700  $34,152  

Median Household Income $39,064  $65,015  

Elementary School 46.2% 38.3% 

High School  22.1% 19.7% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2011-2015 

 
Additionally, this proposed bicycle network connects the community to four schools in Hopewell: 
the Patrick Copeland Elementary School (654 students), the Harry E. James Elementary School 
(648 students), Dupont Elementary School (692), and Hopewell High School (1,130 students). 



These are all three of the elementary schools and the only high school in Hopewell. Combined, 
these four schools serve 3,124 students – all of which are connected by Phase I of this proposed 
project. Increased bicycle access will provide families and students with more affordable and 
more active means of getting to and from school. The Cabin Creek Trail, which currently serves a 
small neighborhood around Patrick Copeland Elementary School and Hopewell High School, will 
be connected to this broad network as well. 
 
This project is also critical for the working-class, economically-depressed community that is 
Hopewell. The City lags behind Virginia with a median household income of only $39,064 
compared to Virginia's MHI of $65,015. Moreover, Hopewell's per capita income is a meager 
$20,700, only 61% of Virginia's PCI of $34,152. Yet, Hopewell is challenging itself to revitalize its 
community and needs VDOT assistance to fully realize its new goals and visions. Establishing a 
completely new bicycle network in tandem with efforts to develop other riverfront trails and 
downtown economic development enhancements will be essential to this revitalization. 
 
This $949,579 project spanning 65,794 linear feet is Phase I of a two-phased city-wide network 
of bicycle lanes and shared-use paths intended to increase accessibility, encourage bicycling and 
outdoor activity, and more safely connect neighborhoods to key community destinations. Phase 
I alone facilitates east to west and north to south connections with a network of bicycle routes 
linking major community destinations, including City Point, City Park, the Hopewell Marina, the 
Boathouse Restaurant, John Randolph Medical Center, City Hall, Downtown Hopewell, the 
Hopewell Community Center, Beacon Theatre, and Mathis Park.  
 
Phase I incorporates 12 new bicycle lane segments across 18 streets (shown in green on the 
attached map) and two neighborhood connector routes across 13 streets (shown in green on the 
attached map). Along Route 10, a new 8-foot-wide asphalt trail will be built in the existing Right 
of Way. All other bicycle routes will be in-street shared lanes, making use of the existing wide 
travel lanes. Neighborhood routes will connect to newly designated bicycle lanes on major roads 
in Hopewell, uniting the corners of the community and creating a direct, uninterrupted flow of 
bicycle connections between the existing shared use paths. This will result in a safer, healthier, 
and more active Hopewell.  
 
Phase I will be completed over two years, covering a total of 65,794 linear feet. See specific 
project segments below for FY2019 and FY2020 implementation. 
 
In FY2019, the following project segments will be constructed: 

➢ Segment #1 W Randolph Rd Main St to 6th Ave – 2,158 LF (blue) 
➢ Segment #2 Riverside Loop, Riverside Ave, N 21st Ave, W Broadway to N Mesa Drive – 

8,397 LF (blue) 
➢ Segment #3 Mesa Drive between W Broadway and Miles/Danville and River Road – 

4,759 LF (blue) 
➢ Segment #4 Miles Ave between S Mesa Drive and Oaklawn Blvd – 3,861 LF (blue) 
➢ Segment #5 Danville Ave between S Mesa Drive to S 17th to S 15th Ave – 5,361 LF (blue) 



➢ Segment #6 W Broadway between N 21st Ave and Main St Connecting to W Randolph 
Rd – 4,840 LF (blue) 
 

In FY2020, the following project segments will be added to the FY2019 routes: 

➢ Segment #1 & 2 Oaklawn Blvd/S 15th Ave between Winston Churchill Drive and W 
Broadway – 7,701 LF (blue) 

➢ Segment #3 Appomattox St to Cedar Lane to Pecan Ave – 6,585 LF (blue) 
➢ Segment #5 City Point Rd between 6th Ave and Hopewell St – 2,946 LF (blue) 
➢ Segment #6 Neighborhood Connector Loop #1 – 14,179 LF (green) 
➢ Segment #7 Neighborhood Connector Loop #2 Smithfield Ave – 5,007 LF (green) 

 
Note: All the above segments are shown in the attached map in blue except for the two 
Neighborhood Connector Loops, which are shown in the map in green. 
 



¯
Imagery, Copyright 2013

Commonwealth of Virginia

§̈¦295

£¤10

§̈¦295

Legend
Bike Paths

Bicycle Lanes
Future Multimodal Projects
Neighborhood Connectors
Shared Use Paths

Streets
City of Hopewell Limits

§̈¦295

£¤10

 
Sticky Note
FY2019 - Segment 1

 
Sticky Note
FY2019 - Segment 2

 
Sticky Note
FY2019 - Segment 3

 
Sticky Note
FY2019 - Segment 4

 
Sticky Note
FY2019 - Segment 5

 
Sticky Note
FY2019 - Segment 6

 
Sticky Note
FY2020 - Segment 1 & 2

 
Sticky Note
FY2020 - Segment 3

 
Sticky Note
FY2020 - Segment 5

 
Sticky Note
FY2020 - Segment 6 Neighborhood Connector

 
Sticky Note
FY2020 - Segment 7 Neighborhood Connector



1 

 

Project Budget – Active Connections in Hopewell 
 

 

 

 

 

Segment #1 W Randolph Rd Main St to 6th 

Ave – 2158 LF 
Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $11,970 3/1/2018 5/1/2018 

Environmental Document $5,000 3/1/2018 5/1/2018 

 Surveying $5,000 3/1/2018 5/1/2018 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 3/1/2018 5/1/2018 

Administrative Costs $5,000 3/1/2018 5/1/2018 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $28,970   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Sidewalk Demo/Hard Surface Excavation $15,000 5/2/2018 6/1/2018 

Compact Subgrade and Place VDOT 21B $18,000 6/2/2018 6/22/2018 

Install SM-9.5A Trail Surface $42,000 6/23/2018 7/15/2018 

Upgrade ADA Ramps & Crosswalks $15,000 6/23/2018 7/15/2018 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $13,500 5/2/2018 7/15/2018 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $4,500 5/2/2018 7/15/2018 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $2,700 5/2/2018 7/15/2018 

Contingency (10% of CN) $9,000 5/2/2018 7/15/2018 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $119,700   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $148,670   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$10,406 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $159,076   



2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #2 Riverside Loop, Riverside Ave, 

N 21st Ave, W Broadway to N Mesa Dr – 

8397 LF 

Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $3,059 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $12,559   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Basic Bicycle Lanes (1 Direction, No Buffer) $23,000 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $3,450 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $1,150 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $690 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Contingency (10% of CN) $2,300 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $30,590   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $43,149   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$3,020 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $46,169   



3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #3 Mesa Drive between W 

Broadway and Miles/Danville and River 

Road – 4759 LF 

Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $9,709 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $19,209   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Buffered Bicycle Lanes (Both Directions) $73,000 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $10,950 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $3,650 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $2,190 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Contingency (10% of CN) $7,300 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $97,090   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $116,299   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$8,140 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $124,439   



4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #4 Miles Ave between S Mesa 

Drive and Oaklawn Blvd – 3861 LF 
Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $3,890 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $13,390   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Buffered Bicycle Lanes (One Direction) $29,250 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $4,387 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $1,462 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $877 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Contingency (10% of CN) $2,925 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $38,901   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $52,291   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$3,660 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $55,951   



5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #5 Danville Ave between S Mesa 

Dr to S 17th to S 15th Ave – 5,361 LF 
Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $5,400 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $14,900   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Buffered Bicycle Lanes (One Direction) $40,600 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $6,090 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $2,030 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $1,218 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Contingency (10% of CN) $4,060 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $53,998   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $68,898   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$4,822 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $73,720   



6 

 

 

Segment #6 W Broadway between N 21st 

Ave and Main St Connecting to W 

Randolph Rd – 4,840 LF 

Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $4,876 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2018 12/31/2018 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $14,376   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Buffered Bicycle Lanes (One Direction) $36,667 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $5,500 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $1,834 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $1,100 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

Contingency (10% of CN) $3,667 5/1/2019 12/31/2019 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $48,768   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $63,144   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$4,420 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $67,564   



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #1 & 2 Oaklawn Blvd/S 15th Ave 

between Winston Churchill Drive and W 

Broadway – 7701 LF 

Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $5,840 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $15,340   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Buffered Bicycle Lanes (One Direction) $58,400 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $8,760 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $2,920 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $1,800 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Contingency (10% of CN) $5,840 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $77,720   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $93,060   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$6,500 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $99,560   



2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #3 Appomattox St to Cedar Lane 

to Pecan Ave – 6585 LF 
Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $13,300 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $22,800   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Basic Bicycle Lanes (Both Directions) $99,800 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $14,970 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $4,990 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $3,000 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Contingency (10% of CN) $9,980 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $132,740   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $155,540   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$10,900 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $166,440   



3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #5 City Point Rd between 6th Ave 

and Hopewell St – 2946 LF 
Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $1,100 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $10,600   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Basic Bicycle Lanes (One Direction) $8,000 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $1,200 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $400 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $240 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Contingency (10% of CN) $800 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $10,640   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $21,240   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$1,500 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $22,740   



4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #6 Neighborhood Connector Loop 

#1 – 14,179 LF 
Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $7,180 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $16,680   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Sharrows with Signage (Both Directions) $54,000 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $8,100 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $2,700 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $1,600 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Contingency (10% of CN) $5,400 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $71,800   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $88,480   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$6,200 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $94,680   



5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Segment #7 Neighborhood Connector Loop 

#2 Smithfield Ave – 5007 LF 
Project Costs 

Project Schedule 

Tentative 

Begin Date 

Tentative  

End Date 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE   

Engineering/Design Fees $1,900 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Environmental Document $1,500 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

 Surveying $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Advance Right of Way  
(Incl. title research, plan/plat prep, appraisals, etc.) 

$2,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

Administrative Costs $3,000 7/1/2019 12/31/19 

PE Phase TOTAL COSTS $11,400   

RIGHT OF WAY PHASE   

Right of Way Purchase $0   

Attorney Fees (Incl. negotiation, recording deeds, etc.) $0   

Utility Relocation $0   

RW Phase TOTAL COSTS $0   

CONSTRUCTION PHASE   

*Include construction line items from 

engineer’s estimate, add rows as needed 
   

Sharrows with Signage (Both Directions) $19,000 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Construction Management (15% of CN) $2,850 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Inspection Fees (5% of CN) $950 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Materials Testing (3% of CN) $570 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

Contingency (10% of CN) $1,900 5/1/2020 12/1/2020 

CN Phase TOTAL COSTS $25,270   

SUB-TOTAL COST (PE, RW & CN) $36,670   

VDOT Project Oversight Charges (7% of Sub 

Total) 
(Recommend 5-7% of sub-total costs) 

 

$2,570 
  

TOTAL PROJECT COST $39,240   



Council Action Form  [CAF]  11-21-2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-21- 
2017  

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Regular Business – Item R-4C  

 
The City of Hopewell has the opportunity each February 1st to submit new street candidates to the 
Virginia Department of Transportation for their inclusion into the lane mileage payment program.   The 
City expects to have several new subdivision streets accepted then inducted into the City’s Right-of-Way 
Management system (i.e. Parkview Point, Anchor Point, Cobblestone).  In addition, DPW has found a 
few subdivision or local streets that were not included in past reports for various reasons (i.e. Rose Lawn 
Terrace, Elm Court).  These random location streets also need to be submitted for inclusion.   
  

ISSUE:  In May/June 2018, VDOT Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) will consider inclusion and 
approvals based on the VDOT Residency and VDOT District Office and Central Office recommendations.  The 
additions will become affective in upcoming FY18/19 VDOT Street Payments to the City.  
 
A few examples of the new qualifying streets are as follow: 

1. Parkview Pointe Subdivision (Section 2) [Yellowstone Dr./Yosemite Ct./Glacier Bay Ct.] 
2. Two new street sections in the Cobblestone Subdivision (Cobblestone Lane & Court) 
3. One new street section in the Anchor Point Subdivision (Eagle Court)  
4. N. 6th Avenue road widening (Green Plains Plant Entrance Lane)  
5. Various streets found to be omitted in previous inventory reports (Rose Lawn Terrace and Elm Court) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends Approval - A formal resolution action to be passed by the 
City Council endorsing the submitted street additions for the upcoming FY18/19 edition of the VDOT Urban 
Maintenance Inventory as additional lane mileage in the City of Hopewell.   
 
TIMING:   City Council Action is recommended on November 21st 2017.   The resolution letter needs to be 
submitted to VDOT by December 1st 2017 to accompany our latest round of lane mileage reporting. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  The City’s annual Lane Mileage Street Payment will increase based on the additions.  
 
STAFF:   Charles Dane, Interim City Manager; Edward Watson, DPW-Director; Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 

 





CO
BB

LE
ST

ON
E 

DR

CE
DA

R L
EV

EL
 RD

CO
BB

LE
ST

ONE DR

CO
BB

LE
ST

ON
E D

R

CE
DA

R L
EV

EL
 RD

STONE MILL DR

COBBLESTONE CT

COBBLESTONE LN

COBBLESTONE LN

COBBLESTONE PWY

COBBLESTONE PWY

COBBLESTONE PWY

COBBLESTONE TERR

COBBLESTONE TERR

COBBLESTONE TERR

¯
Imagery, Copyright 2013

Commonwealth of Virginia



 

 

 

 

R-5 
 

 



Council action form  11-21-2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-21 
2017 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Regular Business Agenda Item R-5  
 
Consider a request by Columbia Gas [NISOURCE] (a Natural GAS company located in Virginia) to 
place a gas distribution regulator station on City property.     
 
ISSUE: A new gas regulator station is necessary to ensure more reliable gas pressure distribution 
throughout the City Point zone of the City.   The regulator station is a major function of the distribution 
pressurization.  The static pressure distribution is monitored at this point in the network system.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Gas regulator stations are presently functioning in other zones of the City.   
 
The City Point zone needs the modern-day station to better manage and satisfy growing demands in this 
zone.  Several area specific locations were looked at as possible sites.  The proposed location was 
chosen as the best location given the proximity to the high pressure main, network system connection 
points, and the existing industrial zoning.  For these reasons the City Administration and Engineering 
Division recommends approval.  
 
TIMING:   City Council action is requested on the night of November 21st  2017  
 
BACKGROUND:   Columbia Gas of Virginia, which is headquartered in Chester, Virginia.    
COLUMBIA GAS is presently upgrading and renewing their citywide distribution network.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
Attachment #1: A GIS vicinity map depicting the chosen location.  
Attachment #2: Picture example of similar regulator station   
If necessary a staff presentation/report can be provided by Johnnie E. Butler, City Engineer. 

 



Council action form  11-21-2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-21 
2017 

 
STAFF:   Charles Dane, Interim CM, Jake Elder, ECO-DEV, Edward Watson/J. Butler, DPW 
 

1. Council Resolution – COLUMBIA GAS [NISOURCE] seeks Council Resolution to allow their 
network system controls, materials and equipment to encroach on Public Property/Place/Right-
of-Way.  COLUMBIA agrees to enter into a special Encroachment Authorization Agreement for 
the regulator station recognizing and accepting all the terms and conditions of the in-place 
Franchise Agreement [FA] with the City.    
    

RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends Approval 
 
TIMING:   City Council Action is requested on November 21st 2017.  The council resolution granting 
authorization, as well as the ratified Encroachment Authorization Agreement, will need to be established 
prior to approving the submitted network regulator plans, and the “Work in the Right-of-Way Permit” 
(WROW).        
  
BACKGROUND: N/A - Previously Stated above     
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No budgetary expense to the City.  Encroachment Authorization is to be carried 
under the existing franchise agreement terms and conditions.     
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
 

1. GIS proposed site location map   
2. Pictorial examples of the similar gas regulator sites. 

 
 
STAFF:    Charles Dane, Interim City Manager 
  Jake Elder, ECO-Dev.    
  Edward Watson, DPW Director 
  Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 
  Austin Anderson, DPW Div. Engr. - Projects Manager   









 

 

 

 

R-6 
 

 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 
H:\City Council\Agendas\2017\11-21-17\City Council Action Recruitment and Retention.doc 

       
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
    
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Hopewell Police Department - Recruitment and Retention 
Presentation    
 
ISSUE:  Presentation to inform Council on the issues that face law enforcement agencies nationwide 
with recruitment and retention.   This presentation will address starting pay inequities and compression 
issues within the Hopewell Police Department. .        
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve additional funding to adjust pay to assist with recruitment and 
retention of police officers.  The new pay plan for police will also address compression issues within the 
ranks.       
 
TIMING:   March 1 – July 1, 2018    
 
BACKGROUND:   The Hopewell Police Department went to Council approximately two years ago to 
adjust salaries for police officers to make is competitive with other law enforcement in Central Virginia.  
This adjustment did help for approximately 18-20 months with the recruitment of certified officers and 
the retention of new recruits.   
 
Many Law enforcement throughout Central Virginia to include the Virginia State Police took major 
steps to address recruitment and retention of police officers in July, 2017.   The new pay scales of these 
Departments were not available to the City of Hopewell Class and compensation study that was finished 
in March, 2017.      
 
This presentation will fully inform Council of the critical need to fund for adjustments to remain 
competitive with a depleting number of applicants for the position of police officer.                      
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Depends on Implementation Date – Fiscal Impact for 2018/19 Budget year ranges 
from 80,000 – 120, 000.  Salary and benefits savings in FY 17/18 would cover early implementation.   

 



Jurisdiction PO (Recruit) PO (Certified) PO1 PO2 PO3 PO4 Sergeant Lieutenant Captain Major Chief
Hopewell $41,762.45 $42,400.00 $44,268.32 $46,924.42 $49,739.89 $52,724.28 $55,887.74 $62,795.46 $70,556.98 $79,277.82 $100,086.43
Chesterfield $44,289.00 Neg. up to 46,500 $46,503.00 $48,363.00 $50,298.00 $52,310.00 $59,842.00 $65,826.00 $72,409.00 $79,650.00
Petersburg $43,900.00 $46,095.00 $46,095.00 $47,247.38 $48,248.56 $49,459.27 $64,131.00 $70,544.00 $77,598.00 $85,551.00 $114,939.00
VSP $44,290.00 $48,719.00 $48,719.00 $50,889.00 $54,978.00 $59,450.00 $69,678.00 $75,520.00 $81,910.00
Colonial Heights* $40,904.00 Neg. up to 45,000 $46,292.73 $47,681.51 $49,111.96 $48,611.00 $55,247.00 $63,455.00 $131,745.00
Prince George $42,298.00 Neg. of to $44,000 $44,300.00 $45,300.00 $46,300.00 $48,880.00 $52,546.00 $60,724.00 $81,094.00
Henrico $44,989.96 Neg. up to 47,000 $47,149.60 $49,412.90 $51,784.85 $54,270.66 $59,605.99 $68,608.35 $75,353.21 $90,897.36 $120,427.46
Hanover $44,263.00 Neg. up to 46,000 $46,503.00 $48,879.00 $51,323.00 $53,948.00 $56,664.00 $65,716.00 $72,550.00 $84,136.00 $124,484.00
Richmond $42,000.00 Neg. up to $45,000 $42,840.00 $43,911.00 $45,009.00 $46,449.00 $58,481.00 $66,109.00 $73,228.00
Ashland* $43,129.00 $45,000.00 $45,069.81 $47,097.95 $49,217.35 $51,186.05 $55,153.00 $59,565.00 $65,081.00 $75,415.00
HPD Proposed $44,268.00 See below $46,924.00 $49,749.00 $52,742.00 $55,888.00 $59,241.00 $66,563.00 $74,790.00 $84,034.00 $

Pay/Classification Study

* Colonial Heights PD - Has hired only certified officers the past 7 years - conducting an internal study of pay at this time 

* Ashland PD - Has hired  certified officers only for the past several years 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 
H:\City Council\Agendas\2017\11-21-17\City Council Action Recruitment and Retention.doc 

       
  

 

 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Power point Presentation and  Salary Study Document of surrounding 
jurisdictions conducted by Chief John Keohane.        
 
STAFF:   Chief John Keohane  
      Deputy Chief Robert Skowron  
      Director Lance Wolff                 
  

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Police 
Recruitment & Retention 



Issues
• Recruitment 

• Lowest starting pay in region – Not competitive
• Approx. 50% less applicants testing – several agencies competing for 

same qualified applicants
• Lost Competitive edge to hire Virginia Certified Officers 
• Hiring Process cost  - $2500

• Retention – Police Officers 
• 32 of 49 (65%) under 5 years experience
• Officer with 5 yrs. experience will have a pay raise with another agency 

certified officer starting pay   
• Current personnel is experiencing salary compression
• Lost 3 officers recently (2 competition Agencies, 1 move back closer to 

home in Texas) 
• Approx. 6 officers have applications out with our competitors in the 

region
• 3-5 retirements in the next 8 months  

• Cost of training/equipment:
• Recruit - $32,500 - $24,000 Academy/$8500 Equip.
• Certified officer - $8500 – Uniforms/Equip. 

2



3

Pay Comparison

Police Officer Salaries 2015 v. Today

Jurisdiction Entry 
Level 
2015 

Entry 
Level 2017  

Retirement CDP 

Henrico Co. $43,000  $44,900 VRS 1.85 Yes
Chesterfield Co.  $42,000 $44.289 VRS 1.85 Yes
Prince George Co. $41,468 $42,298 VRS 1.85 Yes
Hanover County $41,321 $44,263 VRS 1,85 Yes 
City of Richmond $41,000 $42,000 City 2%  Yes
Hopewell $41,000 $41,762 VRS 1.85 Yes
Petersburg $40,688 $43,900 VRS 1.7 Yes
Colonial Heights $40,102 $40,904* VRS 1.85 Yes
Virginia State Police $37,500 $44,290 VRS 1.85 Yes

Hopewell prior to 2015 $ 38,600 N/A VRS 1.7 Yes 



4

Pay Comparison

Police Officer Salaries in the Region

Jurisdiction Entry 
Level 

Certified Retirement CDP 

Henrico Co. $44,990 $47,000 VRS 1.85 Yes
Chesterfield Co.  $44,289 $46,500 VRS 1.85 Yes
Prince George Co. $42,298 $43,300 VRS 1.85 Yes
Hanover County $44,263 $46,000 VRS 1.85 Yes 
City of Richmond $41,000 $45,000 City 2%  Yes
Hopewell PROPOSED $44,268 CDP/6 mos.(6%) VRS 1.85 Yes
Petersburg $43,900 $46,095 VRS 1.7 Yes
Colonial Heights $40,904 $45,000* VRS 1.85 Yes
VA State Police $44,290 $48,719 VRS 1.85 Yes

Hopewell CURRENT $41,762 42,300 VRS 1.85 Yes 



5

Proposed Salary Pay Grade/Adjustments 

Increase Pay Grade by One Level – 6%

Rank  Today 
Grade 

Today 
Pay 

Proposed 
Grade 

Proposed 
Pay  

Police Officer 24 $41,763 25 $44,268
Police Officer I  25 $44,268 26 $46,924
Police Officer II 26 $46,924 27 $49,740
Police Officer III 27 $49,740 28 $52,724
Police Officer IV 28 $52,724 29 $55,888
Sergeant 29 $55,888 30 $59,241
Lieutenant  31 $62,795 32 $66.653
Captain 33 $70,557 34 $74,790
Major 35 $79,278 36 $84,034



Fiscal Impact (Estimated)
Police Officers / Supervisors 

• 6 supervisors – no pay increase – well above starting/proposed grade 
• 6 officers – no pay increase – well above starting/proposed grade 
• Other officers/supervisors between 1-6% adjustment  up to new grade 

FY 18/19 – Start date 
• Between $50,000 – 120,000 (reoccurring costs)

• Cost Depends on higher salary retirements in next 18 months 
• $35,000 savings thus far – higher salaries retired this year 

(FY17/18) reduces approx. cost from 120,000 to $85,000. 

FY 17/18 – Start between Feb. 1- Feb 28  - Preferred Start date 
• No cost due to Salary/benefits savings in PD budget – thru 9 

Pay periods $250,000 savings thus far 
• Approx. cost to start this budget year - $40,000 - $45,000    

6



• Maintain Competitiveness in the region
• Addresses Retention

• “Training Ground” for other agencies
• Helps Compression of Salaries 
• Separates Supervisors / Officer Salaries 
• Reduces training and equipment costs
• Reduces recruitment/hiring costs (background, 

physicals, psych testing, and polygraphs, etc.)

7

Benefits of Salary Adjustments



 

 

 

 

R-7 
 

 



Council action form  1-3-17        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-9-
2016 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    
 
Requesting approval to reallocate $25,000 of unused salary funds to acct# 503200 (Temp) and 
$48,343 to acct# 503130 (Management Consulting).  Total reallocation is $73,343. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Allow $25,000 from RE Assessor’s budget unused salary to be moved to Temp help for a temp clerk 
and $48,343 to be moved to Management Consulting. Total is $73,343 
 
 
TIMING:   As soon as possible 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

1) RE Tech position was not approved by Council for the 2018 budget. Temp staff is needed to 
transfer deeds and perform other clerical work currently done by higher level employees at 
higher salaries. Requesting the transfer of $25,000 from unused salary for this need. Also, as 
an additional note, the website is not available yet, creating exponentially more calls from the 
public. Workload has increased because of it. 
 

2) The Management Consulting account will be used to fund the 2019 reassessment of all the 
residential neighborhoods. A re-listing and reassessment of all properties in residential 
neighborhoods will be conducted in 2018 by an outside company.  

 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Explained in spreadsheet below. 
 
 
 
 

 



Council action form  1-3-17        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-9-
2016 

 
 
 

 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   None 
 
STAFF:    Patrizia Waggoner  

  
Assessor 
budget  
salaries 

  

Actual salary 
of each 

position in 
2018 fiscal 

budget 

Unused salary 
of vacant 
positions 

 Assessor $67,496    $74,500  $0  
 Appraiser $51,000    $52,540  $8,417  
 Appraiser $49,005    $52,540  $8,083  
 RE Tech. $35,000    $0  $0  
 Estimated - Comm Appr. $58,000    $62,000  $25,000  Estimate 

Total 2018 budget $260,501    $241,580  $41,500  
 Final total shown in MUNIS $259,074        
   1. Overage from  total Salaries $17,494        
   2. Overage from vacant positions $41,500    $41,500    
       Total Overage  $58,994        
 New balance of salary acct. after 

transfers $200,080    $200,080    

 
            BENEFITS 

     VRS Retirement – 14.60% of salary $59,000 14.60% $8,614.00 
  Group Life Insurance - .52% of salary $59,000 0.52% $306.80 
  Workers’ Comp – 1.07% $59,000 1.07% $631.30 
  Long-Term Disability - .27% $59,000 0.27% $159.30 
  Short-Term Disability - $1.50 per month $59,000     
  FICA/Medicare  (Social Security) – 7.65% $59,000 7.65% $4,513.50 
  Health Insurance – Approx. 13.90% $59,000 13.90% $8,201.00 
  TOTAL BENEFITS SAVINGS 

  
$22,425.90 

  TOTAL SALARY SAVINGS  
  

$59,000.00 
  Grand total of salary not used  

  
$81,425.90 

  already transferred to account - 503200 (Temp Acct) 
 

-$8,083 
  

   
$73,343 

  Transfer to account - 503200 (Temp Acct) 
  

-$25,000 
  Transfer to account -503130 (Mgmt Consulting) 

 
$48,343 

  



 

 

 

 

R-8 
 

 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Michael C. Bujakowski Ward #3   □ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore Ward #4 
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Roosevelt Edwards, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 2.2014 

       November 21, 2017 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approval of FY 2018 Hopewell Water Renewal Fund 
(Fund 032) Capital Projects Budget Amendment  
 
ISSUE:  Past budget practices did not require the Hopewell Water Renewal (HWR) Fund to 
budget for capital projects.  Sound budget practice entails having the local governing body (City 
Council) authorize all of the proposed capital project revenues and expenses for each fiscal year.  
In addition, the FY 2018 Budget adopted by City Council did not include the HWR Fund capital 
projects budget.  Therefore, the City Council needs to approve the FY 2018 HWR Fund capital 
projects budget, as previously approved by the Hopewell Water Renewal Commission (HWRC).  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  As a result, City Administration recommends City Council approval 
of the FY 2018 HWR Fund capital projects budget by increasing total expenditure appropriations 
by $1,470,000 and using Fund Balance as the sole funding source for each of the capital projects. 
 
TIMING: Planned capital improvements for certain FY 2018 HWR Fund capital projects have 
been initiated and require prompt City Council approval of the funding needed to complete them.   
 
BACKGROUND:  Based on past budget practices, the HWR Fund did not budget for capital 
projects, but the HWRC approved the proposed HRW Fund capital project budget for each fiscal 
year.  Previously, as vendor invoices were received, billing the Commission members for their 
allocable share of the costs would then commence as contractually stipulated.  Sound budget 
practice is to document proposed project expenses and revenues for each fiscal year, but the FY 
2018 Adopted Budget approved by City Council excluded all of the HWR Fund capital projects.   
 
The FY 2018 HWR Fund capital budget previously approved by the HRWC included the 
following capital projects listed below by name, amount and description: 
 

Capital Project - Name Amount Description 
Primary Sludge, Centrate, and 
Supernatant Return Wet Wells 

Rehabilitation 
$300,000 

To repair concrete structure damaged from 
hydrogen sulfide corrosion.  

 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Michael C. Bujakowski Ward #3   □ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore Ward #4 
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Roosevelt Edwards, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 2.2014 

       November 21, 2017 

Capital Project - Name Amount Description 

Storm Water Improvements $500,000 
To reduce the number of storm water outfalls by 
combining outfalls and improving access for 
sampling safety. 

UNOX Mixer Replacement $250,000 

Engineering to replace the 16 40-year old mixers 
over 4 years; mixers are obsolete, parts are not 
available and have to be machined, and have a 
high energy demand. 

Polymer System Upgrade $420,000 Existing system 20+ years old and can’t meet the 
needs of the new centrifuge being installed. 

 
The HWR Fund capital projects budget must now be approved by City Council through a budget 
amendment for the appropriation of funds to reflect the $1,470,000 total cost of funding needed 
for the capital projects listed above.  Based on the HRWC capital project approval and its 
payment policy, funds for payment of the capital project costs incurred shall be invoiced (billed) 
to each of the members of the HWRC as the vendor invoices are received for completed work. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Except for the polymer system upgrade, the proposed FY 2018 HWR Fund 
capital projects involve the repair or replacement of existing equipment or systems needed to 
ensure the plant continues to be properly maintained and meets permit requirements/limitations. 
 
The polymer system upgrade will provide the amount of polymer needed to successfully operate 
the new centrifuge funded in the FY 2017 HWR Fund capital projects budget and now being 
installed.  Without a new upgraded polymer feed system, the dewatering system would have no 
redundancy and, if/when the system failed, the facility would have no means of removing solids 
from the plant, resulting in permit violations and/or emergency operating costs. The penalty and 
potential liability for permit violations is $37,500 per day per permit violation. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  FY 2018 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan  
 
STAFF:   Jeanie Grandstaff, Director of Hopewell Water Renewal  



ITEM 
NO. PROJECT REPL/ 

ADD TOTALS FY17-18 FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 FY21-22 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1 Energy Recovery A 5,000,000 5,000,000 To use heat energy from incinerator to offset a portion of utility expense.  
Return on investment at 2013 loadings is 13 years.

2 Primary Sludge Wet Well Rehab R 100,000 100,000 To repair concrete structure damage from hydrogen sulfide.

3 Centrate Wet Well Rehab R 100,000 100,000 To repair concrete structure damage form hydrogen sulfide.  Degrading 
concrete affecting pump.

4 Oxygen Plant Instrumentation Conversion A 1,000,000 1,000,000

To replace the existing pneumatic controllers with electronic controllers . 
The existing controllers are obsolete and we cannot get repair parts. This 
will also upgrade the control system to a PLC system to be compatible with 
existing plant.

5 SNR Wet Well Rehab R 100,000 100,000 To repair concrete structure damage from hydrogen sulfide.

6 Pilot Study (Nitrogen Reduction) A 500,000 500,000 Further study to determine technology needed to meet lower nitrogen 
limits.

7 O2 Plant Switchgear R 1,300,000 1,300,000 Replacement: Increase liability; existing equipment is 40 yrs. Old

8 Storm Water Facility Improvements A 500,000 500,000 To reduce the number of outfalls by combining outfalls and improving 
access for sampling safety.

9 Hydrogen Sulfide Control A 200,000 200,000 To reduce effects of hydrogen sulfide corrosion.
10 9th Secondary Clarifier - Engineering A 250,000 250,000 To improve solids removal and increase hydraulic capacity of plant.

11 UNOX Mixer Replacement R 3,250,000 250,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Replace over four years through FY20-21 for a total of $4M --current 
mixers are obsolete; parts are not available and have to be machined -- 
currently 40 year old equipment with high energy demand.  

12 Polymer System Upgrade R 420,000 420,000 Existing system 20+ years old -- needs to upgrade to meet needs of thrid 
centrifuge.

13 RAS Pipeline R 1,200,000 1,200,000 Repair/replace due to deterioration -- pipe failing
GRAND TOTAL 13,920,000 1,470,000 4,200,000 2,000,000 6,250,000 1,000,000

F:Users/Budget/FIVE YR CAPITAL PLAN (version 2) 11/6/2017

H2O RENEWAL
FIVE (5) YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY17-18 THRU FY21-22
Five Year Plan



BUDGET AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 
FISCAL YEAR 2018 

 
WHEREAS, at the November 21, 2017 Hopewell City Council meeting, a FY 

2018 budget amendment was introduced to appropriate $1,470,000 from the 
Hopewell Water Renewal Fund (032) Unassigned Fund Balance account to provide 
funding for the cost of four (4) capital projects: (1) $300,000 to rehabilitate the 
primary sludge, centrate, and supernatant return wet well structures with concrete 
damaged from hydrogen sulfide corrosion, (2) $500,000 to improve the storm water 
facility outfalls, (3) $250,000 to replace the UNOX mixers, and (4) $420,000 to 
upgrade the polymer system. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hopewell Water Renewal Commission approved the FY 

2018 Water Renewal Capital Projects Budget, which includes these capital 
projects, and 

 
WHEREAS, sufficient funds exist in the Unassigned Fund Balance account 

for these projects, and  
 
WHEREAS, the members of the Hopewell Water Renewal Commission shall 

be invoiced and pay for their allocable share of these capital project costs, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Hopewell City Council that the following designated 
funds and accounts be and are hereby appropriated for these capital project accounts. 

 
Hopewell Water Renewal Fund - 032: 
   Resources: 

Unassigned Fund Balance ...................................................  $1,470,000  
  

 Appropriations: 
 

  
Wet Well Rehabilitation; 32432237.508211.R0127/R0129 

     
  
 
 
   

$   300,000 
 Storm Water Improvements; 32432237.508211.R0133….. 

 
$   500,000 

UNOX Mixer Replacement; 32432237.503140….. $   250,000 
 Polymer System Upgrade; 32432237.508211.R0134……. $   420,000 

  
 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 

R-9 
 

 



Council Action Form  2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

Insert 
Date of 
Meeting 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Refund for $14,473.06 – Advansix Resins & 
Chemicals LLC 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Authorize Treasurer to refund $14,473.06 to Advansix Resins 
& Chemicals LLC as per State and City code.  
 
TIMING:    City Council action is requested on November 21, 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND:   Advansix Resins & Chemicals LLC appealed to the Board of 
Equalization for the 2017 real estate taxes. These appeals resulted in 
adjustments/abatements to the original tax amounts and generated a refund. The net tax 
refund remaining after applying these overpayments to the adjusted 2017 tax is 
$14,473.06.  Per Virginia Code Sections 58.1-3981 and 58.1-3990 and City Ordinance 
2007-10, refunds greater than $2,500.00 require Council approval.    It is therefore 
requested that the $14,473.06 refund be approved, plus any applicable interest.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $14,473.06 plus interest.  
 
STAFF:    Teresa L. Batton, City Treasurer 
     Patrizia Waggoner, Real Estate Assessor 

 



 
 

  Honeywell/Avansix 2016 & 2017 ASMT comparison  
      

PARCEL 
NO. 

Acreage of 
lots 2016 LAND asmt 2017 LAND asmt REVISED 2017 LAND 

asmt 
Amt of change 

480021 17.732 $0 $772,400 $772,400 $0 
480015 137.057 $8,431,100 $5,970,200 $5,970,200 $0 
480023 1.958 $0 $21,300 $21,300 $0 
480011 32.266 $1,405,500 $1,405,500 $1,405,500 $0 
480022 83.964 $0 $3,657,500 $301,000 -$3,356,500 
480025 87.921 $0 $3,829,800 $957,500 -$2,872,300 
480029 6.832 $0 $74,400 $13,700 -$60,700 
480028 3.091 $0 $33,700 $6,200 -$27,500 
480024 7.83 $0 $85,300 $15,700 -$69,600 
480027 107.38 $0 $4,677,500 $3,473,900 -$1,203,600 

2730010 2.208 $144,300 $144,300 $144,300 $0 
   $9,980,900 $20,671,900 $13,081,700 -$7,590,200 
     $1.13    
   Net increase  in land ASMT $3,100,800 $35,039  
            
      

 
 
 









 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 

MINUTES 
 



August 28, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL .HELD JUNE 12, 2017 

 
A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Monday, August 28, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in 

the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
      
     Mark Haley, City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT:  Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
    
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:33 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 
   Mayor Shornak   - present 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - absent 
   Councilor Holloway  - present 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
   Councilor Denton  - present 
   Councilor Pelham  - present 

 
The Mayor called the meeting to order and welcomed visitors at 6:33 p.m.  Pastor Rocky Shearin of 
Calvary Love Ministries offered the prayer, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Councilor 
Holloway. 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made at 6:35 p.m. by Councilor Pelham and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to adopt 
the agenda.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Holloway  - yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
   Councilor Denton  - yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - yes 
   
     
  



August 28, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
CLOSED MEETING 
 

Motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore, to go into Closed 
Meeting for (1) discussion of performance of specific appointees of city council (city manager, oversight 
committee and youth commission); (2) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or 
consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation (Children Services Act program, cemetery, EEOC), 
where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating 
posture of City Council; and (3) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related 
thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in 
accordance with Virginia Code §§ 2.2-3711 (A) (1), (7) and (8), respectively.  Upon the roll call, the vote 
resulted: 

 
   Councilor Holloway  - yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
   Councilor Denton  - yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - yes 
 
Mayor Shornak and Councilor Denton exited the Closed Meeting at 7:32pm. 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:56 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Holloway  - yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
   Councilor Denton  - yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - yes 
 
Councilor Holloway submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement. 
 
SB-1 Appointment of applicants to the Youth Services Commission – Vice Mayor Gore moved to 
appoint Rachelle Parrish as a student for a one-year term, Jessica Morse-Coley for a three-year term, 
Antonio Holloway for a one-year term, Dr. Melody Hackney for a three-year term, Brittney Dolsey for a 
one-year term, Marcy Williams for a two-year term, Terrence Doctor for a two-year term, Everett Gilliam 
for a one-year term, Rev. Jacob Sahms for a two-year term, Alison Noble for a three-year term, Raja 
Nelson for a three-year term, NaQuetta Mitchell for a two-year term, Katina Moss for a three-year term, 
Ruth Johnson for a one-year term, Larry Mason, for a two-year term, Jasmine Gore, her term in office to 
the Youth Commission, and for the City Clerk to schedule a monthly meeting for three months with the 
Commission and Youth Coordinator to appoint a chair, vice chair and secretary, set up a calendar with 
standard meeting days and times, revise the Code, establish bylaws, and establish initial short term and 
long term goals, and for the Youth Coordinator to report back to Council in December. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Pelham.  



August 28, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
 
A friendly amendment was made to the motion by Councilor Pelham to include criminal background 
checks on all applicants. Vice Mayor Gore agreed with this amendment.  The amended motion was: to 
appoint Rachelle Parrish as a student for a one-year term, Jessica Morse-Coley for a three-year term, 
Antonio Holloway for a one-year term, Dr. Melody Hackney for a three-year term, Brittney Dolsey for a 
one-year term, Marcy Williams for a two-year term, Terrence Doctor for a two-year term, Everett Gilliam 
for a one-year term, Rev. Jacob Sahms for a two-year term, Alison Noble for a three-year term, Raja 
Nelson for a three-year term, NaQuetta Mitchell for a two-year term, Katina Moss for a three-year term, 
Ruth Johnson for a one-year term, Larry Mason, for a two-year term, Jasmine Gore, her term in office to 
the Youth Commission, and for the City Clerk to schedule a monthly meeting for three months with the 
Commission and Youth Coordinator to appoint a chair, vice chair and secretary, set up a calendar with 
standard meeting days and times, revise the Code, establish bylaws, and establish initial short term and 
long term goals, and for the Youth Coordinator to report back to Council in December, and to include 
criminal background checks on the applicants as required as a condition of service to the City.  
 
Councilor Denton said that the Youth Services Commission was a wonderful commission. She said the 
youth needed to be guided. She stated that we have a good Youth Coordinator and that she regretted she 
was on vacation and unable to attend this special meeting. Councilor Denton stated that since she was 
unable to meet the applicants for the Youth Services Commission, she would not be voting. 
 
Mayor Shornak agreed that we needed a Commission, and said that she had only met with a very few of 
the applicants. She further stated that Council should have interviews for these applicants, and that 
Council should know who they are choosing to interact with its youth. Mayor Shornak said she wanted to 
do interviews for this commission like they do for other commissions. She also said she would not be 
voting because there was a revised ordinance that had not yet been submitted to Council, which made 
these appointments premature. 
 
Councilor Pelham remarked that out of 52 boards, Council only actually interviewed for the School 
Board, HRHA or a board of that significance.  She asks that Council vote even if they don’t agree with 
things, or even if they preferred to interview. There being no further discussion, upon the roll call, the 
vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Holloway  - yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
   Councilor Denton  - no 
   Councilor Pelham  - yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - no 
 
SB-2 Establishment and Appointment to the Oversight Committee – Vice Mayor Gore moved to 
table this item until the next meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilor Zevgolis.  Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted. 
 
   Councilor Holloway  - yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
   Councilor Denton  - yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - yes 
 



August 28, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
Reports of City Council 
 
Pelham  Councilor Pelham reported that she had attended an RC&D meeting, which did not have  
  a quorum.  She said that RC&D needs council support, and that Council had not been as  
  supportive in recent years. She noted that the RC&D may meet again the following  
  month. 
 
Gore  Vice Mayor Gore stated that she had been invited join an advisory board at Virginia  

Commonwealth University, and that she was working on getting more students involved. 
She noted that she was particularly interested in getting VCU to provide opportunities for 
Hopewell students. She said that the board would meet again in March 2018, and she 
would report back. 

 
Holloway Councilor Holloway thanked the volunteers for the Youth Commission.  She also thanked 

Vice Mayor Gore and Councilor Pelham for their hard work with the Commission. 
 
Shornak Mayor Shornak thanked all who donated supplies to the book bag drive for the students. 

She said that she had personally helped to deliver some of the donated book bags.  She 
also mentioned that on the 24th, Johnny Partin would drop off approximately $6,000 
worth of school supplies. Mayor Shornak mentioned that she attended the Convocation 
and that it was very nice. She thanked all that worked on that. She also mentioned that 
she would be attending upcoming the Ft Lee CMC event. 

 
Pelham  Thanked all organizations who participated in the school supplies drive. She noted that 

VFW filled over 3,000 bags. She said that Pleasant Grove Church gave over 1,000 bags 
as well as clothes and food. She said the church has adopted the City. She also mentioned 
that Mount Calvary and Friendship Baptist as having been extremely helpful with the 
supplies drives. She noted that some suppliers donated books to aid in literacy. She said 
given the wonderful support of this effort, there was no reason for any child to go to 
school without paper or other school supplies. 

 
Shornak Mayor Shornak asked that everyone pray for the state of Texas during the flooding and 

other devastation they were experiencing. She said that she remembered the floods of 
Richmond, and couldn’t imagine what the people of Texas were going through. 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
  
 At 8:20 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Pelham and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to adjourn. 
All of Council responded “aye” to the “all in favor” asked by the Mayor. 
 
 
       
            
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
      
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

INUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

A Meeting and Work Session of the City Council of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, was held 
Tuesday, October 10, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North 
Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor (arrived at 6:30pm) 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Janice B. Denton, Councilor  
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor (arrived at 6:03 pm) 
 
     Charles Dane, Interim City Manager 
     Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:02 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 
    Mayor Shornak   - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - absent (arrived at 6:30pm) 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - absent 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent (arrived at 6:03pm) 
 
AMEND/ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to adopt the agenda, which motion was seconded by 
Councilor Luman-Bailey.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted. 
 
    Councilor Denton  - Yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
    
WORK SESSION 
 
 Mayor Shornak started the work session with Charles Dane, interim city manager, and Lance 
Wolff, interim finance director, regarding the FY 2018 budget. Dane mentioned that $300,000 was left off 
of the previous budget for the animal shelter, but said they would reduce the amount if necessary.  
Council was provided with a new FY2018 Budget Resolution as well as new printouts showing new 
budget line items.  Vice Mayor Gore asked was money removed from departmental budgets to which 
Dane replied in the negative. Gore asked specifically about the $85,000 removed from Council’s budget 
to which Dane replied that it was an oversight which would be corrected. Gore asked if the Clerk had 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

access to Council’s funds and Dane replied that she did. Gore then cited other changes in the line item 
reports (e.g., sheriff and courthouse decreased $700,000, on-departmental went down $1,000,000 etc.) 
and questioned Dane again regarding department budgets. Dane stated that Council had been previously-
advised that the budget figures were wrong and would need adjusting. He said that with finance having to 
go from the training platform to upload the budget into Munis, and with the work on the CAFR, the 
numbers were off. Also, Dane remarked that the some of the numbers uploaded into Munis were 
departmental original requests and not the figures approved by Council. He said that the departments were 
aware of the changes. Gore asked about the deputy clerk position. Councilor Denton responded that it 
would be best to wait until the city attorney was hired. There was discussion as to if the position would 
report to the clerk or administration. The Clerk recalled that historically the position of deputy clerk 
reported to both the city attorney and the city clerk. Mayor Shornak said she wasn’t sure that was the 
case. Gore suggested we change the charter to allow the deputy clerk to report to the clerk. Councilor 
Zevgolis agreed that the deputy clerk worked with both the city attorney and the city clerk.  
 
Dane said he had no problem working with the council and the clerk on the deputy clerk position, and 
further advised that the position could be paid from savings left over from when the clerk used to work in 
the city manager’s office.  Dane said that even if position hired through City Manager’s office, would 
report to the clerk.  
 
Gore asked why the budget was $2 million low.  Lance replied that it was due to them taking back the 
$2.5 million not approved by Council.  
 
Mayor Shornak and Councilor Pelham both filed Transactional Disclosure Statements for the work 
session. 
 
Councilor Zevgolis moved to amend the agenda to change the closed session time from 7:00pm to 
6:37pm. Councilor Luman Bailey seconded the motion.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
At 6:38 p.m. council went into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration of prospective 
candidates for employment (city manager, city attorney); (2) discussion of appointment of specific 
appointees of city council (CPMT, Oversight Committee, NLC); (3) discussion or consideration of the 
investment of public funds where competition or bargaining is involved, where, if made public initially, 
the financial interest of the governmental unit would be adversely affected (Riverwalk, public safety 
building); (4) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to 
actual or probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect 
the negotiating or litigating posture of the public body (grievance appeal, EEOC decision); and (5) 
consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific 
legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code § 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

2.2-3711 (A) (1) [two items], (6), (7), and (8), respectively, which motion was seconded by Councilor 
Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:31 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-
meeting requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon 
the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF   
AMERICA 
 

Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending.  Due to the 
absence of Chaplain Eva Brown of John Randolph Medical Center Pastoral Care, prayer was led 
by Herbert Bragg, Director of Intergovernmental and Pubic Affairs, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, led by Councilor Denton. 
 
AMEND/ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 It was noted that, although Council had a roll call to go into Closed Meeting, there was no actual 
motion or second.  Mayor Shornak and Stefan Calos revised the motion to adopt the agenda so that it 
incorporated Council having gone into closed meeting, as well. Councilor Denton made the motion to 
adopt the agenda and for Council to have gone into closed meeting.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Pelham moved to approve the Consent Agenda, which motion was seconded by 
Councilor Luman-Bailey. The Consent Agenda included approval of Council’s minutes for the September 
12 and September 26, 2017 meetings, as well as the January through June 2017 EDA minutes, and Board 
of Equalization minutes for August and September.  There was a proclamation from James House against 
domestic violence. Charles Dane announced that Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Parks and Recreation, was 
elected President of the Virginia Recreation and Park Society.  Aaron Reidmiller presented upcoming 
event for the City.  Tevya Griffin announced Clean Up Week.  Mayor Shornak asked that Ms. Griffin 
send all of Council flyers for Clean Up week, which she agreed to do. Upon the roll call, the vote 
resulted: 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
Public Hearings 
 
PH-1  KMRRT LLC request to vacate a portion of Poplar Street – Tevya Griffin, Director of the 
Department of Development reminded Council that this matter had been presented to the previously, and 
that the owner of the property was here to answer questions. Mayor Shornak asked if KMRRT LLC was a 
Virginia LLC. The owner of KMRRT confirmed that his company was out of Missouri, but that they were 
licensed to operate in Virginia. Councilor Pelham asked about the porous materials to be used for the 
parking lot.  The Owner stated that he intended to leave the land as it was, without asphalt if that was 
Council’s wish.  Councilor Pelham moved to approve the vacation of the undeveloped portion of Poplar 
Street so that MRRT LLC could use it for additional parking, provided that KMRRT LLC met the 
requirements of Council regarding utilizing porous material as approved by the Director of Development.  
Councilor Luman-Bailey seconded the motion.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
      Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
PH-2 Zoning Ordinance Amendment regarding certain fees; approve fees associated with 

wetland permits; and approve a revised fee structure for building, mechanical, electrical 
and plumbing permits. – Tevya Griffin presented requests for an increase of fees per the below 
table. 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

Zoning Verification for Business 
License – Home Occupation 

$10.00 

Zoning Verification for Business 
License – Business Location 

$25.00 

Zoning Confirmation/Verification 
Letter – Residential 

$50.00 

Zoning Confirmation/Verification 
Letter- Commercial, Industrial 

$100.00 

 
Councilor Zevgolis expressed concern that some of the requested fee changes might impact the sidewalk 
ordinance, which falls under the City Manager.  Griffin explained that none of the requested fee changes 
did not include sidewalks.  Councilor Pelham asked Ms. Griffin why we would wanted to charge more for 
the residential verification letter. Griffin explained that this letter was usually requested by other than the 
homeowner, usually a bank, and the requestor would charge the homeowner a set fee which was 
considerably higher than that charged by Hopewell. She further explained that most banks enjoyed the 
fact that Hopewell charged such low fees compared to other localities, because they were able to keep the 
difference between what Hopewell charges and what the bank charged its customer. Councilor Pelham 
asked why the public hearing notice was not included on our website. Ms. Griffin said she would make 
sure that future notices were put on our website. 
 
Mayor Shornak questioned why our fees would be increased to mirror Chesterfield when they were so 
much larger. Griffin said that our fees would not mirror Chesterfield, and she further explained that 
Chesterfield was simply listed on the comparison along with other neighboring cities and counties. Mayor 
Shornak said the requested fee increases seemed high to her. Griffin explained that the work related to the 
various verifications and letters were labor and time intensive.  She said there was quite a bit of research 
that was involved. Mayor Shornak said she believed residential costs should stay the same. 
 
Councilor Luman-Bailey stated that she understood how other businesses were making money because of 
our low rates, and that she supported the rate increase. 
 
Councilor Zevgolis said that residents should go through their banks or other institutions to get the 
verifications and letters, and that when our resident get the permit themselves, then they are exposing 
themselves to liability. He agreed with Ms. Griffin to raise the rates.  
 
Councilor Pelham was adamantly opposed to raising the rates and, in fact, believed that the rates should 
be further lowered. Mayor Shornak agreed. Councilor Pelham made the motion to approve the Zoning 
Ordinance amendment adding all of the fees except those for the Residential Zoning Confirmation Letter, 
which fee shall be reduced to $25, the Commercial Zoning Confirmation Letter, which fee shall be $50, 
the residential building permit fee shall go from $40 to $25, and the commercial building permit fee shall 
go from $100 to $50. Councilor Luman-Bailey seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
      Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
Coach Jared Jenkins, a resident of Ward 4, said that he was at the meeting at the behest of Councilor 
Pelham. He said he is creating a book about Hopewell football memories and he would like people to 
share their memories about Hopewell football. He distributed a flyer to Council. He said it is a year-long 
project, but would love people to get the word out. Councilor Pelham requested that the flyer be placed on 
the City’s website. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1  Corrected FY2018 Budget Resolution – Council was provided with a corrected FY2018 Budget 
Resolution in their packets. They were also provided with a redlined version to show all of the 
corrections. Vice Mayor Gore remarked on some items that still appeared to be errors. She noted that 
page 5 listed $37,440 under PTO for the Office on Youth, and that there was $7 million listed in the 
Police Budget. She also noted that she did not see the $10,250 promised to Council for communications 
cost. Mr. Dane said that the funds were put under Marketing as there was no Communications line item in 
Council’s budget.   
 
Councilor Zevgolis stated that he wanted to go over items with the City Attorney, to which Vice Mayor 
Gore agreed. Councilor Luman-Bailey said it was okay to discuss, but let’s go ahead and approve the 
projected figures, then make amendments later. The Vice Mayor stated that, given the extent of the 
changes, Council may need some time to review the revised Resolution. Councilor Pelham asked about 
the total for the 2015 CAFR preparation. Dane said he did not have that information at hand, but would 
send it to her. Councilor Pelham also requested an itemized listing of Cherry Bakeart’s costs. Dane agreed 
to provide the information, and stated that he wanted to move forward with the approved budget. 
 
Councilor Denton said that she went to VML and talked with Rachel Reamy of the APA. She said that 
Ms. Reamy told her that their (the APA) concern is for us to get our finances in order. Councilor Denton 
said we should concentration on getting that straight, She said that we need to pass this budget resolution 
and move forward, and that she was all for passing it tonight. There was additional discussion.  Mayor 
Shornak called for the vote.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - No 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - No 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - No 
 
 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

There was additional discussion among Council. Councilor Pelham made a substitute motion to postpone 
discussion about the budget resolution until the Retreat, scheduled for October 20, or add it to the October 
24 meeting agenda.  This motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore.  Upon discussion of Council, there 
was no vote taken on this motion.  
 
Instead, Councilor Luman-Bailey made another substitute motion to approve the budget resolution as to 
the corrected figures in Section 1 as presented.  Section 2 and all subsequent sections to be postponed to 
the Retreat, and will appear on the October 24 agenda.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - No 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
Mayor Shornak requested that the Clerk read the motion for clarity due to the number of changes made to 
it. The Clerk read the motion as “motion to approve the corrected figures in Section 1 of the budget 
resolution. Discussion and voting on Section 2, beginning on page 68, and all subsequent sections to be 
postponed to the Council Retreat on October 20, and to be placed on the October 24 agenda.” Upon the 
roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
Mayor Shornak and Councilor Pelham submitted Transactional Disclosure Statements for this item. 
 
R-2 Resolution appointing Interim City Manager to Boards and Commissions (City) and 
Resolution Appoint ICM to Riverside Community Criminal Justice Board. Council reviewed the 
resolutions included in the agenda packets. Dane explained that some boards and commissions were 
automatic appointments for whomever was the City Manager, but some required a resolution. He asked 
the Clerk to elucidate. She advised that the resolution include the list that required appointment, and noted 
that the City Attorney had added language to include any and all boards and committees. Councilor 
Denton moved to approve the resolutions appointing the interim city manager to any and all boards, 
commissions and committee normally held by the City Manager. Councilor Zevgolis seconded the 
motion. There was no further discussion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
R-3 Resolution providing support to the Hopewell Emergency Crew – Council reviewed the 
resolution included in the agenda packet. Dane advised that Councilor Luman-Bailey, Vice Mayor Gore, 
and Fire Chief Donnie Hunter had all worked very hard on establishing the resolution. He also noted that 
the Hopewell Emergency Crew was represented by their board and crew members. He noted that the 
proposed resolution included HEC’s asks of council. Councilor Luman-Bailey moved to approve the 
resolution providing support to the agreement between Hopewell Fire and Rescue and the Hopewell 
Emergency Crew. Vice Mayor Gore seconded the motion. There was no further discussion. Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
R4 – Discussion of 2017 Capital Improvement Projects – Dane presented Council with a spreadsheet 
showing the Capital Improvement Projects that had been started but not completed, which projects could 
be stopped, and how much of the $2.5 million had been spent. Councilor Denton moved to approve the 
disposition of pending projects as set forth by Council, which Councilor Luman-Bailey seconded for 
discussion purposes only. The discussion began with Dane having Mr. Reidmiller distribute revised pages 
to Council. Councilor Pelham asked if staff could be allowed to leave as the discussion could run long. 
Dane stated that staff may need to be present in case Council had any questions. Dane asked Council to 
look at the new pages because the one in the packet included other projects that were not to be included. 
The items on the page were for $2.5 million to be funded from a loan.  Dane stated that of the $2.5 
million, $995,674 was spent. Dane said that the Riverwalk Project had been discussed with Council in 
closed session, and would come back before then at another time. Dane also advised that the VDOT 
project matches were for all of the paving work that Mr. Butler has been doing. He said that Butler 
expended $511,000 and there was $750,000 remaining. He has projects remaining that if they stop those 
projects, it will stop some of the paving.  
 
Dane also explained that there were projects that have been on the books for 1-2 years, which allocations 
have not been fully expensed. They total $578,000 that Dane said he believed could be closed. One 
project that is an exception is the GIS mapping project. Dane suggested different ways to handle the 
$995,674 shortfall.  He said Council could freeze the projects until the 2016 CAFR was done. Dane also 
noted that Mr. Sanderson mentioned that the City may be due a consolidation bonding, as well. Dane 
stated that the City could either cancel projects or borrow money, or wait until completion of the 2016 
CAFR to see if surplus funds would cover the shortfall, which last option Dane recommended. Johnnie 
Butler, the City Engineer, came forward and said he had some reimbursements from VDOT he could use 
to work on additional projects. He said he was concerned that if we delay the projects, then VDOT may 
elect to withdraw their financial support.  
 
Dane said the amount of the shortfall, once the $578,000 was deducted, was $420,000, which could be 
easily absorbed until we figure this out over the next couple of months, which would not delay Mr. Butler 
from doing his Fall/Spring program.  



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

Councilor Pelham asked Dane to clarify his suggestion again. Dane repeated that staff was asking that we 
close the $578,000 projects that were not fully expensed, and freeze the remaining items pending the 
result of the 2016 CAFR.  
 
Vice Mayor Gore confirmed with Mr. Dane that the pages handed out to Council at the meeting included 
two pages not given to Council in their packet. Gore asked Dane where did that $1.5 million come from 
that was being frozen? Dane said they were not asking Council to freeze the money, but rather to freeze 
the projects since Council did not borrow the money. Gore then asked where did the $995,674 that was 
already spent come from, to which Dane replied that it came out of the General Fund. She then asked if 
the $995,574 would be reflected in the unassigned funds. Dane said no because they were going to close 
the funds. Dane said that it would only be $420,000 because of the closed projects. Dane said that the 
$578,000 would be moved from assigned to unassigned. Gore asked when she would get response to the 
balance of the Rainy Day Fund. Dane said that the Rainy Day Fund had not been touched. Dane said that 
the Assigned and Unassigned Fund balances change daily based on what comes in and what has been 
spent. Gore asked Lance Wolff, the interim Finance Director if the reason they could not provide her with 
a balance for the Unassigned and Assigned Funds was due to the $995,674. Lance said the calculations 
would be provided later in the Fall, Once the 2016 CAFR work was done.  Councilor Pelham asked Wolff 
if the cash reconciliations were currently up-to-date. Wolff said he was not sure how many months 
remained undone, but the Treasurer is very close to being done. Dane said that 2016 was completely done 
and that 2017 is done the first half, and she is working on the second half. She is working on the last 
couple of months of 2017. Dane said that it is always at least two months behind. Pelham asked if you 
wait two months to balance your checking account. Dane said no, but that is how it is done for accounting 
like this—this is not like balancing your home checkbook. Pelham said that the Treasurer did tell her that. 
Shornak asked why Pelham asked the question. Pelham said she was asking because this was October 
2017. Dane said he believed she was done through June or July. Pelham requested that Dane email 
Council with that information. Wolff confirmed that the Treasurer was done through the month of June. 
Pelham thanked him and asked him to also thank the Treasurer for her efforts. There was no further 
discussion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - --- (absent from the dais) 
 
R-5 Assessor’s Report and Request to Hire FY2018 approved real estate assessor position prior to  
completion of the 2016 CAFR – Dane said that Council requested that the city assessor provide them 
with an updated report, which has been included in Council’s packet. He also advised that Council 
approved a position for the assessor, but said she could not hire that person until after the 2016 CAFR 
was done, but the assessor is seeking to hire someone sooner so that she can keep up with the statutory 
demands of the office. Ms. Patrizia Waggoner, the Real Estate Assessor came forward to report to 
Council. She went over the spreadsheet given to Council regarding the final totals for the real estate 
assessor appeals, including those that went through the Board of Equalization. Councilor Pelham 
requested a spreadsheet showing Board of Equalization revisions (increase or decrease) for residential and 
commercial properties, which Waggoner said she would provide to Council. Waggoner then described 
how prior assessors have asked for additional personnel. She explained that she has three appraisers using 
one car to go out and make assessments. She said that she had budgeted money for another car, but that 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

money had been removed from her budget. Gore reiterated the situation and confirmed with Waggoner 
that she only had the one car. Gore requested that Council add this item to the things to be discussed at the 
Retreat. Gore then asked Dane if the reduction in revenues noted on the Assessor’s report was included in 
Dane’s projections. Dane said that the numbers don’t include new projects and buildings, approximately 
$30 million worth, which will offset the reduction. Gore requested to discuss this further with Dane 
offline.  
 
Councilor Pelham noted that this is a revenue-producing staff member who, if she is unable to do her job, 
could potentially result in loss of revenue to the City.  Pelham said since Council allowed the Fire 
Department to hire someone, the same should be done for the Real Estate Assessor. Councilor Luman-
Bailey moved to accept the Real Estate Assessor’s report and to allow the assessor’s office to hire a staff 
member prior to completion of the 2016 CAFR. Councilor Pelham seconded the motion. There was no 
further discussion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
As it was almost 10:30, Mayor Shornak asked if there was a motion to continue past 10:30 p.m.  
Councilor Pelham made the motion, which was seconded by Councilor Zevgolis. Upon the roll call, the 
vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
 
R-6 Appointment of Building Official – effective Date October 16, 2017 – Dane advised Council 
that since Mr. Underwood had left the City’s employ, there was a need to hire a new Building Official, 
which was done. Robert Todd Hawkes is the new Building Official, which Council is requested to 
appoint. Tevya Griffin, Director of Department of Planning came forward to answer Council’s questions. 
Councilor Pelham asked from where Mr. Hawkes hailed. Griffin said he came from King and Queen 
County. Shornak said she thought it was odd that Council had to appoint the Building Inspector. Pelham 
responded that it was the Building Official and that it was a state mandate. Both Griffin and Dane agreed 
that was the case. Gore requested of Griffin that Council be advised when there is a departure such as Mr. 
Underwood’s. Griffin advised that she put that information in her weekly report. Gore mentioned that 
they wanted the news briefs to be revamped, and asked that Griffin notify the Clerk of these type of 
changes. Dane said it would be the responsibility of the City Manager to advise Council and he will be 
sure to do so. Shornak asked if Council had to be advised when anyone else left. Dane said, no, only 
because Building Official is a position appointed by Council. Shornak said she just wanted to make sure 
because she didn’t care if someone left in the other departments.  Councilor Zevgolis requested to see Mr. 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

Hawkes’ resume. Ms. Griffin said she would provide it to Council. Luman-Bailey wanted validation on 
the Architectural Review Board and Downtown Design Review Committee was included in this decision. 
Griffin said she did not speak to the ARB or the DDRC, but rather it was asked of the building official 
applicants if they were willing and able to work with the ARB and DDRC. Luman-Bailey said she was 
glad they were considered.  Councilor Luman-Bailey then moved to appoint the building official effective 
October 16, 2017. Vice Mayor Gore seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - --- (not present on dais) 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - --- (not present on dais) 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
R-7 Approval proposed bike lane improvement as outlined in Draft Comprehensive Plan - Dane 
said this was an unusual request as Council is not usually asked to approve a portion of a Plan, but there 
were some large grant opportunities available that may be available to help us push the Bike Plan forward 
faster. He also said that the Bike Plan was part of the Healthy Eating Active Lifestyle process, and is also 
part of our health and transportation plan. Griffin then came forward and explained further. She said that 
they were approached by Mr. Reidmiller and Mr. Anderson while Horace Wade was still with the City. 
She said that Messrs. Reidmiller, Anderson and Wade got together and found there was a grant for bike 
lanes that would get us money to provide more lanes. She said this was given to the Planning 
Commission, who has endorsed presenting it to Council. The Grant is due in November which is why 
they are coming forward now. Griffin said they are steadily working on the Comprehensive Plan and are 
on the Chesapeake Bay section now. She said they would be finished by the end of the year and would 
give Council the entire plan. Zevgolis asked if City Engineer and Public Works Director review this plan. 
Butler came forward and stated that he was on board with this idea and trying to get the grant. Councilor 
Luman-Bailey maybe we can ask Dr. Morris to put in a good word. Griffin said that Dr. Morris has talked 
to the Planning Commission and gotten them to agree regarding the health chapter, and health all 
throughout the Comprehensive Plan. Luman-Bailey said he also did a great job at the VML Conference. 
Butler explained the grant process through the VDOT portal, and what is required. Councilor Luman-
Bailey moved to approve and endorse the bike lane facility improvement strategy as outlined in the draft 
Comprehensive Plan 2027. Councilor Pelham seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
Announcement by Dane – Office on Youth holding Parents Night Out event on November 3, 2017 from 
5:00pm until 8:00 pm. 
 
Reports of City Attorney – there was nothing to report. 
 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

Reports of City Clerk – nothing to report. Mayor Shornak noted the board openings and said we needed 
volunteers. 
 
Reports of City Council – Councilor Luman-Bailey stated that she attended the Virginia Gateway 
meeting last Thursday morning. She said there was nothing to report. She said Go Virginia is still a hot 
topic as far as getting grants, which was mentioned at VML, as well. We received Platinum status in Go 
Green. We also received an award from HEAL. 
 
Individual Councilors – Mayor Shornak requested that the name be put beside all of the IR requestors.  
 
IR-1 Gore – Resolution requesting fiscal assistance for budgets FY2016, FY2017 and FY2018 - said 
this was a follow up to the APA meeting. She said they wanted someone to review the budget, and the 
proper way to request it. Luman-Bailey said Bob Laudenburg was the person who said they could help if 
we asked for assistance. She also said it was a great idea, and that could help us know if additional 
requests were necessary. Shornak agreed this was a great resource, and that she personally knew Mr. 
Laudenburg and was happy to ask with Councilor Luman-Bailey. Gore said it was okay to add them, but 
still wanted to use Commonwealth of Virginia, as well. Dane asked for clarity on if Council wanted 
someone to review the CAFR’s. Mayor Shornak confirmed that it was for the budget. Dane said that was 
not what the APA said. If we have someone helping with budgets, we already have budgets. What are 
they helping with? Gore said they were just reviewing the budgets, not actually interfering with staff. 
Shornak agreed that point needed clarifying. Luman-Bailey said she needed to check on the procedure 
first. Gore said Council should still vote on starting the process. Shornak said she didn’t feel comfortable 
voting until the information is gathered and brought back to Council. Luman-Bailey suggested a revision. 
Approve moving forward with investigation. Shornak said requesting that Council request additional 
information on requesting additional information from Virginia First Cities and VML.  Pelham suggested 
that we support a subcommittee of Gore and Luman-Bailey. Shornak said she wanted to be on that. 
Pelham said she was making the motion. Shornak requested a point of order. Calos said that they all seem 
to be on the same page, and only need to clarify what they are requesting. Pelham continued with her 
motion that Vice Mayor Gore and Councilor Luman-Bailey get together to gather information requesting 
additional technical assistance from the Commonwealth of Virginia by way of VML or VACO to review 
the FY 2016-2018 budgets, which motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Councilor Zevgolis asked 
about CCR’s versus IR, and if we needed to waive the rules. Calos asked which rule was being waived. 
Zevgolis sought clarification as to if IR’s were considered part of the main agenda. It was noted that the 
IR item procedures are often changed. Mayor Shornak stated that she didn’t like that and it shouldn’t 
change. Shornak requested clarity on what is being voted on. Councilor Pelham repeated that Vice Mayor 
Gore and Councilor Luman-Bailey get together to gather information requesting additional technical 
assistance from the Commonwealth of Virginia by way of VML or VACO to review the FY 2016-2018 
budgets. Shornak said that the information needed to be brought back to Council, and Pelham agreed. 
Calos asked if that was part of the motion and again, Pelham agreed. The final motion is for Vice Mayor 
Gore and Councilor Luman-Bailey to collaborate on gathering information requesting additional technical 
assistance from the Commonwealth of Virginia, VML, or VACO, and to report back to Council. Vice 
Mayor Gore reiterated her second. There being no further discussion, upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
IR-2 Internal Audit – Requesting that Council approve obtaining quotes from entities to conduct 
an internal audit of the City’s current financial policies and procedures. Council decided to remove 
this item until they receive the information back from IR-1. 
 
IR-3 Forensic audit – requesting that Council approve obtaining quotes from entities to conduct a 
forensic audit of the City’s finances. Councilor Pelham moved for approval of this item, which motion 
was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Discussion ensued. Pelham said she placed this on the agenda due to 
financial director changes, city manager changes, city council changes, the CAFR’s are late, the financial 
department has had changes, and due to the change from one system to another system. Councilor 
Luman-Bailey asked if Pelham would consider holding off on that until the results of IR-1. She said she 
wasn’t sure if Petersburg got satisfaction from their request. Pelham asked if she had spoken with 
someone in Petersburg. Luman-Bailey said that she knew some of the people involved with assisting 
Petersburg, and wasn’t sure if it was helpful. Pelham said she would go with whatever the group decided 
to do. Luman-Bailey said that it was Gore’s original suggestion, which Gore denied. She said she was 
repeating the sentence for clarity, not for making a motion. Gore expressed concerns over social services 
and CSA and that they needed to look over some of their items. Requested that we look at what services 
PB Mares offers. Luman-Bailey said they could add it to the research being done in IR-1. Denton 
commented that she is not for all of this. She said if we go ahead and do the 2016 and 2017 CAFR’s done, 
it would give us a better picture. Said we don’t want to put any extra burden on our finance department. 
Shornak said we had an independent audit and she didn’t see anything in the findings to suggest that there 
was any type of malfeasance or problem. She said doing this is sending a message to the public that 
Council thinks there is fraud. After the comments, Council sought clarity from Calos regarding the need 
for a motion or amended motion. Calos said there should be a new motion for clarity. Vice Mayor Gore 
moved to add items IR-3 and IR-2 to IR-1, which motion was seconded by Councilor Pelham. There 
being no further discussion, upon roll call the vote resulted 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
 
Citizen Councilor Requests: 
 
Luman Bailey – noted that the Canoe Wilderness Inquiry people were at the City today. School children 
enjoyed it this morning, and it was free to the public this afternoon. She said they have a large, multi-
person canoe. She noted that a large canoe could be great for teambuilding, education and physical 
activity. She further noted that Dr. Morris presented at the VML and mentioned the Boathouse herb and 
garden that they did in Hopewell. The Boathouse in Rockett’s Landing will present the Boathouse herb 
and garden in Hopewell.  
 
Gore – reporting about the traffic at schools not monitoring the crosswalks. She said she was concerned 
that a child could be injured. Dane said that Butler was looking into highlighted crosswalks for safety. 
 
Shornak – requested a report from the Beacon LLC be put on the next agenda, including expenses and 
income for the fiscal year. She also requested a report from the Hopewell Downtown Partnership for the 



October 10, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

next agenda and the agenda process. Mayor Shornak also requested that the Council members who 
attended the VML conference be prepared to report at the November 21 council meeting. 
 
Denton – requested that Council repeat “I will show respect” ten times on the way home. She said that 
Council is in need of that.  
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 12:01a.m., motion was made by Mayor Shornak and seconded by Councilor Pelham to 
adjourn. All Council responded aye. 
 
 
 
       
             
       Jackie Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
      
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



October 23, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD OCTOBER 23, 2017 

 
A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Wednesday, October 23, 2017, at 6:15 p.m. 

in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor  
 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:15 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent (arrived at 7:22 pm) 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - absent (arrived at 6:20 pm) 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Denton and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to adopt the agenda.  
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - absent 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
     
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Holloway, to go into Closed 
Meeting for discussion and consideration of prospective candidates for employment  of appointment of 
specific appointees of city council (city manager, city attorney); and consultation with legal counsel 
employed or retained by city council related thereto and other specific legal matters requiring the provision 
of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) 
and (8), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 



October 23, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
     
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - absent 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 10:00 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 

 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 10:00 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Luman-Bailey, and seconded by Councilor Pelham 
to adjourn. All councilors responded “aye”. 
 
 
 
 
       
       /s/     
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/     
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

INUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

A Meeting of the City Council of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, was held Tuesday, October 24, 
2017, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, 
Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor (arrived at 6:35 pm) 
     Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor (arrived at 6:33pm) 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Janice B. Denton, Councilor  
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor (arrived at 6:35 pm) 
 
     Charles Dane, Interim City Manager 
     Stefan M. Calos of Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:30 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 
    Mayor Shornak   - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - absent (arrived at 6:35 pm) 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - absent (arrived at 6:33pm) 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent (arrived at 6:35pm) 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 

At 6:34 p.m. Councilor Zevgolis moved to go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and 
consideration of prospective candidates for employment (city manager, city attorney); (2) 
discussion of performance of specific appointees of council (city manager); (3) discussion of 
appointment of specific appointees of city council (Community Policy and Management Team 
Committee, Oversight Committee, National League of Cities, Hopewell Water Renewal 
Commission); (4) discussion or consideration of the investment of public funds where competition 
or bargaining is involved, where, if made public initially, the financial interest of the City would 
be adversely affected (Hopewell Downtown Partnership, public safety building);  (5) consultation 
with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual or probable 
litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the 
negotiating or litigating posture of the public body (grievance appeal, EEOC decision); and (6) 
consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding 
specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [three items], (6), (7), and (8), respectively, which motion was 
seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - --- (absent) 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - --- (absent) 
 
AMEND/ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to adopt the agenda, which motion was seconded by 
Councilor Luman-Bailey.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted. 
 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
 
 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF   
AMERICA 
 

Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending.  The prayer 
was led by Chaplain Herman Crockett of the John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, led by Councilor Pelham. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Denton moved to approve the Consent Agenda which appears below. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Pelham. 

 

C-1 Minutes:  October 18, 2017 
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions: Urban Land Institute Priority Planning Development Study 

– November 21, 2017 
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Both attached 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:  None 
C-6 Routine Grant Approval: Recreation & Parks - $300 from Virginia Association for Competitive 

Swimming, Inc. – to create new lifeguard position 
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: November 21, 2017 – request for conditional use permit for 

covered self-storage facility; spot blight; request for vacation of an alley off of 1507 Miles Ave; 
request to amend the Zoning Ordinance Article III and Article III-A Accessory Buildings; request 
to amend the Hopewell Zoning Map for specific sub-parcels; a second request to vacate a portion 
of an alley located in the High Point Subdivision; request for conditional use permit to decrease 
total square footage of the construction of a single-family dwelling. 

C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: EDA (August 7, 2017); HRHA (August 14, 2017); 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

Library Board (October 17, 2017) 
C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: Small Business proclamation; Historic Tax Credits 

resolution (both accepted by Evan Kaufman, Director of Hopewell Downtown Partnership) 
C-10 Additional Announcements:  
  
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There were no public hearings. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS: 
Tim Donahue, a resident of Ward 1, stated that he had some work done on the crawl space in his house, 
requiring a building permit. He said he spent $9,000 on the work to be done. Mr. Donahue said that when 
he went to get the building inspected, he had problems. He said he had to pay $400 for a work permit, and 
the inspector looked at the space, but did nothing else. He said the inspector didn’t even turn on the 
switch to see if the electrical was working. He said for $400 he expected more than that. Mayor Shornak 
asked Mr. Donahue to get with Dane to discuss the problems with his building permit, which he said he 
would do. 
 
Johnny Partin, a resident of Ward 3, then came forward and spoke to Council. He said that Mr. Wayne 
Walton, retired former councilor, told him it was good to work together, disagree, but always act 
professionally. He said good will disappeared from Council at the February 28, 2017 council meeting. He 
said all meetings since then have been bad, including the October 10 meeting. He said the councilors all 
attack each other and don’t seem to care. He said he didn’t understand why they couldn’t just act 
professional. He reminded them that was all that Walton asked of them. Partin challenged Council to 
work together to complete one project tighter to clean up a neighborhood, or other project, as a team. He 
asked Council if they were up to the challenge of working as a team. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1  Offer in Compromise to Pay Delinquent Real Estate Taxes – Dane explained that the owner 
the property located at 2909 Danville Street owed for taxes for tax years 2009 through and 
including 2017, and is now offering the City an offer in compromise to pay those delinquent 
taxes, settling all for $17,000. Virginia Code § 58.1-3994 provides that the Treasurer’s office, 
with authority of the governing body, can accept such an offer. Terri Batton, the Treasurer, also 
came forward to answer questions. 
 
Councilor Pelham asked if we could get the value of the property from the Assessor’s office. 
Dane said we try, but that the deal currently being offered to the City is the best deal. Dane said 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

that we could sell the property at auction, but had no guarantee of obtaining the amount currently 
being offered. Batton agreed and explained that sometimes, we get very small amounts at tax 
sales that do not cover the past due taxes, nor the fees or interest. Dane said that with this deal, at 
least we would be getting the taxes paid in full.  
 
Councilor Luman-Bailey asked what the plans for the property were. Batton said that there were 
new buyers who planned to fix up the property and live in it. She said that would be a great idea 
for the City instead of another rental property. 
 
Councilor Zevgolis said this was a good example of the City working with its citizens. He said 
he was familiar with the property, though not the current owner. He verified that we would be 
getting the taxes, but forgiving the fees and interests, to which Batton agreed. Zevgolis said that 
this was similar to the way in which Richmond collected over $2 million in fees. He said he 
recommended approval. Councilor Denton moved to approve the acceptance of the offer in 
compromise for the property located at 2909 Danville Street for tax years 2009 through and including 
2017, and allow the Treasurer to reduce or write off the penalty and interest in the amount of $7,160.46, 
and Councilor Holloway seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
R-2 Beacon Theater 2017, LLC report by the managing member, Beacon Theater 2012 
Manager, Inc. – This was a presentation requested by Mayor Shornak at the October 10, 2017 meeting. 
Dane made a brief PowerPoint presentation, and provided Council with updated figures from the Beacon 
Theater.  Councilor Zevgolis asked Dane if the lost board member position has been filled. Dane said that 
by virtue of being the interim city manager, he is on the board. Zevgolis then asked about the loan 
$90,000 loan the City gave to the Beacon. Dane commented that the amount was actually $300,000. 
Councilor Zevgolis said that the $90,000 was separate from the $300,000 in that the $90,000 was a loan 
that was to be repaid to Council. Vice Mayor Gore stated that she recalled that the $90,000 was a separate 
loan. Dane agreed that it was. Zevgolis said that the Beacon should honor the loan. Dane told Council that 
it had given the Beacon $300,000 last year, $200,000 this year, and the ask of Council should be even less 
next year. Dane said that he knew Council wanted the Beacon to do more community-based programs, 
but in order to do so, the Beacon could not focus on being self-sufficient, which Council also wanted. 
Councilor Zevgolis said that he had no problem with the Beacon using the $90,000 it currently owes the 
City for community-based shows for citizens and children—free shows. 
 
Councilor Luman Bailey said that community theater and classes for children had slowed down. She said 
that maybe the money left to the Beacon by Ms. Gibbs could be used for that. 
 
Dane said that many theaters are financed by the cities in which they reside. He said that Lauren Willis, 
the current director of the Beacon, would love to do more community-based programs, but he can’t do it 
if he is held to the breakeven point. 
 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

Luman-Bailey said that we gave up the tax credits. 
 
Dane answered Councilor Zevgolis question from earlier regarding the board membership of the Beacon 
Theater 2012 Manager, Inc. by stating that Peter Eliades had replaced his father, Homer, on the board. 
 
Shornak asked when the Beacon Theater 2017, LLC would run its course. Dane replied that in February 
2018, the LLC could be removed. Shornak advised that the figures presented looked good, and that she 
hopes the trend continues. She said that she didn’t want the Beacon to be only used for income-producing 
shows. She said that music for the children meant a lot to her. Shornak said she wanted to delve deeper 
into the performing arts, even if it needed to be put in the budget. Dane said that the Land Institute was 
working on that. Councilor Denton asked if we were going to get the Petersburg Symphony back. Dane 
responded they would return to the Beacon in April 2018. 
 
R-3 Report from Hopewell Downtown Partnership given by Evan Kaufman, Executive Director 
This report was placed on the agenda at a request from Mayor Shornak. Director Kaufman discussed the 
state of downtown, including recent improvements. He noted that he had changed the Farmer’s Market to 
Third Thursday because it was more successful that way. He said that Butts to Broadway was a great 
event. Kaufman said HDP would be continuing some of the smaller retail events and festivals (e.g., wine 
festival, harvest festival, etc.) He said that maybe Council’s challenge (referring to that issued by Partin in 
the Communications from Citizens section) could be to fill a bag with goods at the Harvest Festival. 
Kaufman said that he was planning to have thirteen events next year. 
 
Gore said that she had requested some information from Small Business program, and asked if Kaufman 
would be interested in receiving the information and packets. Kaufman said that would be great. 
 
Shornak remarked that it was very disconcerting when HDP announced a business opening and the 
business did not open. Kaufman agreed. He explained that sometimes business owners are slower than 
they anticipate with opening a business, or that something comes up and changes things. He said going 
forward he will not announce a new business opening until he has a CO. Shornak asked about the status 
of the loitering problem downtown. Kaufman said it improved whenever the bicycle police officers were 
present. Shornak said she wanted to coordinate with keeping streets clean. 
 
Luman-Bailey said this was a great idea. She said she recalled several years ago when they did a project 
where they spruced up downtown, including plants. Kaufman said he could do that. 
 
R-4  Request for approval to subdivide 1511 Rev. C. W. Harris Street – Ms. Tevya Griffin, 
Director of Planning presented to Council information regarding the requested subdivision of this area. 
She said that as of now the property was non-conforming because it had two buildings on one lot. She 
further explained that the owner had an office and a warehouse on the property. In response to Councilor 
Pelham’s question, Griffin said the owner was requesting to subdivide the property so that he could sell 
the office and keep the warehouse. Pelham asked if there would be any restrictions regarding the 
proposed sale of the office. Ms. Griffin said there might be a buffering requirement (meaning the planting 
of trees or a fence), but otherwise, she didn’t know. She said it depended on what business purchased the 
property. Councilor Zevgolis sought to confirm the lot sizes, which Griffin did. Councilor Denton moved 
to approve the subdivision of 1511 Rev. C.W. Harris Street. Mayor Shornak seconded the motion. Upon 
the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
R-5 Discussion of request to amend Article XI-A, Corridor Development District (B-4) of the 
Hopewell Zoning Ordinance to allow self-storage facilities – Griffin presented to Council information 
regarding revising B-4 for conditional use. She stated that there was a proposed self-storage facility 
coming into the City. Vice Mayor Gore asked if there were any concerns. Griffin responded that they 
originally did not want self-service storage units in the B-4 area. She said they would only allow this 
because there was sufficient storage. Gore asked Dane about the economic development angle. Dane said 
this was part of trying to get things happening in the area. Dane said the renderings were attractive. 
Griffin remarked that the owner was present and that he had brought renderings with him. The renderings 
were dispensed to Council. 
 
Councilor Zevgolis asked if we were keeping B-3 the same, to which Griffin responded in the affirmative. 
Zevgolis asked if we were required by law to make the requested change? He said there was a concern 
about overly bright lights and 8-foot fences with razor wire atop them. Pelham asked about the lighting 
for the proposed storage facility. Griffin said that only 5 candle-lumens were allowed, which was 
moderate lighting. Pelham asked about the fencing. Griffin replied that in B-4 area, no barbed wire 
fencing was allowed. Griffin said this matter would come back before Council for their approval at a later 
meeting. 
 
R-6 Request for appropriation of funds for Riverwalk – Dane advised Council that the City was 
only $250,000 short, including at $25,000 buffer, of completing the goal and was requesting $250,000 of 
the $600,000 being returned to the City by the EDA. Pelham asked about the $100,000 requested last 
year, and then the additional $150,000 that was requested after that, and the $250,000 now requested—
she asked if the total requested was $500,000. Dane said that it was, but explained that the City had been 
allocating funds for the Riverwalk all along. Gore asked if the costs changed. Dane said that nothing had 
changed since the presentation to Council in closed session. Gore clarified that the money could not be 
used until the 2016 CAFR was done. Councilor Denton moved to approve the allocation of $250,000 of 
returned EDA funds, to Riverwalk funds, and to place the remaining funds in reserve for future Council 
consideration, for the City Park entranceway and statuary projects. Councilor Pelham seconded the 
motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
R-7 Request Approval of Resolution for Personal Property Tax Relief Percentage for 2017 – 
Terri Batton, Treasurer presented to Council information regarding the Tax Relief Percentage for 2017 
(46%), per the resolution included in Council’s packet. Shornak asked Batton to explain the tax relief. 
Batton said that the TRP was set by the State, and that it fluctuated up and down. She said that originally 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

the goal was to get to 100% relief so there would be no personal property tax, but that did not work and 
they had to cap it. She said with the increase in vehicles and value, this year’s rate was a bit lower than 
previous years.   
 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH THE PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX RELIEF PERCENTAGE FOR 
2017, IN THE CITY OF HOPEWELL, VIRGINIA IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PERSONAL 
PROPERTY TAX RELIEF ACT OF 1998 AND THE 2005 APPROPRIATIONS ACT 

 
WHEREAS, the Personal Property Tax Relief Act of 1998, Virginia Code Section 58.1-3523 et seq. 

(“PPTRA”), has been substantially modified by the enactment of Chapter 1 of the Acts of Assembly, 2004 
Special Session I (Senate Bill 5005), and the provision of Item 503 of Chapter 951 of the 2005 Acts of 
Assembly; and 

 
WHEREAS, these legislative enactments require the City of Hopewell, Virginia to take affirmative 

steps to implement these changes, and to provide for the computation and allocation of relief provided 
pursuant to the PPTRA as revised; and  

  
WHEREAS, these legislative enactments provide for the appropriation to the City of a fixed sum 

to be used exclusively for the provision of tax relief to owners of qualifying personal use vehicles that 
are subject to the personal property tax on such vehicles. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, that 

qualifying vehicles situated within the City during the tax year 2017, shall receive personal property tax 
relief in the following manner: 
 

• Personal use vehicles valued at $1,000 or less will be eligible for 100% tax relief; 
• Personal use vehicles valued at more than $1,000 and up to $20,000 will be eligible for 46% 

tax relief; 
• Personal use vehicles valued at more than $20,000 shall only receive 46% tax relief on the 

first $20,000 of value; and 
• All other vehicles which do not meet the definition of “qualifying” (e.g., business use 

vehicles, farm use vehicles, motor homes, etc.) will not be eligible for any form of tax relief 
under this program. 

 

Councilor Denton moved to approve the proposed resolution authorizing 46% as the percentage for 
personal property tax relief for the 2017 tax year. Councilor Luman-Bailey seconded the motion. Upon 
the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
R-8 Approve acceptance of grant from the Cameron Foundation – Griffin presented to council the 
receipt of a grant of $24,000 from The Cameron Foundation. This grant is to protect the cedar trees. 
Griffin noted that this amount still left them with a $5,300 deficit of the total funds needed to fund the 
effort. She also noted that this was a joint effort between Staff and the Architectural Review Board. 
Councilor Pelham asked Griffin to pursue additional grant money to obtain the additional $5,300, which 
Griffin said she would do. Gore thanked Ms. Joyner who was present in the audience for her hard work 
on obtaining this grant. Ms. Joyner advised that Ms. Calos was the one who deserved the praise. 
Councilor Pelham moved to approve receipt of the $24,000 grant from the Cameron Foundation to the 
City of Hopewell Department of Development. Councilor Luman-Bailey seconded the motion. Upon the 
roll call, the vote resulted: 
  
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
 
As it was almost 10:30, Mayor Shornak asked if there was a motion to continue past 10:30 p.m.  
Councilor Pelham made the motion, which was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the 
vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - No 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
 
Reports of City Attorney – Nothing to report. 
 
Reports of City Clerk – Nothing to report.  
 
Reports of City Council. 
 
Individual Councilors  
 
IR-1 Shornak – Agenda Process – Shornak requested that the agenda process be streamlined to return to 
its original deadlines. She said that lately Council had been receiving its packets on Friday night and 
sometimes on Saturday, which did not give Council adequate time to review the contents of the packet. 
The Clerk remarked that the schedule had been broadened to allow Staff time to get its items in, 
especially with so much going on regarding the budget and other queries. Mayor Shornak said that we 
could no longer allow such leeway. From now on the deadlines as outlined in the agenda have to be 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

adhered to, including that Staff has to have items to the Clerk by 10:00 am Wednesday, and the agenda 
packets have to be to Council no later than Thursday afternoon. 
 
Mayor Shornak also remarked on the fact that the most recent agendas had been packed which made for 
very long meetings. She asked that Staff be mindful and try to keep the agendas from being too full so 
that meetings were not six hours long. She asked that, if Staff was aware of their being several items on 
the agenda that could be problematic, to perhaps move some of them to the next agenda. Dane said he 
would keep that in mind. 
 
 
 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
 
IR-2 Gore – Request for a work session to review Council Rules and Procedures - Vice Mayor Gore 
said she added this time so that Council could be looking at dates to review the Rules and Procedures 
since there was not going to be a Retreat. She asked that the clerk send an email to Council to get 
available dates for a meeting in December for Council to go over the rules and procedures. All of Council 
agreed. 
 
IR-3 Gore – Request for work session for Council to implement a 5-year Finance Plan. Vie Mayor 
Gore said that, with all of the recent issues regarding capital projects, she thought it would be a good idea 
for Council to implement a five-year finance plan, and thought it would be good for Council to schedule a 
work session to discuss this further. Dane said he thought this was a good idea, and agreed that there 
should be a five-year plan for capital projects and a ten-year plan for equipment. 
 
Citizen Councilor Requests: 
 
Zevgolis – noted that the organization chart on the website is incorrect. He said that the Commissioner of 
Revenue’s office was left off and that the real estate assessor is listed twice. Dane said he would look into 
it and see it was corrected. 
 
Dane – mentioned that there had been a small fire at John Randolph Hospital that caused about twelve 
rooms to be evacuated. 
 
Pelham – reminded everyone that it was trick or treat time of year and that children would be running 
around throughout the City, and to please be careful. 
 
Shornak – Reminded everyone of the 5k race  
 
Pelham – Mentioned that there was a function at Crystal Lake to help those with disabilities 
 
Luman-Bailey – said that the City won Platinum with Go Green 
 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 

At 10:42 p.m. Council went back into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration of 
prospective candidates for employment (city manager, city attorney); (2) discussion of 
performance of specific appointees of council (city manager); (3) discussion of appointment of 
specific appointees of city council (Community Policy and Management Team Committee, 
Oversight Committee, National League of Cities, Hopewell Water Renewal Commission); (4) 
discussion or consideration of the investment of public funds where competition or bargaining is 
involved, where, if made public initially, the financial interest of the City would be adversely 
affected (Hopewell Downtown Partnership, public safety building);  (5) consultation with legal 
counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation, 
where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or 
litigating posture of the public body (grievance appeal, EEOC decision); and (6) consultation with 
legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal 
matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code 
§ 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [three items], (6), (7), and (8), respectively. 

 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 11:35 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-
meeting requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon 
the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
 
Councilor Zevgolis moved to amend the agenda to include the appointment of Christian Volk to the 
Hopewell Water Renewal Commission, the appointment of Brenda Pelham to the CPMT commission, 
and the appointment of Jasmine Gore as the voting delegate to the National League of Cities and appoint 
Christina Luman-Bailey as alternate voting delegate to the National League of Cities.  Upon the roll call, 
the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 



October 24, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 11:44 p.m. motion was made by Councilor Luman-Bailey and seconded by Councilor 
Zevgolis to adjourn.  All council responded “aye” to “all in favor say ‘aye’”. 
 
 
       
             
       Jackie Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
      
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



October 25, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD OCTOBER 25, 2017 

 
A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Wednesday, October 25, 2017, at 6:15 p.m. 

in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor  
 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:15 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - absent (arrived at 6:22 pm) 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent (arrived at 6:25 pm) 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - absent (arrived at 6:22 pm) 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made at 6:20 p.m. by Councilor Denton and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to adopt 
the agenda.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - absent 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - absent 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
     
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 At 6:23, motion was made by Councilor Holloway, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore, to go into 
Closed Meeting for discussion and consideration of prospective candidates for employment  of appointment 
of specific appointees of city council (city manager, city attorney); and consultation with legal counsel 
employed or retained by city council related thereto and other specific legal matters requiring the provision 
of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) 
and (8), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 



October 25, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
     
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 9:20 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 

 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 9:20 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to 
adjourn. All councilors responded “aye”. 
 
 
 
 
       
       /s/     
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/     
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



November 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD NOVEMBER 2, 2017 

 
A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Wednesday, October 18, 2017, at 6:15 p.m. 

in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
 
     Charles Dane, Interim City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Stefan Calos of Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
 
 
  ABSENT:  Both Messrs. Calos and Dane departed the meeting shortly after  
     Council entered into Closed Meeting 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:16 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey            -     present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

           Councilor Pelham         -        present 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made at 6:16 p.m. by Councilor Pelham and seconded by Councilor Denton to adopt 
the agenda.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Mayor Shornak   - yes  
 
WAIVE RULES 
 
 Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to waive the rules to change the order of the November 21, 
2017 agenda so that regular business items can come before the public hearings.  Vice Mayor Gore asked 



November 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
why this was being requested. Interim City Manager Charles Dane explained that he was anticipating 
seven public hearings, and was concerned that it would push the business to so late the public would not 
be able to hear it.  There being no further discussion, upon the roll call the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Mayor Shornak   - yes  
 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 At 6:22 p.m. a motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to go 
into Closed Meeting for discussion and consideration of prospective candidates for employment  of 
appointment of specific appointees of city council (city manager, city attorney); discussion of performance 
of specific appointees of council (city manager); and consultation with legal counsel employed or retained 
by city council related thereto and other specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by 
counsel retained by City Council, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [two items] and (8), 
respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Mayor Shornak   - yes  
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 10:20 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 

 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Mayor Shornak   - yes  
 
 Councilor Luman-Bailey made a motion to amend the agenda to add item SB-1, which motion 
was seconded by Councilor Denton.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 



November 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Mayor Shornak   - yes  
 
SB-1 Amendment to Employment Agreement of Interim City Manager – Council discussed the 
appropriate wording for the motion to revise the interim city manager’s employment agreement.  
Councilor Denton moved to amend section 2 of the Employment Agreement of the interim city manager 
to allow him to hire a finance director, by striking and initialing the following: “except Employee is not 
authorized under Chapter VI of the Charter to appoint a director of finance.” This motion was seconded 
by Councilor Zevgolis.  Vice Mayor Gore asked if the motion could be made more specific. Mayor 
Shornak asked the Clerk if the verbiage of the motion had been received from the City Attorney, to which 
the Clerk replied in the affirmative. Mayor Shornak stated that the language should be fine since it was 
fine with the attorney. Councilor Pelham agreed that the motion should be specific. Mayor Shornak said it 
was ridiculous to have to have more than was already stated. Councilor Denton agreed that the stated 
motion should be fine. Councilor Luman-Bailey asked what needed to be added. Vice Mayor Gore said 
that she wanted to add that the finance director would be working under a contract and not be a regular 
City employee. Councilor Zevgolis made the substitute motion: To amend section 2 of the Employment 
Agreement of the Interim City Manager to allow him to hire a finance director to work under contract 
beginning December 1, 2017 through November 30, 2018, by striking and initialing the following, 
“except Employee is not authorized under Chapter VI of the Charter to appoint a director of finance,” and 
adding the language above. This motion was seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote 
resulted: 

    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Mayor Shornak   - no  
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 11:01 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Denton to 
adjourn. All councilors agreed to adjourn by saying “aye” in unison. 
 
 
 
 
       
       /s/     
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
/s/     
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  



November 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

 
       



 

PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT 



DATE:  November 14, 2017 

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram, Human Resources Specialist  

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – October 2017 

 

ADDITIONS (Regular FT and PT positions only) 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
BIGGS, RASHAD INFO TECH P/T NET/PC SPEC 10/11/2017 

BRIDGEMAN II, JAMES FIRE FIRE FIGHTER 10/26/2017 
BURROW, CHARLES PUBLIC WORKS SR PW MAINT SPEC 10/25/2017 
COLON-OTERO, LUIS WATER RENEWAL SAMPLE TECH 10/11/2017 

HAWKES, ROBERT DEVELOPMENT BUILDING OFFICIAL 10/16/2017 
NICHOLS, KYLE POLICE POLICE OFFICER 10/30/2017 
RADCLIFF, KYLE RECREATION P/T LIFEGUARD 10/25/2017 
SAMSAL, DIANA FINANCE REAL ESTATE APPR 10/25/2017 
SCOTT, MARILYN POLICE P/T RECORDS SPEC 10/25/2017 
WALKER, PEGGY RECREATION PT SPEC EVENTS ASST 10/11/2017 
WILKINS, DENISE HDSS BEN PROG SPC II 10/11/2017 

 

SEPARATIONS 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
CRUTCHFIELD, RONNIE WATER RENEWAL WWT OPER TRAINEE 10/06/2017 

GEATHERS, TOMMY RECREATION P/T VAN DRIVER 10/31/2017 
HARGIS, CHARLES POLICE POLICE OFFICER 10/26/2017 

ALLEN JR, TIMOTHY PUBLIC WORKS SR PW MAINT SPEC 10/31/2017 
 
 
 
CC: Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager  Ron Hamilton, IT 
 Renia Coles, HR Director   Jay Rezin, IT 
 Debbie Pershing, Senior Executive Assistant  Dave Harless, Risk/Safety Coordinator 
 Lance Wolff, Interim Finance Director  Carol Scarbrough, Parks & Recreation 
 Dipo Muritala, Accounting Manager   

Kim Hunter, Payroll  
  



 

ROUTINE 
GRANT 

APPROVAL 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 
       

  
 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

   Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Appropriations of Aide To Locality Funding Grant  
                                                                   (ATL). 
 
ISSUE:  Adjusting the allocation for Aid To Locality Fire grant in the Fire Department budget 
from $0.00 to $75,525.00 which has been allocated to Hopewell through Fire Programs. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Appropriate $75,525.  
 
TIMING:   Immediate  
 
BACKGROUND:   To adjust the Grant Funding for the Hopewell Fire Department. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Appropriate Grant Monies in the General Fund to the Hopewell Fire      
                                    Department.  
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  Yes  
 
STAFF:  Chief Hunter HFD  
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

 
 

JEFFREY D. STERN, Ph.D.                         SUSAN L. MONGOLD 
State Coordinator                                                             Deputy Coordinator – Mission Support
                

BRETT A. BURDICK                                  JOHN SCRIVANI 
Chief Deputy Coordinator                             Deputy Coordinator – Disaster Services 

 

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
  Department of Emergency Management  

10501 Trade Court 
North Chesterfield, Virginia 23236-3713 

Tel:  (804) 897-6500        TDD (804) 674-2417     FAX (804) 897-6506 

 
 

 

October 13, 2017 

 

 

 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Interim City Manager 

Hopewell City 

300 N. Main Street Room 218 

Hopewell, VA  23860 

 

RE: FY 2017 State Homeland Security Program Grant (SHSP) 

 

Dear Mr. Dane: 

 

 The Virginia Department of Emergency Management (VDEM) is pleased to announce 

the allocation of a 2017 State Homeland Security Program Grant (SHSP) CFDA 97.067 from 

the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA). Appropriation authority for this program is The Department of Homeland Security 

Appropriations Act, 2017 (Public Law 115-31). Your locality has been allocated funding for: 

 

Project Title:  Hazardous Materials Commodity Flow Study 

Federal Grant Allocation:  $20,800.00 

Subrecipient’s Required Cost Share/Match Amount:  N/A 

Total Grant Award:  $20,800.00 

Obligation Period:  September 01, 2017 to March 31, 2019 

 

*This letter serves as notification of your allocation and is not an authorization to incur 

expenditures. Funds will be formally awarded to your locality through a Grant Agreement 

issued by VDEM upon its satisfactory review of your application package submission and 

approval of a budget application in VDEM’s Electronic Grants Management System (eGMS).* 

You must initiate these steps, described under Accessing Your Allocation, within 30 days from 

the date of this notification. 

 



 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 2 

October 13, 2017 

 

Program Purpose 

 

 The purpose of the State Homeland Security Program is to assist state and local 

preparedness activities that address high-priority preparedness gaps across all core capabilities 

that support terrorism preparedness.  All supported investments are based on capability targets 

and gaps identified during the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA) 

process, and assessed in the State Preparedness Report (SPR). 

 

 The FY 2017 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) supports state and local efforts 

to prevent terrorism and other catastrophic events and to prepare the Nation for the threats and 

hazards that pose the greatest risk to the security of the United States. References to these 

priorities can be found throughout this document.  The FY 2017 HSGP provides funding to 

implement investments that enhance terrorism preparedness and serve to build, sustain, and 

deliver the 32 core capabilities essential to achieving the National Preparedness Goal (the Goal) 

of a secure and resilient Nation. The allowable costs under FY 2017 HSGP support the core 

capabilities across the five mission areas of Prevention, Protection, Mitigation, Response, and 

Recovery. 

 

Important Award Terms and Conditions 

 

Subrecipients must comply with the following federal requirements: 

 FY 2017 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) Notice of Funding Opportunity 

Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) NOFO 

 Department of Homeland Security Standard Terms and Conditions for 2017 

DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards 

2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements 

 

Management and administration (M&A) 

 

Sub-recipients may retain and use up to 5% of the award for costs directly relating to the 

management and administration of SHSP funds, such as financial management and 

monitoring.  

 

Indirect (Facilities & Administrative [F&A]) Costs  

 

Indirect costs are allowable under this program as described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.414. With the 

exception of recipients who have never received a negotiated indirect cost rate as described in 2 

C.F.R. § 200.414(f), recipients must have an approved indirect cost rate agreement with their 

cognizant federal agency to charge indirect costs to this award.  

https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=e02daaa551dec05bfb82ed9f85151c09&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl


 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 3 

October 13, 2017 

 

Accessing Your Allocation 

 

 To access your allocation, you must complete the following steps within 30 days from 

the date of this notification: 

 

Step 1:  Complete these documents and submit electronically as one package to your Grants 

Administrator: 

 Point of Contact (POC) Form 

 FEMA Environmental and Historic Preservation (EHP) Screening Form 

o All projects must comply with EHP requirements. Subrecipients must not obligate 

and/or expend any (federal and/or non-federal matching) funds on any project having 

the potential to impact environments planning and historical preservation resources 

without the prior approval of FEMA. For more information, please visit 

http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/ or contact your Grants 

Administrator. 

 Assurances- Non-construction Form 

 FEMA 20-16C Form 

 SF-LLL – Certification Regarding Lobbying Form 

 

Step 2:  Log in to the VDEM Electronic Grants Management System (eGMS) at 

https://www.ttegms.com/virginia/login.cfm to complete and submit a budget application for your 

allocation. If you do not have access to eGMS, please contact your Grants Administrator. 

[Click on Grant Management, Budget Application, from the drop-down menu. Click the link 

named FY 2017  State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) to complete your budget 

application.] 

 

Following review and approval of the budget by the Grants Administrator, notification will be 

sent through an eGMS automated email message to the subrecipient point of contact entered in 

the budget application. 

 

Reporting 

 

 Sub-recipients are obligated to submit quarterly progress reports as a condition of their 

award. The report, which can be found at  http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-

community/grants/all-grant-forms must report on progress towards implementing plans described 

in the funding proposal and the approved budget.  Reports must be submitted to your Grants 

Administrator by email within 15 days following the end of the quarter.  

 
 Within 30 days after the end of the period of performance, sub-recipients must submit a 

final progress report detailing all accomplishments throughout the period of performance. After the 

report has been reviewed and approved by the Grants Office, a close-out notice will be issued 

which will indicate the period of performance as closed, list any remaining funds that will be 

deobligated, and address the record retention requirements for grant records. The sub-recipient  

must return any funds that have been drawn down, but remain unliquidated in its financial records.

http://www.vaemergency.com/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms
https://www.ttegms.com/virginia/login.cfm
http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms
http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms


 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 4 

October 13, 2017 

 

 

 Please initiate the steps described under Accessing Your Allocation within 30 days from 

the date of this notification. If you have any questions regarding this award, please contact 

Tammy Myers in the Grants Office at 804-897-9717 or tammy.myers@vdem.virginia.gov. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

       

 Jeffrey D. Stern, Ph.D. 

 

JDS/ttm 

 

cc: Chief John Tunstall, Fire Chief/Emergency Management Coordinator 

 Mr. Jack King, Director of Regional Support, East Division 

 Ms. Lori Dachille, Chief Regional Coordinator, Region 1 

 

 

 



 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

 
 

JEFFREY D. STERN, Ph.D.                         SUSAN L. MONGOLD 
State Coordinator                                                             Deputy Coordinator – Mission Support
                

BRETT A. BURDICK                                  JOHN SCRIVANI 
Chief Deputy Coordinator                             Deputy Coordinator – Disaster Services 

 

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
  Department of Emergency Management  

10501 Trade Court 
North Chesterfield, Virginia 23236-3713 

Tel:  (804) 897-6500        TDD (804) 674-2417     FAX (804) 897-6506 

 
 

 

October 13, 2017 

 

 

 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Interim City Manager 

Hopewell City 

300 N. Main Street Room 218 

Hopewell, VA  23860 

 

RE: FY 2017 State Homeland Security Program Grant (SHSP) 

 

Dear Mr. Dane: 

 

 The Virginia Department of Emergency Management (VDEM) is pleased to announce 

the allocation of a 2017 State Homeland Security Program Grant (SHSP) CFDA 97.067 from 

the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA). Appropriation authority for this program is The Department of Homeland Security 

Appropriations Act, 2017 (Public Law 115-31). Your locality has been allocated funding for: 

 

Project Title:  Firefighting Foam Operations 

Federal Grant Allocation:  $31,000.00 

Subrecipient’s Required Cost Share/Match Amount:  N/A 

Total Grant Award:  $31,000.00 

Obligation Period:  September 01, 2017 to March 31, 2019 

 

*This letter serves as notification of your allocation and is not an authorization to incur 

expenditures. Funds will be formally awarded to your locality through a Grant Agreement 

issued by VDEM upon its satisfactory review of your application package submission and 

approval of a budget application in VDEM’s Electronic Grants Management System (eGMS).* 

You must initiate these steps, described under Accessing Your Allocation, within 30 days from 

the date of this notification. 

 



 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 2 

October 13, 2017 

 

Program Purpose 

 

 The purpose of the State Homeland Security Program is to assist state and local 

preparedness activities that address high-priority preparedness gaps across all core capabilities 

that support terrorism preparedness.  All supported investments are based on capability targets 

and gaps identified during the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA) 

process, and assessed in the State Preparedness Report (SPR). 

 

 The FY 2017 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) supports state and local efforts 

to prevent terrorism and other catastrophic events and to prepare the Nation for the threats and 

hazards that pose the greatest risk to the security of the United States. References to these 

priorities can be found throughout this document.  The FY 2017 HSGP provides funding to 

implement investments that enhance terrorism preparedness and serve to build, sustain, and 

deliver the 32 core capabilities essential to achieving the National Preparedness Goal (the Goal) 

of a secure and resilient Nation. The allowable costs under FY 2017 HSGP support the core 

capabilities across the five mission areas of Prevention, Protection, Mitigation, Response, and 

Recovery. 

 

Important Award Terms and Conditions 

 

Subrecipients must comply with the following federal requirements: 

 FY 2017 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) Notice of Funding Opportunity 

Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) NOFO 

 Department of Homeland Security Standard Terms and Conditions for 2017 

DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards 

2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements 

 

Management and administration (M&A) 

 

Sub-recipients may retain and use up to 5% of the award for costs directly relating to the 

management and administration of SHSP funds, such as financial management and 

monitoring.  

 

Indirect (Facilities & Administrative [F&A]) Costs  

 

Indirect costs are allowable under this program as described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.414. With the 

exception of recipients who have never received a negotiated indirect cost rate as described in 2 

C.F.R. § 200.414(f), recipients must have an approved indirect cost rate agreement with their 

cognizant federal agency to charge indirect costs to this award.  

https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=e02daaa551dec05bfb82ed9f85151c09&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl


 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 3 

October 13, 2017 

 

Accessing Your Allocation 

 

 To access your allocation, you must complete the following steps within 30 days from 

the date of this notification: 

 

Step 1:  Complete these documents and submit electronically as one package to your Grants 

Administrator: 

 Point of Contact (POC) Form 

 FEMA Environmental and Historic Preservation (EHP) Screening Form 

o All projects must comply with EHP requirements. Subrecipients must not obligate 

and/or expend any (federal and/or non-federal matching) funds on any project having 

the potential to impact environments planning and historical preservation resources 

without the prior approval of FEMA. For more information, please visit 

http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/ or contact your Grants 

Administrator. 

 Assurances- Non-construction Form 

 FEMA 20-16C Form 

 SF-LLL – Certification Regarding Lobbying Form 

 

Step 2:  Log in to the VDEM Electronic Grants Management System (eGMS) at 

https://www.ttegms.com/virginia/login.cfm to complete and submit a budget application for your 

allocation. If you do not have access to eGMS, please contact your Grants Administrator. 

[Click on Grant Management, Budget Application, from the drop-down menu. Click the link 

named FY 2017  State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) to complete your budget 

application.] 

 

Following review and approval of the budget by the Grants Administrator, notification will be 

sent through an eGMS automated email message to the subrecipient point of contact entered in 

the budget application. 

 

Reporting 

 

 Sub-recipients are obligated to submit quarterly progress reports as a condition of their 

award. The report, which can be found at  http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-

community/grants/all-grant-forms must report on progress towards implementing plans described 

in the funding proposal and the approved budget.  Reports must be submitted to your Grants 

Administrator by email within 15 days following the end of the quarter.  

 
 Within 30 days after the end of the period of performance, sub-recipients must submit a 

final progress report detailing all accomplishments throughout the period of performance. After the 

report has been reviewed and approved by the Grants Office, a close-out notice will be issued 

which will indicate the period of performance as closed, list any remaining funds that will be 

deobligated, and address the record retention requirements for grant records. The sub-recipient  

must return any funds that have been drawn down, but remain unliquidated in its financial records.

http://www.vaemergency.com/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms
https://www.ttegms.com/virginia/login.cfm
http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms
http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms


 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 4 

October 13, 2017 

 

 

 Please initiate the steps described under Accessing Your Allocation within 30 days from 

the date of this notification. If you have any questions regarding this award, please contact 

Tammy Myers in the Grants Office at 804-897-9717 or tammy.myers@vdem.virginia.gov. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

       

 Jeffrey D. Stern, Ph.D. 

 

JDS/ttm 

 

cc: Chief John Tunstall, Fire Chief/Emergency Management Coordinator 

 Mr. Jack King, Director of Regional Support, East Division 

 Ms. Lori Dachille, Chief Regional Coordinator, Region 1 

 

 

 



 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

 
 

JEFFREY D. STERN, Ph.D.                         SUSAN L. MONGOLD 
State Coordinator                                                             Deputy Coordinator – Mission Support
                

BRETT A. BURDICK                                  JOHN SCRIVANI 
Chief Deputy Coordinator                             Deputy Coordinator – Disaster Services 

 

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
  Department of Emergency Management  

10501 Trade Court 
North Chesterfield, Virginia 23236-3713 

Tel:  (804) 897-6500        TDD (804) 674-2417     FAX (804) 897-6506 

 
 

 

October 13, 2017 

 

 

 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Interim City Manager 

Hopewell City 

300 N. Main Street Room 218 

Hopewell, VA  23860 

 

RE: FY 2017 State Homeland Security Program Grant (SHSP) 

 

Dear Mr. Dane: 

 

 The Virginia Department of Emergency Management (VDEM) is pleased to announce 

the allocation of a 2017 State Homeland Security Program Grant (SHSP) CFDA 97.067 from 

the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA). Appropriation authority for this program is The Department of Homeland Security 

Appropriations Act, 2017 (Public Law 115-31). Your locality has been allocated funding for: 

 

Project Title:  Regional FLIR Thermal Image Camera 

Federal Grant Allocation:  $36,000.00 

Subrecipient’s Required Cost Share/Match Amount:  N/A 

Total Grant Award:  $36,000.00 

Obligation Period:  September 01, 2017 to March 31, 2019 

 

*This letter serves as notification of your allocation and is not an authorization to incur 

expenditures. Funds will be formally awarded to your locality through a Grant Agreement 

issued by VDEM upon its satisfactory review of your application package submission and 

approval of a budget application in VDEM’s Electronic Grants Management System (eGMS).* 

You must initiate these steps, described under Accessing Your Allocation, within 30 days from 

the date of this notification. 

 



 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 2 

October 13, 2017 

 

Program Purpose 

 

 The purpose of the State Homeland Security Program is to assist state and local 

preparedness activities that address high-priority preparedness gaps across all core capabilities 

that support terrorism preparedness.  All supported investments are based on capability targets 

and gaps identified during the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA) 

process, and assessed in the State Preparedness Report (SPR). 

 

 The FY 2017 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) supports state and local efforts 

to prevent terrorism and other catastrophic events and to prepare the Nation for the threats and 

hazards that pose the greatest risk to the security of the United States. References to these 

priorities can be found throughout this document.  The FY 2017 HSGP provides funding to 

implement investments that enhance terrorism preparedness and serve to build, sustain, and 

deliver the 32 core capabilities essential to achieving the National Preparedness Goal (the Goal) 

of a secure and resilient Nation. The allowable costs under FY 2017 HSGP support the core 

capabilities across the five mission areas of Prevention, Protection, Mitigation, Response, and 

Recovery. 

 

Important Award Terms and Conditions 

 

Subrecipients must comply with the following federal requirements: 

 FY 2017 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) Notice of Funding Opportunity 

Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) NOFO 

 Department of Homeland Security Standard Terms and Conditions for 2017 

DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards 

2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements 

 

Management and administration (M&A) 

 

Sub-recipients may retain and use up to 5% of the award for costs directly relating to the 

management and administration of SHSP funds, such as financial management and 

monitoring.  

 

Indirect (Facilities & Administrative [F&A]) Costs  

 

Indirect costs are allowable under this program as described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.414. With the 

exception of recipients who have never received a negotiated indirect cost rate as described in 2 

C.F.R. § 200.414(f), recipients must have an approved indirect cost rate agreement with their 

cognizant federal agency to charge indirect costs to this award.  

https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=e02daaa551dec05bfb82ed9f85151c09&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl


 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 3 

October 13, 2017 

 

Accessing Your Allocation 

 

 To access your allocation, you must complete the following steps within 30 days from 

the date of this notification: 

 

Step 1:  Complete these documents and submit electronically as one package to your Grants 

Administrator: 

 Point of Contact (POC) Form 

 FEMA Environmental and Historic Preservation (EHP) Screening Form 

o All projects must comply with EHP requirements. Subrecipients must not obligate 

and/or expend any (federal and/or non-federal matching) funds on any project having 

the potential to impact environments planning and historical preservation resources 

without the prior approval of FEMA. For more information, please visit 

http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/ or contact your Grants 

Administrator. 

 Assurances- Non-construction Form 

 FEMA 20-16C Form 

 SF-LLL – Certification Regarding Lobbying Form 

 

Step 2:  Log in to the VDEM Electronic Grants Management System (eGMS) at 

https://www.ttegms.com/virginia/login.cfm to complete and submit a budget application for your 

allocation. If you do not have access to eGMS, please contact your Grants Administrator. 

[Click on Grant Management, Budget Application, from the drop-down menu. Click the link 

named FY 2017  State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) to complete your budget 

application.] 

 

Following review and approval of the budget by the Grants Administrator, notification will be 

sent through an eGMS automated email message to the subrecipient point of contact entered in 

the budget application. 

 

Reporting 

 

 Sub-recipients are obligated to submit quarterly progress reports as a condition of their 

award. The report, which can be found at  http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-

community/grants/all-grant-forms must report on progress towards implementing plans described 

in the funding proposal and the approved budget.  Reports must be submitted to your Grants 

Administrator by email within 15 days following the end of the quarter.  

 
 Within 30 days after the end of the period of performance, sub-recipients must submit a 

final progress report detailing all accomplishments throughout the period of performance. After the 

report has been reviewed and approved by the Grants Office, a close-out notice will be issued 

which will indicate the period of performance as closed, list any remaining funds that will be 

deobligated, and address the record retention requirements for grant records. The sub-recipient  

must return any funds that have been drawn down, but remain unliquidated in its financial records.

http://www.vaemergency.com/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms
https://www.ttegms.com/virginia/login.cfm
http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms
http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/grants/all-grant-forms


 

Saving lives through effective emergency management and homeland security. 

“A Ready Virginia is a Resilient Virginia.” 
 

Mr. Charles Dane 

Page 4 

October 13, 2017 

 

 

 Please initiate the steps described under Accessing Your Allocation within 30 days from 

the date of this notification. If you have any questions regarding this award, please contact 

Tammy Myers in the Grants Office at 804-897-9717 or tammy.myers@vdem.virginia.gov. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

       

 Jeffrey D. Stern, Ph.D. 

 

JDS/ttm 

 

cc: Chief John Tunstall, Fire Chief/Emergency Management Coordinator 

 Mr. Jack King, Director of Regional Support, East Division 

 Ms. Lori Dachille, Chief Regional Coordinator, Region 1 

 

 

 



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 





































  
MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

SCHOOL BOARD OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL 
October 19, 2017 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Christopher Reber called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. and delivered the opening 
prayer. 
 
PRESENT 
Mr. Christopher Reber, Chairman; Ms. Linda E. Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A. 
Jefferson, member; Mr. N. Gregory Cuffey, member; and Dr. Wesley Joyner, member, were 
present. 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent of Schools; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant 
Superintendent for Instruction; Mrs. Missy Shores, Director of Personnel; Dr. Tina 
Barringer, Supervisor of Elementary Instruction; Mrs. Janice Butterworth, Supervisor of 
Secondary Instruction; Mrs. Paula Brumfield, Supervisor of Literacy & Federal 
Programming; Mrs. Janel English, Coordinator of Finance; Dr. Pamela Aernie, teacher;  Mrs. 
Cindy Harville, Executive Assistant for Finance; Ms. Caitlyn Davis, Public Relations 
Specialist; one member of the public and one member of the press.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, and seconded by Ms. Linda Hyslop, the School Board 
adopted the early meeting agenda as presented, with all members voting aye. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
A. Title IV, Part A Grant – Mrs. Paula Brumfield 

Paula Brumfield explained to Board Members that Title IV, Part A definition was 
reviewed since it is a new grant that was released to school divisions in August.  The 
grant focuses on a well-rounded student, safe and healthy living, and technology 
relating to deeper learning.  Components of the grant were reviewed, as well as the 
budget breakdown.  The total allocation is $38,268.71.  At least 20% of the grant must 
be used for two of the components: well-rounded and safe and healthy students.  No 
more than 15% can be used for effective use of technology. How funding would be 
used was outlined and Board members offered suggestions and comments. 

 
B. School Accreditation Updates – Dr. Melody Hackney 

Dr. Hackney advised Board Members that she did not have final results on the division’s 
accreditation status and that they are still evolving, but she wanted to let them know 
how the division stands at this time.  Patrick Copeland Elementary and Hopewell High 
School are fully accredited and that the summer graduates at the high school improved 
the graduation rate by 1%, from 86 to 87%.  Harry E. James Elementary School 
remains denied accreditation.  Carter G. Woodson Middle School is partially accredited 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

and is in the second year of reconstitution status.  The status for Dupont Elementary 
School is still pending but is in the process of appealing its status in that a key 
instructional employee died the day before the tests were administered.  The State 
Superintendent’s office has noted that this was a key factor and was compelling 
evidence that could be reported to the State Board to review the information in an 
appeal.   The outcome could be that 80% of the division is accredited.   

 
C. 2015 Fiscal Year CAFR Update – Mrs. Janel English 

Janel English reported that the FY2015 CAFR, or Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report had been received.  Although there were significant findings, however, the 
audit report for the school division was an unmodified report, meaning that the auditors 
agreed with the financial statements that were presented to them.  She did mention 
that there was a restatement of the Capital Assets and that the Schools had reported 
the correct amount from FY2010 going forward but had not been recorded in the City’s 
books.  For FY2015 the auditors realized the error, restated the balance and even 
mentioned that the School Board had identified the discrepancy.  Mrs. English also 
mentioned that there was a surplus that was carried over from the Operating Fund 
into the Building/Bus Replacement Fund.  Due to the delay of the report, the balance 
was incorporated into FY2017 Building/Bus Replacement Fund, which has allowed the 
division to accomplish some of the items on its Capital Improvement Plan.   

 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, and seconded by Dr. Wesley Joyner, the School 
Board adopted the following resolution to enter a Closed Meeting at 6:17 p.m., with all 
members voting aye. 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia, I move that the Board convene in a 
closed meeting for the purpose of discussing the following specific matters: 
  
 

A. The discussion or consideration of matters involving the disclosure of information 
contained in scholastic records concerning a student at Hopewell High School, 
which is authorized by §2.2-3711(A)(2) of the Code of Virginia. 
 

B. The discussion or consideration of student admission matters pertaining to a 
request for religious exemption for a student in the division, which is authorized 
by §2.2-3711(A)(2) of the Code of Virginia. 

 
C. The discussion or consideration of the employment, assignment, appointment, 

promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, or resignation of employees at 
Hopewell High School, Carter G. Woodson Middle School, Dupont Elementary 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 

School, Harry E. James Elementary School, Patrick Copeland Elementary School, 
Woodlawn Learning Center, New Hope Academy, Food Service Department, 
Transportation Department and the Central Office, which is authorized by §2.2-
3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia. 

 
At 7:27 p.m. Mr. Reber reconvened the Open Meeting.  
 
REGULAR MEETING 
Chairman Reber called the regular meeting to order at 7:33 p.m.  The prayer was delivered 
by Dr. Kim Evans, to include a moment of silence in memory of Jamari Howard, a student 
at Dupont Elementary, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
PRESENT 
Mr. Chris Reber, Chairman; Ms. Linda Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A. Jefferson, 
member; Mr. Greg Cuffey, member; Dr. Wesley Joyner, member, were present. 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant Superintendent for 
Instruction; Mrs. Cindy Harville, Executive Assistant for Finance/Deputy Clerk; Mrs. Missy 
Shores, Director of Personnel; Dr. Shelia Bailey, Director of Student Services; Ms. Cheryl 
Webb, Director of School Improvement and Data Analysis; Mr. T. Patrick Barnes, Director 
of Operations;  Mr. Burlin Gregory, Director of Organizational Innovation, Training and 
Efficiency; Dr. Tina M. Barringer, Supervisor of Elementary Instruction, Mrs. Janice 
Butterworth, Supervisor of Secondary Instruction; Mrs. Paula Brumfield, Supervisor of 
Literacy and Federal Programming; Ms. Brookie Fowler, Coordinator of Disability Services, 
Mrs. Janel English, Coordinator of Finance;  Mrs. Tracy Wilson, Coordinator of Educational 
Evaluation and Program Improvement; Mr. Tommy Pond, Principal, Mr. Shannon Royster, 
Principal;  Ms. Judy Barnes, Principal;  Mr. Byron Davis, Principal;  Mrs. Joyce Jones, 
Principal;  Mr. Keith Crews, Supervisor of Alternative Education. Ms. Schneria Valentine, 
Assistant Principal; Honorees with their families; Ms. Caitlyn Davis, Public Relations 
Specialist; and two representatives from the press.  
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, and seconded by Mr. Greg Cuffey, the Board adopted 
the attached Certification of Closed Meeting, with all members voting aye.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
Upon a motion by Ms. Linda Hyslop, and seconded by Mr. Greg Cuffey, the School Board 
adopted the April 6, 2017, Regular Meeting Agenda as presented, with all members voting 
aye.  
 
SPECIAL RECOGINITION 
 
A. Eiizjarae L. Dillion - Recipient of the Award of Excellence from the National  
     Academy of Future Scientists and Technologists – Mrs. Jan Butterworth 

Mrs. Butterworth introduced Ms. Dillion to the School Board and all assembled.  She 
explained that the program was held in Massachusetts for students across the United 
States who love and excel in STEM.  Nobel prize winners were available to convers and 
present to the students.  Ms. Dillion was asked to describe her experiences while in 
Massachusetts.  Dr. Hackney commended her and her parents on behalf of the School 
Board 

      
B.    Patrick Copeland Elementary School Virginia Naturally Schools Award from  
       the VA Department of Game & Inland Fisheries and George Sumner – Dr. Tina  
       Barringer 

The VA Naturally Schools is the official environmental school recognition program 
of the Commonwealth, administered by the Department of Game & Inland 
Fisheries with support from the Dept. of Education, Dept. of Environmental 
Quality and other resource agencies. The VA Board of Ed. has recognized the VA 
Naturally School Program as the official environmental education school 
recognition program for the state. This program recognizes the efforts of many 
VA schools to increase the environmental awareness and stewardship of our 
youngest citizens. Patrick Copeland Elementary School is receiving this award for 
the tenth consecutive year. Mr. George Sumner is working with the program and 
was instrumental in submitting the application on behalf of the school.    

  
C.    Presentation of School Highest Monthly Student Attendance Trophy – Dr.  
       Melody Hackney 

Dr. Hackney presented the attendance trophy to the school with the highest 
student attendance. For September of 2017, Harry E. James Elementary School 
won the Award with a 97.08% attendance rate.  Ms. Judy Barnes, Principal, 
accepted the award on behalf of her students.         

 
D.    Presentation of School Highest Monthly Staff Attendance Trophy – Dr.  
        Melody Hackney 

  Dr. Hackney presented the attendance trophy to the school with the highest 
licensed staff attendance for September 2017.  Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
won this award with a 98.212% staff attendance rate.  Mr. Byron Davis, Principal, 
accepted The award on behalf of his staff.   



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 5 
 
 
  
 
E.    Virginia School Board Association Academy Awards for School Board  
       Members & Superintendent – Dr. Melody Hackney 
 

School Board members and the Superintendent are recognized for receiving the VSBA 
Academy Awards. Ms. Linda Hyslop received the “Award of Distinction” and will 
receive the VSBA Distinctive Starfish Pin. She will be invited to a special luncheon at 
the VSBA Annual Convention with all Board members receiving the Award of 
Distinction. Mr. Chris Reber, Mr. Greg Cuffey, Mrs. Shirl Jefferson and Dr. Melody 
Hackney received the “Award of Honor” and the Gold VSBA pin. Awards are based on 
participation from July 1 to June 30 of each Academy year. 

 
F.     Surprise Donation – Johnny Partin & Pastor Betty Hobbs 

Mr. Johnny Partin and the Pastor of his church, the Family of God Church, asked to 
present a special donation.  Their church of approximately 30 attendees raised $1,000 
to contribute to the #HopewellCARES fund raiser to benefit the hurricane victims and 
schools that were effected in Houston earlier this year. 

 
REPORTS 
 
A.    Instructional Spotlight – Patrick Copeland Elementary School – Staff &  
       Students 

   For Patrick Copeland’s Instructional Spotlight, Ms. Alicia Nelson, a third grade teacher, 
presented her efforts towards implementing flexible seating at Patrick Copeland 
Elementary. A presentation was provided by the first grade regarding their mini 
exhibition held October 11th on being a good citizen and how they have created a 
creative culture of loving and interacting with each other as neighbors.  

 
 
B.    Alternative Routes to Licensure – Mrs. Missy Shores 

Mrs. Shores provided a report on alternative routes for teachers with provisional 
licensures.   She explained that some teachers come to the division with a provisional 
license, in need of five professional knowledge courses.  She explained that the 
program that she and her committee have been looking into, as Dr. Joyner mentioned 
that he had heard something of the need and process.  She mentioned that the 
courses that are needed could be provided to our teachers in-house through an “in-
house” collaborative nature that would lead to additional eligible teachers.  For the 
teachers, it means reduced tuition costs and minimization of hours in class.  It also 
demonstrates a commitment to our teachers.  For the divisions, it allows us to 
structure the teachers’ learning to the needs of the division and also enables the 
division to structure the program according to the needs of the employees.  Mrs. 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 6 
 
 

Shores added that Goochland County Public Schools has been doing this and the 
return has been almost immediate.  She also noted that this process is within the 
regulations of the Department of Education. 

 
   
C.    Petersburg Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Inc. –  Ms.  
       Anna Bradley 

Ms. Bradley introduced Rhonda Davis of the Petersburg Chapter to discuss the 
multitude of activities that the world-wide sorority provides to advance education.  
Among these activities are their Book Buddies, which provide donated reading 
materials to students.  A majority of the volunteers is comprised of current or retired 
educators.  They work together to overcome the summer education gap.  They hold 
PSAT and SAT prep classes.  The members mentor 9th through 12th grade girls.  They 
hold a 3 week reading enrichment program, called DARE.  The sorority donates 
$10,000 annually in scholarships and provides a $1,000 music/arts scholarship to 
students attending the Appomattox Regional Governors School, among many other 
activities to benefit educational growth.  

 
D.   Technology Update – Mr. Burlin Gregory  

Mr. Gregory provided the School Board with an update on the summer and current 
technology projects, focusing on customer satisfaction with students and staff being 
their customers.  Mr. Gregory mentioned that his department has been examining all 
of the software and consolidating the programs so that there is one universal format 
which adheres to the needs of the entire division.  He also mentioned that his 
department has reviewed the copier contract and has increased the number of copiers 
to 50, with unlimited copies and a color copier at each facility with no additional 
expense incurred.  He also mentioned that the department has improved and increased 
the wireless access points throughout the buildings for improved connectivity.  He 
praised the students who have been engaged in assisting the department as part of 
their industry certification.  He mentioned that the division has expanded its internet 
and social media presence so that the world can see the amazing things that are 
happening in Hopewell. 
 

E.    Monthly Instructional Improvement (PBIS Report) – Dr. Kim Evans 
Dr. Evans reported on Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS)  
initiatives in the division.  She mentioned that it was just publicized that the suspension 
rate in Virginia is increasing.  She mentioned that this year, after reviewing our policies, 
HCPS has implemented a school-wide system approach to teaching behavior and 
behavioral expectations and that they are the same expectations throughout the 
schools.  She discussed the reward programs that are in place at each school.  Dr. 
Evans also mentioned the program that has been established to improve behavior on 
our buses.  This rewards both the bus driver and the students. 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 7 
 
 
   
      
F.   Finance, Maintenance and Clerk’s Report – Mrs. Janel English 
      Mrs. Janel English, Coordinator of Finance, presented the expenditure portion of the  
      Finance Report and polled the Board for any questions they might have.  
 
     Finance Report 

Mrs. English reported that the accounts payable report for September includes 
payments made on September 15 and 29, 2017. These payments include: instructional 
supplies, staff development, textbooks, utilities, printing, school activity fund audits, 
software, software maintenance agreements, library books and equipment, printing, 
bus driver physicals, and debt service. 
 

As a point of comparison, the operating fund had 81.03% of the FY2018 expenditure 
budget remaining at the end of September 2017, and there was 81.12% of the FY2017 
expenditure budget remaining at the same time last year.  The revenue receipts were 
8.73% of the budgeted receipts for FY2018 as of September 29, 2017, and the revenue 
receipts were 5.06% of the FY2017 budgeted receipts as of September 30, 2016. 

The FY2018 budget was constructed with a projected March 31 ADM of 3,975. Our 
average daily state supported membership for September was 4046. The student 
attendance (ADA) for September was 95.86%.  

 
Hard copies of the FY2017 School Activity Fund Audit reports were distributed earlier 
at the meeting.  For those schools with comments from the auditors, remediation 
plans from the principals are included in the packet.  Also included in the packet is the 
FY2015 CAFR. 

 
Clerk’s Report 

It was advised that the division has received policy updates from VSBA and will be 
distributing them to department heads for review.  Once they have been reviewed and 
approved by the Superintendent, they will be presented to the School Board Members 
for a first read, followed by approval the following month. 

 

There have been changes in the ethics code and the Conflict of Interest filings are, 
once again, due annually, rather than biannually.  Also, the form was revised last 
December, so the form that we will distribute at the November Board meeting is the 
most up-to-date and they will be due no later than February 1st. 

 
Maintenance Report 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 8 
 
 

During the month of September, the maintenance and technology departments 
completed and closed 835 work orders and ended the month with 219 still in progress. 

Mr. Reber asked Mr. Patrick Barnes to update the Board on the status of the track at 
the high school.  Mr. Barnes mentioned that within three days of the School Board’s 
approval at the last meeting, the vendor arrived at the site and had begun marking the 
area for the new track.  In answer to a question posed by Dr. Hackney, he mentioned 
that the construction is still on track to be completed by April. 

     
  
PUBLIC COMMENTS – Pastor Betty Hobbs 

Pastor Hobbs spoke to the School Board Members to express appreciation for the positive 
School Board meeting and for showcasing and including children at the meeting.  She said 
that she was honored to be a product of the school system and is proud of our children 
and our school division 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Upon a motion by Mr. Greg Cuffey, and seconded by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, the Board 
adopted the attached Consent Agenda with all members voting aye.  

Minutes 
The minutes of the meeting of September 14, 2017, and September 18, 2017, School 
Board Retreat, were approved as submitted. 
 

Licensed Personnel Resolutions 

17-10-L1   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Amy Feaver, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Amy Feaver  appointment as an ITRT, effective October 23, 2017.  
   Vice: Janice Skipwith  
   Salary:  $50,556 (TCH 220, Step 9) 
 
17-10-L2   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Kori Harrow 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Kori Harrow Assignment:  Speech Pathologist; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-10-L3   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Abigail Snell 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 9 
 
 
Abigail Snell Assignment:  Teacher; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-10-L4   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Whitney Copeland 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Whitney Copeland Assignment:  Teacher; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-10-L5   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Courtney Rybar 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Courtney Rybar Assignment:  Teacher; Dupont Elementary School 
 
17-10-L6   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Brittany Ashby 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Brittany Ashby Assignment:  Teacher; Dupont Elementary School 
 
17-10-L7   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Tammy Stephens 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Tammy Stephens Assignment:  Teacher; Dupont Elementary School 
 
17-10-L8   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Natalie Ruffin 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Natalie Ruffin Assignment:  Teacher; Dupont Elementary School 
 
17-10-L9   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Danette Buckley 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Danette Buckley Assignment:  Teacher; Harry E. James Elementary School 
 
17-10-L10   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Whitney  
of Blankenship be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Whitney  Assignment:  Teacher; Harry E. James Elementary School 
Blankenship 
 
17-10-L11   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Kerry Canaday 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Kerry Canaday Assignment:  Teacher; Harry E. James Elementary School 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 10 
 
 
 
17-10-L12   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Nicole Cary 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Nicole Cary Assignment:  Teacher; Harry E. James Elementary School 
 
17-10-L13   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Adrianne Thornton 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Adrianne Assignment:  Teacher; Harry E. James Elementary School 
Thornton 
 
17-10-L14   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Keith Claassen 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Keith Claassen Assignment:  Teacher; Hopewell High School 
 
17-10-L15   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Felicia Farmer 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Felicia Farmer Assignment:  Teacher; Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
 
17-10-L16   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Rebecca Allen 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Rebecca Allen Assignment:  Teacher; Patrick Copeland Elementary School 

17-10-L17   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Victoria Edwards 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Victoria Edwards Assignment:  Teacher; Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
 
17-10-L18   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Jana Meeks 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective September 5, 2017.  
Jana Meeks Assignment:  Teacher; Harry E. James Elementary School 
 
17-10-L19   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Rachel Legacy 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective October 2, 2017.  
Rachel Legacy Assignment:  Teacher; Carter G. Woodson Middle School. 
 
 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 11 
 
 
17-10-L20   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Amy Pippetti 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective October 13, 2017.  
Amy Pippetti Assignment:  Teacher; Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
 
17-10-L21   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Susan Back 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective October 2, 2017.  
Susan Back  Assignment:  Nurse; Harry E. James Elementary School 
 
17-10-L22   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Yamesha Grier 
to Adjust    to $43,491, due to transfer into a different position. 
Salary   (TCHR/ Step 0) 
 
17-10-L23   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Tamara Eppes 
to Adjust    to $43,491 due to transfer to a different position. 
Salary   (TCHR/ Step 0) 
 
17-10-L24   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Kathryn Davis 
to Adjust    to $43,491, due to transfer to a different position. 
Salary   (TCHR /Step 0) 
 

17-10-L25   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Emily Duncan 
to Adjust    to $43,491, due to transfer to a different position. 
Salary   (TCHR /Step 0) 
 
17-10-L26   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Kathleen Joyner 
to Adjust    to $67,212, due to transfer to a different position. 
Salary   (TCHR 210 /Step 33) 
 
17-10-L27   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Angela Mosley 
to Adjust    to $57,152, effective October 2, 2017. 
Salary   (TCHR 205 /Step 23) 
 
17-10-L28   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Kimberly Harrison 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 12 
 
 
to Adjust    to $59,664, due to transfer to a different position. 
Salary   (TCHR220 /Step 21) 
 
17-10-L29   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Leila Youmans 
to Adjust    to $49,248, due to completion of a Master’s Degree. 
Salary   (TCHR III/Step 10) 
 
17-10-L30   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the following teachers/substitutes  
of Teachers/ be approved for providing instructions for providing instruction as  
 Substitutes part of the 21st Century Learning Grant program at Patrick Copeland 

Elementary School. 
    Paige Renn   Angel Allen 
    Marcella Cook  Robin Campbell 
    Jaret Chilcote   Tamara Epps 
    Norma Ferguson  David Hill 
    Nicole Snyder  Yvonne Holley 
    Cheryl Williams  Thelma Brown 
    Elona Johnson  Rebekah Perkinson 
    Lara Pitcock   Susanne Mahieu 
    April Schnipper  Diane Quinn 
    Gwen Clanton  Teri Asim 
    Christine Weston  Yamesha Grier 
    Angela Hildreth  Rachel Ratner Hogdson 
    Fran Barnes   Meghan Daniel 

Lindsy Wyatt   Jessi Craft 
    Alicia Nelson   Jamilah Scott 
    Deborah Green  Melissa Bachorski 
 
17-10-L31   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the following teachers/substitutes/  
of Teachers/ Coordinators be approved for providing instructions for providing  
Substitutes/ instruction as part of the 21st Century Learning Grant program at 
Coordinators  Carter G. Woodson Middle School. 
 
    Nicole Irby   Megan McCue 
    Kira Brown   Kekeria Edwards 
    Stephanie Garrett  Nikita Gates 
    Morgan Hobson  Linda Burns 
    Jacob Green   Cassandra Ogle 
    Raven Wray   Katherine Coles-Robinson 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 13 
 
 
    Marlaina Mueller  Carrie Ross 
    Caitlin Callister  Melissa Rooks 
    Rebecca Redling  Haley Strum 
    Elaine Moore   Nina Durstine 
    Jennifer Koren 
 
    Coordinators: 
    Kevin Clear   Christina Wade 
 
17-10-L32   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Retirement   of Schools, that the following be and are hereby approved as  
Incentive  Instructional Substitutes for the 2017-2018 school year: 
Appointment  Substitute Days:  Equal to 15 
Instructional   
   Melody Bage   Jan Smithson 
   Brian O’Neill   Cheryl Allard 
   Carla Carr   Patricia Parker 
   Betty Ware   Susanne Moore 
 
17-10-L33            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that a supplement for the following  
Supplement athletic coaching positions be and is hereby approved for payment at 

the conclusion of the season, for Hopewell High School for the 2017-
2018 School Year. 

 
Sport/Position Coach Supplement 
   
Assistant Girls 
Basketball 

Abigail Bailey 2600.00 

 
  
17-10-L34            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the following  
Supplements athletic coaching positions be and is hereby approved for payment at 

the conclusion of the season, for Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
for the 2017-2018 School Year. 

      
Sport/Position Coach Supplement 
Fall Season   
Head Football Eugene Brown 3900.00 
   
Head Fall Cheerleading Tara Belcher 700.00 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 14 
 
 

Asst. Cheerleading Sabrina Davis 700.00 
Asst. Cheerleading Maralaina Mueller 700.00 
   
Head Girls Basketball Jackie Edmonds 2200.00 
Asst. Girls Basketball Jacob Green 1600.00 
   
Winter Season   
Head Boys Basketball Jacob Green 3600.00 
   
Head Winter 
Cheerleading 

Tara Belcher 700.00 

Asst. Cheerleading Sabrina Davis 700.00 
Asst. Cheerleading Marlaina Mueller 700.00 
   
Spring Season   
Head Baseball Brock Parker 3000.00 
Head Softball Haley Strum 1300.00 

 
17-10-L35            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the following  
Supplements activities at Carter G. Woodson Middle School for the 2017-2018 

School Year.  Supplements should be paid in two installments, one at 
the end of February and one at the end of June. 

    
Position   
   
After School Activity 
Coordinator 

TBD 1500.00 

SPED Funcella Walker 800.00 
SPED Jennifer Koren 800.00 
504 Coordinator Tracey Martin 500.00 
   
Club Sponsors   
Yearbook Melissa Rooks 600.00 
Show Choir Director Cassie Ogle 800.00 
Show Choir 
Choreography 

Tiffany Bailey 400.00 

SCA Elaina Moore 500.00 
SCA Stephanie Garrett 500.00 
National Junior Honor 
Soc. 

Carrie Ross 300.00 

National Junior Honor 
Soc. 

Nina Durstine 300.00 

Crime Solvers Christina Wade 200.00 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 15 
 
 

Spanish Club Shea McCartt 500.00 
 
17-10-L36    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Approval of    of Schools, that a supplement for Amanda Davis for Spanish  
Supplement interpreting services for parent meetings, be and is hereby approved 

for the 2017-18 school year at the rate of 20.00/hr., effective 
October 12, 2017. 

 
Classified Personnel Resolutions 

 
17-10-C1   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Ashleigh Jarrett 
to Adjust    to $17,321, effective October 2, 2017. 
Salary   (Sped TAII/Step 6) 
 
17-10-C2   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation  Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Crystal Ragsdale 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective September 13, 2017. 
Crystal Ragsdale Assignment:  School Secretary II, Carter G. Woodson Middle School  
 
17-10-C3   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation  Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Pauline Earles 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective September 26, 2017. 
Pauline Earles Assignment:  Food Services  
 
17-10-C4   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Jessica Bell be and is  
Of Jessica Bell hereby appointed as a SPED TA II at Carter G. Woodson Middle 

School for the 2017-2018 school year, effective October 16, 2017. 
   Vice:  Samantha Jenkins 
   Salary: $16,020 (SPED TA II/ Step 0) 
 
17-10-C5   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Addie Alexander be and is  
Of Addie Alexander hereby appointed as a Cafeteria Monitor at Harry E. James 

Elementary School for the 2017-2018 school year, effective October 
2, 2017. 

   Salary: $9.53/Per Hour  
 
17-10-C6   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Teresa Miller be and is  



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 16 
 
 
Of Teresa Miller hereby appointed as a Bus Aide for the 2017-2018 school year, 

effective October 2, 2017. 
   Salary: $7.97/hour (Step 0) 
 
17-10-C7    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Hester Tyler be and is  
Of Hester Tyler hereby appointed as a Part Time Food Service worker at Woodlawn 

Learning Center for the 2017-2018 school year, effective October 2, 
2017. 

   Salary: $10.13/hour  (Step 5) 
 
17-10-C8    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Earlie Coleman be and is  
Of Earlie Coleman hereby appointed as a Food Service worker at Hopewell High School 

for the 2017-2018 school year, effective September 18, 2017. 
   Salary: $11.11/hour (Step 10) 
 
17-10-C9   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Kristie Reid be and is  
of Kristie Reid hereby appointed as a School Secretary I at Carter G. Woodson 

Middle School for the 2017-2018 school year, effective October 2, 
2017. 

   Vice:  Amanda Craft 
   Salary: $18,086 (Sch. Sec. I/ Step 0) 
 
17-10-C10    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment of Superintendent of Schools, that Amanda Hill be and is  
Amanda Hill hereby appointed as a Part Time Food Service worker at Harry E. 

James Elementary School for the 2017-2018 school year, effective 
October 2, 2017. 

   Salary: $9.68/hour (Step 1) 
 
17-10-C11    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Promotion of  Superintendent of Schools, that Rosia Holloway be and is  
Rosia Holloway hereby appointed as the Head Custodian at Harry E. James 

Elementary School for the 2017-2018 school year, effective October 
2, 2017. 

   Salary: $28,878 (Step 11) 
 
17-10-C12    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Promotion of  Superintendent of Schools, that Lydia Padilla be and is  



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 17 
 
 
Lydia Padilla hereby appointed as a Full Time Custodian for the 2017-2018 school 

year, effective October 2, 2017. 
   Salary: $10.21/hour (Step 0) 
 
17-10-C13   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Amendment to Superintendent of Schools, that the date of resignation for Pamela  
Resolution  Bowles be changed to September 28, 2017. 
17-09-C7   
 
17-10-C14   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Amendment to Superintendent of Schools, that Frances Barnes be and is hereby 
Resolution  approved to tutor at Harry E. James Elementary School for a  
17-08-C13  total of 250 hours. 
 
17-10-C15   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Transfer of  Superintendent of Schools, that Kristen St. Priz be and is  
Kristen St. Priz hereby transferred from a Bus Aide to a Vehicle Driver for the 2017-

2018 school year, effective September 1, 2017. 
   Salary: $8.90/hour (Step 0) 
 
17-10-C16   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that a supplement be paid to the   
Supplement following at the conclusion of the fall sports season, at Hopewell 

High School. 
 

Fall Season   
   
Sport/Position Coach Supplement 
Football/ Assistant William Pollard $2,400.00 

 
17-10-C17   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that James Studivant be and is  
Full-Time hereby appointed as a Full-Time Food Services for the  
Food Services  2017-2018 school year, effective October 2, 2017. 
James Studivant Salary: No Change 
   Location:  Hopewell High School 

 
17-10-C18   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Bonnie Brisendine Flores be  
Full-Time and is hereby appointed as a Full-Time Food Services for the  
Food Services 2017-2018 school year, effective October 2, 2017. 
Bonnie Brisendine Salary: No Change 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 18 
 
 
Flores   Location: Harry E. James Elementary School 
 
17-10-C19    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby 
Of Title I Tutors  appointed as tutors for the 2017-2018 school year, effective October 

13, 2017: (Funded by the Title I, Part A application)  
 

School 
Tutor Amount per 

Hour 
Maximum No. of 

hours 
Patrick 

Copeland 
Thelma Brown $25.00 270 (not to 

exceed 
$6750.00) 

Patrick 
Copeland 

Sharon Cole $25.00 270 (not to 
exceed 

$6750.00) 
 
 
17-10-C20   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment    Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and is hereby 
Of SOL Tutor  appointed as a SOL tutor for the 2017-2018 school year, effective 

October 13, 2017: (Funded by SOL Tutoring Budget)  
 

School 
Tutor Amount per 

Hour 
Maximum No. of 

hours 
Patrick 

Copeland 
Judy Redman $25.00 363 (not to exceed 

$9075.00) 
 
17-10-C21   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent  
Appointment of  of Schools, that the following be and are hereby appointed as Tutors  
Title I Tutors for the 2017-2018 school year: (Funded by the Title I, Part A 

application).  
 

School 
Tutor Amount 

per 
Hour 

Maximum No. of hours 

Patrick Copeland Mary Kathy Bond $25.00 439 (not to exceed 
$10,975.00) 

Patrick Copeland Jane Bujakowski $25.00 483 (not to exceed 
$12,087.50) 

HEJ Annie Crump $25.00 165 (not to exceed 
$4,143.55)  

HEJ Arlene Smith $25.00 164 (not to exceed $4106.45) 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 19 
 
 

HEJ Felicia Jones $25.00 99  (not to exceed $2475.00) 
HEJ Lois Haynes $25.00 99  (not to exceed $2475.00) 

Dupont Faith Furbush $25.00 230 (not to exceed $5750.00) 
Dupont Karen 

Frederickson 
$25.00  100 (not to exceed $2500.00) 

 

17-10-C22    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
 Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby 
Title I Tutors  appointed as tutors for the 2017-2018 school year, effective October 

13, 2017: (Funded by the Title I, Part A application)  
 

     School       Tutor Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. of 
hours 

Dupont Debra Hunt $25.00 230 (not to exceed 
$5750.00) 

Dupont Rae Harvey $25.00 228 (not to exceed 
$5700) 

 
 
17-10-C23    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Approval of  of Schools, that the following be supplements for the 2017-2018  
Supplements school year be approved, effective October 13, 2017: (Funded by the 

Title IV, Part A application)  
 

Activity Number of 
Positions 

Amount  

Coordinate activities for Hopewell Cares 1 $1500.00 
Coordinate Elementary Healthy Families Event 1 $500.00 
Coordinate Secondary Health Families Event 1 $500.00 

 

17-10-C24   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment of Superintendent of Schools, the following be hereby appointed as 
Title I Parent  Title I parent involvement assistants funded by the Title I, Part A  
Involvement   grant for the 2016-2017 school year effective October 12, 2017 
Assistants  through June 16, 2018: 
 

School Parent 
Involvement 

Assistant 

Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. of hours 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 20 
 
 

Harry E. James Felicia Jones $12.79 847  (not to exceed 
$10,837.12) 

Carter G. Woodson Joan Gosier $12.59 800 (not to exceed 
$10,072.00) 

 

17-10-C25    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Approval of   of Schools, that the following supplements be paid for Curriculum 
Supplements  Writing for the 2017-2018 school year, effective September 5, 2017: 

(Funded by the Title I, Part A application) 
 

School 
Maximum 
Number of 
Teachers 

Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. of 
hours 

Dupont 10 $20.00 150 (not to 
exceed $5,000) 

Harry E. James 10 $20.00 150 (not to 
exceed $5,000) 

Patrick Copeland 10 $20.00 150 (not to 
exceed $5,000) 

Carter G. Woodson 10 $20.00 150 (not to 
exceed $5,000) 

 
17-10-C26   Resolved, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Appointment   of Schools, that the following Substitute Teachers be and are 
Substitutes  hereby granted appointment for the 2017-2018 School year, 
Teachers          effective September 5, 2017. 
    

Taylor Scott 
Samantha Mills 
Jessica Bell 
Phyllis Brown 
Tiara Miles-Bolden 

 

17-10-C27   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and is 
Algebra Readiness hereby granted for all approved Algebra Readiness Tutor 

 Tutor   for the 2017-2018 school year. 
   (Funded through the Algebra Readiness Grant)  

Salary: $20.00 per hour (training - non-student hours) 
Salary: $25.00 per hour (student tutoring) 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 21 
 
 
 

Faith Nichols 
 
17-10-C28   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Amendment   Superintendent of Schools, that Resolution 17-08-C3 be and is  
to Resolution  hereby amended from salary $22,937 to $19,871.  
17-08-C3   
 
 
17-10-C29   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Rhonda Brown 
to Adjust    to $35.408, effective November 1, 2017. 
Salary   (Grade 10/ Step 5) 
 
17-10-C30            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the  
Supplements following athletic coaching positions be and is hereby approved for 

payment at the conclusion of the season, for Carter G. Woodson 
Middle School for the 2017-2018 School Year. 

      
Sport/Position Coach Supplement 
Fall Season   
Assistant Football Daryl Batten 1600.00 
Assistant Football Joey Scarborough 1600.00 
   
Spring Season   
Assistant Baseball Brian Moore 800.00 
   

 
General Resolutions 

Warrants 
17-10-G2 
Review of Bills 
FY2018 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that bills in the amount of   
$605,535.56 (Operating Fund), $129,326.73 (Textbook Fund) and 
$140,446.79 (Cafeteria Fund) for the September 2017 billing 
period, have been presented and reviewed by the Hopewell City School 
Board.     

Miscellaneous 
17-10-G3 
Approval of  
Donations 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the Hopewell School Board accepts, with appreciation, the 
following donations: 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 22 
 
 

 School supplies, valued at $150.00 to Carter G. Woodson and 
elementary school books, valued at $125.00 to the elementary 
schools, from the Hopewell Federated Woman’s Club 

 School supplies, valued at $250.00 to Dupont Elementary from the 
VFW Post 637 in Hopewell 

 $1,750.00 to the boys basketball team at Hopewell High School 
from Pearson Funeral Service, Inc. in Emporia, VA 

 $500.00 to the football team at Hopewell High School from the 
Kiwanis Club of Hopewell 

 18-Volt Power Tool Battery Charger, valued at $40.00, to the 
Robotics Class at Hopewell High School from Mr. Rich Halas of 
Hopewell 

 School supplies and book bags, valued at $240.00 and a $110.00 
Walmart Gift Card to Dupont Elementary from the Appomattox 
River Medical Center in Hopewell 

 $100.00 to the Band class at Hopewell High School from Michelle 
Hardy of Hopewell 

 $50.00 to the Band class at Hopewell High School from Marshall & 
Joyce Jones of Henrico, VA 

 5 backpacks, valued at $50.00, to Dupont Elementary School from 
Anne Royster of S. Chesterfield, VA   

 Backpacks and School Supplies to Harry E. James Elementary 
from the following: 
■5 backpacks, valued at $50.00 and miscellaneous school supplies, 
valued at $60.00 from DECA employees in Prince George, VA 
■25 backpacks, valued at $250.00 and miscellaneous school 
supplies, valued at $100.00,from the Enon Church of God in 
Chester, VA 
■School supplies, valued at $33.00 from the Brotherhood of Honor 
in Colonial Heights, VA 
■5 backpacks, valued at $40.00 from Mr. & Mrs. Brian Travis of 
Prince George, VA 
■School supplies, valued at $43.00 from the Wicked Few 
Motorcycle Club in Hopewell, VA 
■20 backpacks and school supplies, valued at $155.00 from 
Unleashed Beasts MC in Prince George, VA 
■50 backpacks, valued at $500.00 from the VFW Post 10387 in 
Hopewell, VA 
■5 backpacks and school supplies, valued at $145.00 from the Elks 
Lodge of Hopewell, VA 
■10 backpacks and school supplies, valued at $40.00 from Ms. 
Sherry Mathis of Hopewell, VA 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 23 
 
 

■20 backpacks, valued at $120.00 from Against All Odds MC in 
Dinwiddie, VA 

 
17-10-G4 
Approval of 
Surplus Item   

     
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the following item be and are hereby declared surplus: 
 
School Board Office 
Marantz Portable Cassette Recorder Model# PMD222 
Serial #A1030702003496 (broken & obsolete) 

 
17-10-G5 
Approval of  
Head Start 
Supplemental 
Grant 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the Head Start Supplemental “One Time” Grant in the 
amount of $69,569.00, be and is hereby approved for the specific 
purpose of purchasing a modular trailer.     

 
17-10-G6 
Approval to 
Amend Resolution  
17-06-G23 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that Resolution 17-06-G23 authorizing the Superintendent to 
file a consolidated local application for 2017-2018 school year for 
federal funds under ESSA, be and is hereby amended as follows: 
 
$2,020,432.24 for utilization in the following eligible programs: 
Title I, Part A (Improving Basic Programs) $1,803,880.49 
Title II, Part A (Teacher Quality)                     $  216,551.75  

Field Trip 
17-10-G7 
Approval of  
Out-of-State 
Field Trip 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that permission is granted for approximately 93 Carter 
G. Woodson Middle School students to visit Washington, D.C. on 
December 1, 2017, to tour the war memorials and Smithsonian.    

 
Textbook 
17-10-G8 
Approval of  
Textbooks 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the following textbooks for the Culinary Arts Class 
at Hopewell High School be and are hereby approved:       

 
Book Title: Foundations of Restaurant Management and Culinary Arts 
Level 1   ISBN 9780138019389 
 
Book Title:  Foundations of Restaurant Management and Culinary Arts 
Level 2   ISBN 9780131380226 
 
Publisher: Pearson 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 24 
 
 

Author: National Restaurant Association  
Number of textbooks requested Level 1  $83.00 each  30 needed 
Number of textbooks requested Level 2  $83.00 each 30 needed 

 
Miscellaneous 
17-10-G9 
Approval of  
Head Start 
Disposition of 
Capital Outlay 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Hopewell City School Board approve the 
following Head Start Disposition of Capital Outlay as listed below: 
 
The Roger Carter Mobile Unit (Serial # 911006213294) purchased 
January 10, 1992 (the unit is no longer functional). 

 
Discipline 
17-10-G10 
Approval Release 
of Student from 
Compulsory 
School 
Attendance 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the following student under the age of eighteen 
(but at least sixteen years of age) in compliance with action by the 
2006 General Assembly (Code of Virginia – amended § 22.1-254) 
and Regulations Governing General Education Development 
Certificates (8 VAC 20-360) be and is hereby released from  
Compulsory School Attendance to allow the student to enroll in 
the General Education Development (GED) Program:  

 
Student ID# 140129379 
 

Miscellaneous 
17-10-G11 
Approval of 
Supplemental 
Appropriation 
FY2018 #1 

 
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent  
of Schools, that a supplemental appropriation to the FY2018 Operating 
Fund in the amount of $ 488,584 as deferred revenue received in advance 
during FY2017 for the Wallace Foundation Grant be and is hereby 
approved.  

 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 25 
 
 
17-10-G12 
Approval of 
Supplemental 
Appropriation  
FY2018 #2 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent  
of Schools, that a supplemental appropriation to the FY2018  
Operating Fund in amount of $ 358,681 for the increase in the Title I Grant 
be and is hereby approved.  

 
17-10-G13 
Approval of 
Supplemental 
Appropriation  
FY2018 #3 

      
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent  
of Schools, that a supplemental appropriation to the FY2018  
Operating Fund in amount of $ 38,268 for the Title IV, Part A, Student 
Support and Academic Enrichment Grant be and is hereby approved.  

 
  
17-10-G14 
Approval of 
Supplemental 
Appropriation  
FY2018 #4 

         RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent  
of Schools, that a supplemental appropriation to the FY2018  
Operating Fund in amount of $ 50,000 for the Planning Grant for Year-
Round Schools be and is hereby approved.  

 
17-10-G15 
Approval of 
Supplemental 
Appropriation  
FY2018 #5 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent  
of Schools, that a supplemental appropriation to the FY2018  
Operating Fund in amount of $ 78,549 for the Title IV, Part B, 21st 
Century Learning Center Grant be and is hereby approved.  

 
17-10-G16 
Approval of 
Supplemental 
Appropriation  
FY2018 #6 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent  
of Schools, that a supplemental appropriation to the FY2018  
Operating Fund in amount of $ 55,980 for the State Security Equipment 
Grant be and is hereby approved.  

 
 
17-10-G17 
Approval of 
Religious 
Exemption 

 
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, 
that the request for religious exemption from public school attendance for 
the child of Mr. and Mrs. Michael Harris, be and is hereby approved.      

 
ACTION ITEMS - NONE 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
A.    United Way Campaign        



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 26 
 
 

Dr. Hackney advised the Board that Jan Butterworth is working hard on the behalf 
of the division to motivate the employees to meet the goal of $12,000 in donations 
for the 2017-2018 school year.  

        
B.    Homecoming Activities 

Dr. Hackney complimented the high school on its spirit week activities, culminating   
in the Homecoming parade and game.   

        
C.    Employee Evaluations 

Dr. Hackney mentioned to the School Board that it is her goal to see that all employees 
have a timely evaluation annually, regardless of position so that each employee may 
receive relevant, constructive feedback. 
Dr. Hackney continued with her report to express gratitude for the donations to 
#HopewellCARES.   
Dr. Hackney also wanted to mention that the publicity about the increase in student 
suspension rates in Virginia had Hopewell in the top 25%, but she advised the Board 
Members that HCPS was proactive and had reviewed our policies and had already 
made changes that were making progress to reduce the number of suspension.  She 
also mentioned that what the division has implemented is working.  The October data 
is improved over September and the aggregate is much improved over the numbers 
which correlate to the same time period last year. 

     
INFORMATION ITEMS - None 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION- None 
 

Board Member Comments 
Chairman Reber expressed gratitude to the audience for its tolerance of the flexibility for 
the date of the School Board meeting, as it was not the regularly scheduled date. 
 
Ms. Hyslop commended the pre-school program and thanked Mrs. Jones for her work.  She 
was elated to visit the school and see students excited about being at school.  She thanked 
everyone for the work they do. 
 
Mrs. Jefferson said that she was pleased to see the great strides that our educational 
process is accomplishing.  She mentioned that she was able to see this on a personal level 
with her three-year-old grandson and the progress he has made in pre-school.  She advised 
the audience that he is demonstrating teaching skills to his grandparents regarding the 
things that he is learning at school.  She also thanked her sorority sisters for being in 
attendance and for all of the good work they do. 
 



School Board Minutes 
October 19, 2017 
Page 27 
 
 
Dr. Joyner voiced his gratitude for all that we are doing for teachers to enable them to do 
their jobs effectively.  He especially thanked Mr. Gregory and Mrs. Shores for their 
commitment to their jobs and expressed how important it is to support our teachers and 
their time and that all that we are doing to support them will aid our recruitment efforts. 
 
Mr. Cuffey mentioned that he was thankful to Dr. Evans for encouraging and implementing 
PBIS.  He mentioned that with his experience as an educator, he understands the value 
and knows that it works.  He went on to mention that the Board Members had participated 
in a retreat and that he was so thankful to be working with a group where the comfort 
level and trust was so strong that they worked well together.  Finally, he mentioned that 
he had attended an ARGS ribbon-cutting for the new dance studio and that it was obvious 
that the Hopewell students are excelling and thriving.  He thanked the Administration and 
the Superintendent for all they do. 
 
Chairman Reber concluded by mentioning how smoothly the school year is unfolding 
without any major concerns.  He thanked Dr. Hackney and the staff for this.  He continued 
by mentioning that with regards to this year’s budget, the division is on solid ground.  He 
reminded all that resources are to be used conservatively and wisely.  He also mentioned 
that he is very appreciative of the relationship the school division has with the City. 
 
Chairman Reber adjourned the meeting at 9:30 p.m. 
 
 
In witness whereof I set my signature this 9th day of November, 2017. 
 
 
 
                                          Chairman:  ________________________________ 
             School Board of the City of Hopewell 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING – SCHOOL BOARD RETREAT 
SCHOOL BOARD OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL 

September 18, 2017 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
Mr. Christopher Reber, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. and delivered 
the prayer. 
 
PRESENT 
Mr. Christopher G. Reber, Chairman; Ms. Linda Hyslop, Vice-Chair; member; Mrs. Shirl A. 
Jefferson, member; Mr. N. Greg Cuffey, member; and Dr. Wesley T. Joyner, member, were 
present. 
 
 

ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent of Schools; Dr. Kim F. Evans, Assistant 
Superintendent for Instruction; and Mrs. Monique G. Barnes, Director of Finance were 
present.  
 
 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Upon a motion by Mr. Greg Cuffey, and seconded by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, the School Board 
adopted the meeting agenda, to exclude Closed Session, as there were no items to be 
discussed that could not be heard or discussed in an open public meeting, with all members 
voting aye. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
Board Members listened to the plans that Dr. Hackney and Dr. Evans have for the division 
and correlated those to the School Division’s Strategic Plan. Dr. Hackney shared her goals 
for Hopewell City Public Schools  and also discussed the second year of her vision and the 
eight stage process to leading change.  
 
 
Chairman Reber adjourned the meeting at 8:28 p.m. 
 
 
In witness whereof I set my signature this 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
 
 
     Chairman: _________________________________ 
              School Board of the City of Hopewell 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ Clerk 
 



  
MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

SCHOOL BOARD OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL 
September 14, 2017 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Ms. Linda Hyslop called the closed Reinstatement Hearing to order at 5:15 p.m.  
 
PRESENT 
Ms. Linda E. Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A. Jefferson, member; Dr. Wesley T. Joyner, 
member, were present. 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent of Schools; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant 
Superintendent for Instruction; Mr. Keith Crews, Alternative Education Program 
Coordinator; Mr. Thomas Pond, Principal of Hopewell High School; Dr. Sheila Bailey, 
Director of Student Services.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Christopher Reber, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 5:46 p.m. and delivered 
the opening prayer. 
 

PRESENT 
Mr. Christopher Reber, Chairman; Ms. Linda E. Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A. 
Jefferson, member; Dr. Wesley T. Joyner, member, were present.  Mr. N. Gregory Cuffey 
arrived at 5:55pm. 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent of Schools; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant 
Superintendent for Instruction;  Mrs. Monique G. Barnes, Director of Finance; Mr. Patrick 
Barnes, Director of Operations; Mrs. Missy Shores, Interim Director of Personnel; Ms. 
Kristina Truell, Supervisor of Career and Technical Education; Dr. Tina Barringer, Supervisor 
of Elementary Education; Dr. Jan Butterworth, Supervisor of Secondary Education; Ms. 
Samantha Jenkins, Central Office Receptionist; Mrs. Cindy Harville, Executive Assistant for 
Finance; Mrs. Joyce Jones, Principal; Ms. Caitlyn Davis, Public Relations Officer, Holly 
Tillman and Lyndsey Dillingham with YStreet.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, and seconded by Dr. Wesley T. Joyner, the School 
Board adopted the early meeting agenda as presented, with all members present voting 
aye. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
A. Introduction of CTE Supervisor & School Board Receptionist – Dr. Melody 

Hackney   



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

Dr. Hackney introduced Ms. Kristina Truell and Ms. Samantha Jenkins as the new 
Supervisor of CTE and Receptionist for the Central Office, respectively, adding that they 
have been doing excellent work since their arrivals.  The School Board Members 
welcomed each to Hopewell City Public Schools. 
 

B.  Teacher Exit Interview Results – Mrs. Missy Shores 
   Mrs. Shores presented information gathered from each of the exit interviews to the 

Board Members, mentioning that the information gathered was to be used to assist in 
determining strategies to improve teacher retention.   The report was broken out by 
school.  Among the positive responses was that of support from staff and available 
resources.  Among the items that need attention are discipline issues and the need for 
additional training opportunities for career advancement and more time to collaborate 
with colleagues.   

 
C. 24/7 Campaign – Ms. Holley Tillman 

Ms. Tillman from YStreet and one of the students in the program, Lyndsey Dillingham, 
spoke to School Board Members about the 24/7 program, which encourages Schools to 
be completely tobacco-free for twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week.  They were 
there to request a partnership with the Hopewell School Board and encouraged the 
Members to join their program and outlined how the program and its resources that 
may be used to deter and prevent tobacco use.   
 

D. HHS Track Follow-up – Mr. Patrick Barnes 
Mr. Barnes advised Board members that he had consulted with other school divisions 
obtained quote information for the construction of the new track at the high school.  
The best option was to use the Chesterfield County contract that had cooperative 
language and use Precision Sport Surfaces, Inc.  He anticipates the installation being 
complete by He advised that the funding was available in the Building/Bus Replacement 
Fund. 
 

E. School Board Retreat Update – Dr. Melody Hackney 
Dr. Hackney advised School Board Members that the School Board Retreat 
arrangements have been made with the VCU Rice Center and that it has been scheduled 
for Monday, September 18, 2017 at 5:00pm. 
 

F. Hopewell City Public Schools P-Cards – Mrs. Monique Barnes 
Mrs. Barnes presented information about the State of Virginia Program Card Contract 
with Bank of America.  She advised that the card may be used for all expenses and that 
the use may be tied directly to the budget.  She explained the policies and procedures 
that would be put in place and also explained that the card does not carry fees; that 
the division could earn rebates, currently the rate is 1.81% on each purchase, simply 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 

by paying the bill on time.  Should the division miss a payment deadline, the purchases 
for that month would not be eligible for the rebate.  Mrs. Barnes also provided Board 
Members with a list of localities/municipalities and school divisions in Virginia who 
participate in the program.       

 
G.  Head Start Governance Training for Board Members – Mrs. Joyce Jones 

Mrs. Joyce Jones explained the governance of the Head Start program. She provided 
educational materials for the Board members to help them understand the program and 
how the School Board is an integral part in it.  
 

CLOSED MEETING 
Upon a motion by Mr. Greg Cuffey, and seconded by Dr. Wesley T. Joyner, the School 
Board adopted the following resolution to enter a Closed Meeting at 6:50 p.m., with all 
members voting aye. 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia, I move that the Board convene in a 
closed meeting for the purpose of discussing the following specific matters: 
  

A. The discussion or consideration of reinstatement of a student in Hopewell 
Schools, which is authorized by §2.2-3711(A) (2) of the Code of Virginia. 

 
B. The discussion or consideration of student admission matters pertaining a 

request for religious exemption for students in the division, which is authorized 
by §2.2-3711(A) (2) of the Code of Virginia. 

 
C. The discussion or consideration of the employment, assignment, appointment, 

promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, or resignation of employees at 
Hopewell High School, Carter G. Woodson Middle School, Dupont Elementary 
School, Harry E. James Elementary School, Patrick Copeland Elementary School, 
Woodlawn Learning Center, Food Service Department, Transportation 
Department and the Central Office, which is authorized by §2.2-3711(A)(1) of 
the Code of Virginia. 

 
At 7:30 p.m. Mr. Reber reconvened the Open Meeting.  
 
REGULAR MEETING 
Chairman Reber called the regular meeting to order at 7:37 p.m.  The prayer was delivered 
by Dr. Kim Evans, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
PRESENT 
Mr. Christopher Reber, Chairman, Ms. Linda Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A. Jefferson, 
member; Mr. N. Gregory Cuffey, member; Dr. Wesley T. Joyner, member, were present. 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant Superintendent for 
Instruction; Mrs. Monique Barnes, Director of Finance/Board Clerk; Mrs. Cindy Harville, 
Executive Assistant for Finance/Deputy Clerk; Mrs. Missy Shores, Interim Director of 
Personnel; Ms. Cheryl Webb, Director of School Improvement and Data Analysis  Dr. Tina 
M. Barringer, Supervisor of Elementary Instruction, Mrs. Jan Butterworth, Supervisor of 
Secondary Instruction; Mrs. Paula Brumfield, Supervisor of Literacy and Federal 
Programming; Ms. Kristina Truell, Supervisor of Career and Technical Education; Ms. 
Brookie Fowler, Coordinator of Disability Services, Mrs. Janel English, Coordinator of 
Finance;  Mr. Tommy Pond, Principal, Mr. Shannon Royster, Principal;  Ms. Carla Fizer, 
Principal;  Ms. Judy Barnes, Principal;  Mr. Byron Davis, Principal;  Mrs. Joyce Jones, 
Principal;  Mr. Keith Crews, Alternative Education Program Coordinator; Mrs. La-Donna 
Mills, Assistant Principal; Ms. Patricia Lobo, Assistant Principal; Ms. Tracy Wilson, 
Educational Diagnostician/Consultant;  Mr. Patrick Barnes, Director of Operations; Mr. Larry 
Cherry, Dean; Mr. Charles Dane, Interim Hopewell City Manager; Herbert Bragg, Katie 
Sloan, Honorees with their families; Ms. Caitlyn Davis, Public Relations officer; and one 
representative from the press.  
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 
Upon a motion by Mr. Greg Cuffey, and seconded by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, the Board adopted 
the attached Certification of Closed Meeting, with all members present voting aye.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Linda Hyslop, and seconded by Mr. Gregory Cuffey, the School 
Board adopted the September 14, 2017, Regular Meeting Agenda as presented, with all 
members present voting aye.  
 
SPECIAL RECOGINITION 
A.  Mr. Mark Haley, City Manager – Dr. Melody Hackney 
     Dr. Hackney recognized, honored and thanked Mr. Mark Haley for his support for the 

school division while serving as City Manager.  Mr. Haley just recently retired from the 
City of Hopewell, for whom he worked thirty-eight years.   

 
B.  Preston & Anne Leake Teacher Recognition Award – Dr. Melody Hackney 

Dr. Hackney recognized Antonia Thompson as the recipient of $1,000 for the Preston 
and Anne Leake Teacher Recognition Award provided through the John Randolph 
Foundation for outstanding teachers providing services for the children of Hopewell.  
The nomination actually came from her parents and Dr. Hackney read the letter written 
for this award. 

 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 5 
 
 
C. Strategic Planning 2016 Core Team – Dr. Melody Hackney and Dr. Kim 

Evans 
     Dr. Hackney and Dr. Evans extended appreciation to the Core Team who were 

instrumental in developing the School Division’s 2016 Strategic Plan.  The team 
consisted of parents, teachers, students, community leaders, and administrators, all 
with a love of Hopewell City Public Schools and their desire for the students to thrive 
and become successful.  

 
 
REPORTS 
 
A.  Opening of Schools – Dr. Kim Evans and Principals 

Dr. Evans reported that we opened our doors to our students on Tuesday, 
    September 5.  She extended her gratitude to the Personnel, Operations,  
    Transportation and Instructional departments, for their roll of enabling the schools to  
    open successfully. 
 

Each building Administrator shared their enthusiasm regarding the first week of school 
and reported that there were no major issues and that transportation was running 
smoothly.  Each is excited for the year to begin and are very happy to see their students 
return.  There was a feeling of calmness and ease after spending the summer preparing 
for the return of children and teachers.  There was also a slide presentation showing 
the opening of each of the schools and the activities of the children. 

 
 
B. Instructional Spotlight – Summer Learning and Success at HHS – Mr. Larry   
Cherry and Dr. Pam Aerni 

Dr. Aerni and Mr. Cherry presented a slide presentation from all of the activities, 
especially Project Based Learning, at the high school during the Summer Learning 
program.  There were enrichment classes, as well as remediation classes.  A full 
graduation ceremony was held at Hopewell High School.  With the additional graduates, 
the graduation rate improved from 86 to 87%. 
 

       
C.  Convocation Photo Story – Dr. Melody Hackney   

Dr. Hackney shared a presentation of photos from convocation that summarized the 
join and anticipation of beginning a new year.  She thanked all of the departments who 
made the day possible.  The theme was Disney’s Magic and emphasized how each 
employee can have magic in every day and focuses on the Disney philosophy for 
customer service, “Be our guest”. 
 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 6 
 
 
A. D.  New Cell Phone Expectations at Hopewell High School – Mr. Tommy 

Pond 
Mr. Pond explained to School Board members that students in the high school are no 
longer allowed to carry their cell phones and that the new rule has gone over well.  He 
explained the communication process that made students and parents aware prior to 
the implementation.    
 

 
E.  Finance, Maintenance and Clerk’s Report 
     Mrs. Monique Barnes, Director of Finance, presented the expenditure portion of the  
     Finance Report and polled the Board for any questions they might have.  
 
    
    Finance Report 
    August FY2017 Report (Month 13 of Fiscal Year) 

 Since the School Division operates on a modified accrual form of accounting, there are 
payments that actually happen in August that must be posted back to the previous year. 
This year we had one accounts payable runs; August 16th, 2017 for some travel 
reimbursements and some invoices for which the expenses were incurred in June but 
the invoices were not received.  

With these and the payroll payments, the FY2017 expenditure budget remaining was 
4.65% of the budget compared to 4.09% of the FY2016 expenditure budget at the same 
time last year.  There may be adjustments that will be made following our annual audit 
which will include changes to adjust for items such as the unused sick leave liability and 
the unused vacation leave liability.   
 
The revenue comparison shows 94.96% received in FY2016 and 100.3% in FY2016. 
 
August FY2018 Report (Month 2 of Fiscal Year)  

These payments were made on August 15, 2017, and August 31, 2017, and included 
checks memberships, convocation supplies, computer support agreements, computer 
hardware and software, printing, instructional supplies, testing supplies, textbooks, lease 
of property, legal fees, postage, staff development, maintenance supplies and services, 
fuel, and utilities. 

As a point of comparison, the operating fund had 88.29% of the FY2018 expenditure 
budget remaining at the end of August 2017, and there was 89.63% of the FY2017 
expenditure budget remaining at the same time last year.  The revenue receipts were 
4.52% of the budgeted receipts for FY2018 at the end of August 2017, and the revenue 
receipts were 5.06% of the FY2017 budgeted receipts at the same time last year. 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 7 
 
 

 
Maintenance Report 
A summary of the maintenance and technology support requests from August is included 
in the Board packet. The maintenance and Technology Departments closed 598 support 
requests during August and we ended the month with 271 requests open. 
 

Clerks Report 

There will be several policy updates provided in the future, once administration has time 
to review those sent by VSBA. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
None. 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Reber questioned the amount within the resolution relating to the supplements that 
HCPS supplies.  Dr. Hackney mentioned that Mrs. Shores has been working through them 
and has completed approximately 75% of the analysis, but that the amount was included 
in the FY2018 budget that was passed. 

Mr. Reber also questioned Mr. Barnes about the memorandum of understanding with the 
LEAD Center.  Mr. Barnes mentioned that the LEAD Center had requested catering services 
from our food service department and our attorney drew up the agreement to reduce the 
chances of legal recourse should a student have a reaction to food supplied. 

Upon a motion by Mr. Greg Cuffey, and seconded by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, the Board 
adopted the attached Consent Agenda, with all members present voting aye.  

Minutes 
The minutes of the meeting of August 10, 2017, were approved as submitted. 

Licensed Personnel Resolutions 

17-09-L1   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Crystal Mitchell, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Crystal Mitchell appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Jennifer Bouchard  
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L2   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Brandon Settle, being 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 8 
 
 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Brandon Settle appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Whitney Blankenship  
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L3   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Shea McCartt, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Shea McCartt  appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Jan Hartsook  
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L4   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Kevin Ganey, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Kevin Ganey  appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Whitney Copeland  
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L5   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Charles Keys, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Charles Keys  appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Carrie Ross  
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L6   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Elizabeth Davis, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Elizabeth Davis  appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Jennifer Fleming 
   Salary:  $46,141.00 (TCHIII, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L7   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Javaisjha Forte-Hayes, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Javaisjha Forte-  appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017 
Hayes   Vice: New Position (Elementary Alt. Education) 
   Salary:  $43,491.000 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L8   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Brian Beecham, being 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 9 
 
 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Brian Beecham  appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Irene Robinson 
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L9   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Daryl Aldridge, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Daryl Aldridge  appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Teutianna Durrah 
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-09-L10   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Mario Reynolds-Williams, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Mario Reynolds- appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017 
Williams  Vice: Peggy Henderson  
   Salary:  $51,888.00 (TCH 205, Step 16) 
 
17-09-L11   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Jennifer Bouchard 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Jennifer Bouchard Assignment:  Teacher; Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
 
 
17-09-L12   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to rescind resolution 17-06-L5 
to Rescind  for the appointment of Nicole Zimmel. 
Resolution   

 
17-09-L13   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to rescind resolution 17-07-L7 
to Rescind  for the appointment of Rebekah Turner. 
Resolution   
 
17-09-L14   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Morgan Hobson 
to Adjust    to $46,141, due to completion of a Master’s Degree. 
Salary   (TCHR III/Step 1) 
 
17-09-L15   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Sara Fletcher 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 10 
 
 
to Adjust    to $52,948 due to completion of a Master’s Degree. 
Salary   (TCH III 210/ Step12 ) 
 
17-09-L16   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Dimitria Roberts 
to Adjust    to $49,893, due to completion of a Master’s Degree plus 30 credits. 
Salary   (TCHR IV 210/Step 7) 
 
17-09-L17   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Danielle Nixon 
to Adjust    to $46,141, due to completion of a Master’s Degree. 
Salary   (TCHIII /Step 5) 
 
17-09-L18   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Andres Pierce 
to Adjust    to $56,443, due to completion 15 credits towards a Master’s Degree. 
Salary   (TCHR 240 II/Step10) 
 
17-09-L19   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Quinn Mason 
to Adjust   to $47,123, due to completion of 15 credits toward a Master’s  
Salary   Degree. 
   (TCHR II /Step 10) 
 
 
17-09-L20   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, to adjust the salary of Kira Brown 
to Adjust   to $44,016, due to completion of 15 credits toward a Master’s  
Salary   Degree. 
   (TCHR II /Step 3) 
 
17-09-L21    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Approval of  of Schools, to pay a stipend in the amount of $3000.00, per class 
Stipend  semester, for a total of $6000.00, to Dwight Williams to teach Dual 

Enrollment Sociology at Hopewell High School for the 2017-2018 
school year. 

 
17-09-L22    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Approval of  of Schools, to pay a stipend in the amount of $3500.00, per class 
Stipend  semester, to Mike Shuman to teach Early College Academy classes at 

Hopewell High School for the 2017-2018 school year. 
 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 11 
 
 
 
17-09-L23            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the following  
Supplement athletic coaching positions be and is hereby approved for payment at 

the conclusion of the season, for Hopewell High School for the 2017-
2018 School Year. 

 
Sport/Position Coach Supplement 
   
Assistant Wrestling Austin Theis 1400.00 

 
17-09-L24   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, that the following employee be paid a  
of Instructional supplement per day for teaching an additional block instruction at  
Supplement  Hopewell High School effective September 6, 2016: 
    

Alexis Maunes    $57.99 
 
 
 
Classified Personnel Resolutions 
 
17-09-C1    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Blake Washington be and is  
of Blake hereby appointed as a Teacher’s Assistant at Hopewell High  
Washington  School for the 2017-2018 school year, effective September 6, 2017. 
   Vice:  Charlene Pollard 
   Salary: $17,100 (SPED TA III/ Step 0) 

 
17-09-C2   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Jakaiya Parker be and is hereby  
Of   appointed as a Teacher’s Assistant at Woodlawn Learning Center.  
Jakaiya Parker School, effective September 11, 2017. 
   Vice: Kristin Still 
   Salary:  $15,220 (TA I, Step 0) 
 
17-09-C3   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Samantha Jenkins be and is hereby  
Of   appointed as Receptionist at the School Board Office, effective 
Samantha Jenkins August 1, 2017. 
   Vice:  Lauren Hayes 
   Salary:  $21,095 (SECR, Step0)  



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 12 
 
 
 
17-09-C4   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Theresa Whiting be and is  
of hereby appointed as a Teacher’s Assistant for Harry E. James  
Theresa Whiting Elementary School for the 2017-2018 school year, effective August 

25, 2017. 
   Vice:  Ronald Joswick    

Salary: $15,620 (TAII, Step 1) 
 
17-09-C5   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation  Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Kristin Still 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective July 1, 2017. 
Kristin Still  Assignment:  Woodlawn Learning Center  

 
17-09-C6   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation  Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Amanda Craft 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective September 5, 2017. 
Amanda Craft Assignment:  Carter G. Woodson Middle School  
 
 
17-09-C7   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that a supplement be paid to the   
Supplement following at the conclusion of the fall sports season, at Hopewell 

High School. 
 

Fall Season   
Sport/Position Coach Supplement 
Asst. Cross Country Kristin Rosh $1,400.00 

 
17-09-C8   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that effective June 28-August 3, 2017, 
Stipend the following position be approved for the Standards of Learning 

Summer Learning Program funded through SOL Summer School 
stipend funds.  The following will not be employed by Hopewell City 
Public Schools fall of 2017. 

 
Position Maximum number of Hours Amount per 

Hour 
Megan Holder 110 $30.00 

 
17-09-C9   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that Cheryl Green be paid a stipend 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 13 
 
 
Stipend to input VPI data into the Child Plus Data System. 
 Salary:  $20.00 per hour 
 Total Hours:  41.5 
 
17-09-C10    Resolved, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and is  
Algebra  hereby approved as an Algebra Readiness Tutors  
Readiness Tutor for the 2017-2019 school year.(Funded through the Algebra 

Readiness Grant) 
   Salary:  $20.00 per hour (training-non student hours) 
   Salary:  $25.00 per hour (student tutoring) 
 
   Marissa Redmond 
 
17-09-C11   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Amendment to Superintendent of Schools, that effective August 1, 2017, 
Resolution  that Resolution 17-06-C27, be and is hereby amended. 
17-06-C27  Kyleigh Gray   Salary: 11.83/hour not to exceed 805 hours 
   Phylise Taylor not to exceed 734 hours 
 
17-09-C12   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of James Taggart be 

and is hereby approved, effective August 4, 2017.  
Assignment:  Food Service - PT 
 

17-09-C13   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Deondre Marks be 

and is hereby approved, effective August 22, 2017.  
Assignment:  Food Service - PT 
 

17-09-C14   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Jatarra Ruffin be 

and is hereby approved, effective August 22, 2017.  
Assignment:  Food Service – PT 
 

17-09-C15   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Pamela Bowles be 

and is hereby approved, effective September 15, 2017.  
Assignment:  Food Service - FT 
 

17-09-C16   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Edward Jones be and is  



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 14 
 
 
Full-Time hereby appointed as a Full-Time Bus Driver for the  
Transportation 2017-2018 school year, effective September 5, 2017. 
Edward Jones Salary: $12.90 per hr.  

Vice:  New Position 
 

17-09-C17   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Haley Turner be and is  
Part-Time hereby appointed as a Part-Time Bus Aide for the  
Transportation 2017-2018 school year, effective September 5, 2017. 
Haley Turner  Salary: $7.97 per hr. 

Vice: Ashley White 
 
17-09-C18   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Carolyn Foster be and is  
Part-Time hereby appointed as a Part-Time Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2017-2018 school year, effective September 5, 2017. 
Carolyn Foster Salary: $9.83 per hr. 

Vice:  Jatarra Ruffin 
 

17-09-C19   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Delores Jones be and is  
Part-Time hereby appointed as a Part-Time Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2017-2018 school year, effective September 5, 2017. 
Delores Jones Salary: $9.53 per hr. 

Vice: Deondre Marks  
 

17-09-C20   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Cloreese Wells be and is  
Part-Time hereby appointed as a Part-Time Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2017-2018 school year, effective September 5, 2017. 
Cloreese Wells Salary: $9.53 per hr. 

Vice: New Position  
 

17-09-C21   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that JoAnn Scott be and is  
Full-Time hereby appointed as a Full-Time Vehicle Driver for the  
Transportation 2017-2018 school year, effective September 5, 2017. 
JoAnn Scott  Salary: $8.85 per hr.  

Vice:  Edward Jones 
 
17-09-C22   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Amanda Bain be and is hereby  



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 15 
 
 
Of   appointed as Teacher’s Assistant at Harry E. James Elementary   
Amanda Bain  School effective August 25, 2017. 
   Salary: $15,314 (TAII, Step 0) 
   Vice: Emily Taylor 
 
17-09-C23   Resolved, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Reappointments of Schools, that the following Substitute Teachers be and are 
Substitutes  hereby granted reappointments for the 2017-2018 School year, 
Teachers  effective September 5, 2017. 
   Latonia Costello    Kristin Still 

Traci Moore    Joseph Hagin 
Kristie Reid    Susan Sober 
Calandra Davis 

 
 
GENERAL RESOLUTIONS 
 
Warrants 
17-09-G1 
Review of Bills 
Month 13 
FY2017 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that bills in the amount of $7,563.78 (Operating Fund) 
and $1,076.09 (Cafeteria Fund) for the August 2017 Month 13 
billing period, have been presented and reviewed by the Hopewell 
City School Board.     

 
17-09-G2 
Review of Bills 
FY2018 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that bills in the amount of  $641,222.29 (Operating 
Fund) and $12,519.92 (Cafeteria Fund) for the August 2017 
billing period, have been presented and reviewed by the Hopewell 
City School Board.     

Miscellaneous 
17-09-G3 
Approval of 
Donations 
  

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Hopewell School Board accepts, with thanks, 
the following donations: 

 School supplies, valued at $8,025.00 for Hopewell High 
School and Carter G. Woodson Middle School from the 
following churches and organizations: 
     Family of God Church, Woodlawn Presbyterian Church, 
     First Presbyterian Church, St. John’s Episcopal Church, 
     First Christian Church, Liberty Baptist Church, Charity  
     Korean American Baptist Church, Custom Embroidery & 
     Design, John Randolph Foundation, Hopewell SunTrust  
     Bank, Partin Preferred Properties, VFW Post 637, Partin  



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 16 
 
 

     Oil Company and Riley Ingram for Delegate 
 Printing of Convocation brochures, valued at $343.00, from 

Johnson Printing of Hopewell 
 Food items, valued at $50.00, from K&L BBQ to the Head 

Start Program at Woodlawn for Staff Training (Child Plus) 
 $4,000 from Big Lots in Hopewell ($2,000 to Patrick 

Copeland Elementary School and $2,000 to Harry E. James 
Elementary School) 

 School supplies, valued at $400.00, from AdvanSix in 
Hopewell for the elementary schools 

 School supplies, valued at $50.00, from E.T. Garrett of 
Hopewell for Dupont Elementary School 

 Book bags, valued at $90.96, from VFW Post#10387 for 
Dupont Elementary School 

 School supplies, valued at $75.00, from Carr Brothers in 
Hopewell for Dupont Elementary School 

 $2,500 from the Walmart Distribution Center in Sutherland, 
VA, to the P.E. Department at Hopewell High School 

  
17-09-G4 
Approval of 
Head Start Self-
Assessment 
Report   

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Hopewell Head Start Program 2017-2018 
Self-Assessment Report for the Hopewell City Public Schools 
Head Start Program be and are hereby approved by the Hopewell 
City School Board.  

 
17-09-G5 
Approval of 
Head Start 
Planning 
Schedule 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Hopewell Head Start Program Planning 
Schedule for the 2017-2018 school year be and is hereby 
approved by the Hopewell City School Board. 

   
 
17-09-G6 
Approval of 
Head Start 
Shared Decision 
Making Process 
& Internal 
Dispute  

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the 2017-2018 Head Start Shared Decision 
Making Process & Internal Dispute Resolution be and are 
hereby approved as presented. 

   

 
17-09-G7      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 

of Schools, that the 2017-2018 Head Start Program Goals be 
and is hereby approved as presented. 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 17 
 
 
Approval of 
Head Start 
Program Goals 

   

 
17-09-G8 
Approval of 
Head Start 
Mission 
Statement 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the 2017-2018 Head Start Mission Statement 
be and is hereby approved as presented. 

   

 
17-09-G9 
Approval of 
Head Start 
Mental Health 
Procedure 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the 2017-2018 Head Start Mental Health 
Procedure be and is hereby approved as presented. 

   

 
17-09-G10 
Approval of 
Head Start 
Supervision & 
Monitoring Plan 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the 2017-2018 Head Start Supervision & 
Monitoring Plan be and is hereby approved as presented. 

   

 
 
17-09-G11 
Approval of 
School Board 
Liaison for Head 
Start Policy 
Council 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that Linda Hyslop be and is hereby appointed to the 
Head Start Policy Council effective October 1, 2017, to serve as the 
School Board liaison.  

   

 
17-09-G12 
Approval of 
Head Start 
Grant 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Head Start Grant in the amount of 
$1,266,938.00, be and is hereby approved as follows (grant 
serves 156 children): 

$1,246,617.00  – Program Operations 
       20,321.00  – Training & Technical Assistance   

 
 
17-09-G13 
Approval of 
Surplus 
Equipment 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the following items at Harry E. James Elementary 
School be and are hereby declared surplus: 

   



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 18 
 
 

 2 Delfield Cold Serve Lines 
 2 Delfield Hot Serve Lines 
 2 Delfield Milk Boxes   

 
17-09-G14 
Approval 
Renewal of 
Contract 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the contract for roofing repairs be and is hereby 
renewed with Old Dominion Roofing for the 2017-2018 school 
year. 

   
17-09-G15 
Approval of 
Textbooks 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the following textbooks be and is hereby approved:  

 
   Family and Consumer Science 
   Book Title: Exploring Life and Career: Introduction to Social Health 
   Publisher: Goodheart-Willcox Publisher 
   ISBN: 978-1-63126-205-0 
   Edition: 7th 
   Author: Martha Dunn-Strohecker, Ph.D. & Deborah Tippett, Ph.D. 
   No: 40 textbooks 
   Cost: $67.50 
 

Pre-School Curriculum for Woodlawn Learning Center 
   Book Title: The Creative Curriculum for Preschool, 6th Edition 77303 
   Book Title: Creative Curriculum for Infants, Toddlers, and Twos, 3rd  

Edition 76108 
Book Title: The Creative Curriculum for Preschool, 6th Edition, with 
Daily Resources Spanish 77846 

 
 
17-09-G16 
Approval 
Purchase of 
New Hope 
Academy 
Building 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the purchase of the New Hope Academy 
Building at 201 W. Poythress St. Hopewell, VA  be and is 
hereby approved for an amount not to exceed $435,000. 

   

 
17-09-G17 
Approval of 
Contract 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the contract for the installation of the new 
Hopewell High School track in the amount of         $ 514,420 
be and is hereby awarded to Precision Sports Surfaces, Inc. 

   



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 19 
 
 
Policy 
17-09-G18 
Approval of 
Amended 
Policies 

      
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the following amended policies be and are 
hereby approved: 
 
Policy EFB – Free & Reduced Price Food Services 
Policy JHCH – School Meals & Snacks 
 
 

Miscellaneous 
17-09-G19 
Approval of 
Catering MOU 

      
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the LEAD Center Food Service Catering MOU 
be and is hereby approved. 
 

 
17-09-G20 
Approval of 
Contract 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the contract for pest control services be and is 
hereby awarded to Bug Busters for the 2017-2018 school year. 

 
17-09-G21 
Approval 
Participation in 
Virginia’s 
Program Card 
System 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the participation in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia’s Program Card System issued through Bank of 
America, be and is hereby approved. 

   

 
 
17-09-G22                  RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent  
Approval of           of Schools, that the FY2018 Supplements be and are hereby  
FY2018                 approved as follows: 
Supplements 
 

Summary FY2018 Supplements 
Program Number of 

Positions 
Administrator Amount 

I. Supplements    
1. Athletics 68  $191,972 

High School 53 Athletic Director $170,872 
 Middle School 15 S. Royster $  21,100 

2. Department    
Chair/Gifted/Ext. Curr 121    $46,218 
 HHS 60 T. Pond   $19,245 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 20 
 
 

 CGW 26 S. Royster   $17,184 
 Woodlawn 2 J. Jones        $486 
 Dupont 11 C. Fizer     $3,101 
 HEJ 11 J. Barnes     $3,101 
 P.C. 11 B. Davis     $3,101 

3. Lead 
Teachers/SET 

75 K. Evans/C. 
Webb  

  $68,078 

4. Special 
Education 

39 S. Bailey   $19,912 

5. Alternative 
School  

       Subject Support 

4 T. Pond     $5,440 

6. Title I 16 P. Brumfield   $54,047 
7. Web Masters 8 Principals     $6,726 
8. Fine Arts 2 J. Butterworth        $760 
9. Nurse 1 K. Stock        $400 

10. Total 
Supplements 

434  $393,553 

Contractual Services  
Time Sheets 

  

II. Driver Education $140 per student T. Pond       $9,881 
1. SOL Tutoring $25 per hour C. Webb     $74,649 
2. Curriculum Writing$20 per hour K. Evans     $39,512 
3. Teacher Training $20 per hour C. Webb       $8,118 
4. Summer School $25 per hour P. Brumfield   $250,800 
5. Algebra Readiness$25 per hour J. Butterworth     $87,657 
6. Reading 

Intervention 
$25 per hour J. Butterworth     $17,536 

7. Homebound $25 per hour K. Stock     $74,000 
8. Title III Depends Upon 

Service 
S. Bailey     $10,800 

Total Non-Contractual 
Services 

    $572,953 

Grand Total     $966,506 
   

 

 
Discipline 
17-09-G23 
Approval of 
Recommendation 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that student  # 401287677 be released from 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 21 
 
 

compulsory attendance and the application to the Commonwealth 
Challenge program and/or Adult Education program is supported.  

 
17-09-G24 
Approval of 
Religious 
Exemption 

 
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the request for religious exemption from public school 
attendance for the child of Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Rhoney, be and is 
hereby approved.      

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
LICENSED RESOLUTIONS 
 
16-09-L44   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Mary Shores, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Mary   appointment as the Director of Personnel  
Shores   Effective September 15, 2016. 
   Vice: Mel Bage 
   Assignment:  School Board Office 
   Salary:  $66,917 (EPAS/ Step 0) 
 
16-09-L45   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation  Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of 
Charlene   Charlene Elliott be and is hereby accepted, effective 
Elliott   September 13, 2016. 
   Assignment: Teacher – Harry E. James Elementary School 
 
16-09-L46   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation  Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of 
Kurtis             Kurtis Young be and is hereby accepted. 
Young   Assignment: Teacher /Coach– Hopewell High School 
    
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
A.    Summer Reflections 
       Dr. Hackney thanked all of the staff for all of the hard work throughout the summer 

and is thrilled to begin this year and see the magic that can happen.  She expressed 
pride in all of the teachers who willingly to their time this summer for professional 
development   .  

 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 22 
 
 
B. Transportation Successes 

Dr. Hackney advised Board Members that the change in the start times for the 
schools has paid-off with buses arriving on-time, with even some arriving early.  She 
expressed happiness in that the students are arriving and instruction may begin 
without delays.  

 
C.    Student Enrollment 
       Dr. Hackney informed the Board that our enrollment is stabilizing beginning on day 
       one, 4,168 as of September 14, 2017 at 4,334 
 
D.   #HopewellCARES 

Dr. Hackney informed School Board members of the initiative that Dr. Evans has begun 
to help the storm victims.  Dr. Evans described the program and related a story from 
the early beginnings of her marriage when the tornado in 1993 hit the place where 
she was located to the needs of the storm victims.  The schools have adopted schools 
in Houston for the next year to donate aid and the division is also forwarding donations 
made by individuals to the American Red Cross.   

 
       
INFORMATION ITEMS – None 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION- None 
 

Board Member Comments 
Ms. Hyslop mentioned that from Convocation through to tonight’s meeting, everything has 
been inspirational!  She thanked the Administration for all that they have done during the 
summer and for the wonderful start of the school year.  

Mrs. Jefferson mentioned that this year’s Convocation was the best one that she has seen 
since she joined the School Board.  She thanked Mr. Barnes and the transportation 
department for getting our children safely to school on time and gave thanks that we are 
attempting to feed all of our neighborhood’s children. 

Mr. Cuffey commented that the Summer School Graduation was awesome and that 
convocation was incredible.  He stated that he has faith that the division will be accredited 
and thank everyone for the hard work.  

Dr. Joyner addressed the Administrators present and mentioned that he was struck by the 
demands placed on the Administration and Superintendent.  He congratulated all on the 
smooth opening of schools and expects a good year. 



School Board Minutes 
September 14, 2017 
Page 23 
 
 
Mr. Reber thanked everyone for what they do and anticipates a positive new year.  He 
pointed out that the division has purchased the New Hope Academy building and that he 
is grateful for the efforts.  He mentioned that the Board is invested in providing the new 
track at the high school and that the Board is also invested in the people with Hopewell 
City Public Schools.  He finished by saying that he was grateful for all in attendance.   

Chairman Reber adjourned the meeting at 9:10 p.m. 
 
In witness whereof I set my signature this 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
 
 
                                          Chairman:  ________________________________ 
             School Board of the City of Hopewell 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ Clerk 



Minutes of the Petersburg Area Regional Tourism Board of Directors meeting held on Friday, 
March 18, 2017, at Henricus Historical Park in Chesterfield County. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Rick Young, Carol Marks Bowman, Michelle Peters representing Tom 
Tyrell, Sarah Snead, Tammie Collins representing Kevin Massengill, Karen Epps, Herbert Bragg 
representing Mark Haley, Ann Blumenschine, Daniel Cook, Jane McCullen, Sarah Gauvin. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Suhail Arora, Anil Patel, Ella Dickinson. 
 
ADVISORS PRESENT:  George Fickett, John Watt, Marilyn Greene, Becky McDonough. 
 
GUESTS PRESENT:   Charlie Grant, Henricus; Heather Barrar, Chesterfield County; Wendy 
Austin, Ken Newman, Friends of the Lower Appomattox River. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mr. Young who introduced Charlie Grant, Executive 
Director of Henricus.  Mr. Grant welcomed the PART board to Henricus and thanked the 
members for coming.  He invited members to tour following the meeting. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Upon motion of Ms. Bowman, seconded by Dr. McCullen and carried, the minutes of the 
PART Board of Directors meeting held on March 18, 2017, were approved as presented. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
FOLAR Strategic Plan  -  Mr. Morris introduced Ms. Heather Barrar, Vice-Chair of the Friends 
of the Lower Appomattox River board, who presented an overview of FOLAR’s work on a plan 
for completion of a 23-mile trail system along the Appomattox River from Dinwiddie County to 
Hopewell.  Her presentation also included information about the signage that will be installed 
and bridges that will be constructed to connect both sides of the river. 
 
Connection to the Capital Trail  -  Mr. Morris reported that the region’s Metropolitan Planning 
Organization, the region’s transportation planning policy board, will be undertaking the 
feasibility study on linking the trails system to the Virginia Capital Trail in Charles City County.  
He said MPO staff has discussed the project with VDOT staff and it may be possible to utilize 
VDOT’s “Consultants on Call” program. 
 
Lodging Activity/Smith Travel Report – Mr. Morris distributed a copy of a news release 
regarding the 2016 lodging statistics, saying that calendar year 2016 was a “banner year” for the 
region’s hotels. 
 
 Ms. Greene commented that the hotels are seeing a pick-up in tour bus traffic. 
 
 Mr. Morris referred to the January, 2017, Smith Travel Report (STR).  He said January 
tends to be a slow month and occupancy reflected a slight drop.  He added; however, that the 
Average Daily Rate and Revenue Per Available Room reflected increases. 
 
  



PART BOARD MINUTES 
March 18, 2017 
Page Two 
 
Fort Lee Fast Facts -  Mr. Morris distributed Fort Lee’s most recent FAST Facts card 
presenting the numbers of persons on post and off post.  He said that as of February, 2017, there 
were 27,000+ persons on post.  He said that while the number of military permanent party has 
been reduced somewhat to 3,500, the number of civilian personnel is up.  He said the numbers 
attending the Army Logistics University and those coming for Advanced Individual Training are 
very solid. 
 
 Ms. Gauvin said the expectation for this fiscal year is a plus-up, with more trainees and 
additional civilian employees. 
 
 Regarding military retirees, Mr. Morris said that 45,000 retirees reside within a 40 mile 
radius of Fort Lee. 
 
Financial Report for July 1, 2016-March 10, 2017  -  Mr. Morris referred to the report in the 
agenda package and indicated that PART is on target financially.  Mr. Morris pointed out that 
PART does not pay for staff, the Crater PDC pays staff.  He said PART’s funding pays for 
marketing and costs supportive of marketing.  He also pointed out that many of the costs 
associated with marketing come in the final quarter. 
 
MARKETING REPORT 
 
Visitor Guide  -  Ms. Williams reported that the new visitor guide will have the same general 
look and the same cover, but will have four additional pages that add narrative/photos about 
food, wineries, and breweries.  She also said that The Progress-Index proposed a partnership that 
ultimately was accepted, resulting in a savings of $20,000 for PART. 
 
Advertising – Ms. Williams said that the number of PART’s Facebook friends/followers 
continue to grow.  As an example, she said that when she shared the video produced about the 
Tractor Museum for the Southern Weekends initiative, it got 20,000+ impressions without any 
boost. 
 
 She then reported that the next event for which PART will use television advertising will 
be FOLAR’s RiverFest in April.  She pointed out that FOLAR is supported by all six of PART’s 
localities.  She also said she is trying very hard to negotiate a way to get into the Hampton Roads 
market via WTVR in Richmond. 
 
 She then said that at the end of 2016, four of the Southern Weekends videos had been 
produced.  She said these can be used for re-targeting ads, can be placed on websites and 
Facebook and portions can be used for other purposes.  She said the Henricus Video is the next 
to be produced.  She said this initiative has gotten PART out-of-state and provided us with good 
video footage.  The NC stations that we used varied, but included Charlotte, Winston-Salem and 
Raleigh-Durham. 
  



PART BOARD MINUTES 
March 18, 2017 
Page Three 
 
 Ms. Williams then said that PART has thousands of photos and she is looking to purchase 
server space for them. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 1:05 p.m. 



Minutes of the Petersburg Area Regional Tourism Board of Directors meeting held on Friday, 
May 19, 2017, at the Crater Planning District Commission office. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Rick Young, Sarah Snead, Kevin Massengill, Douglas Smith, Percy 
Ashcraft, Jane McCullen, Carol Marks Bowman, Sarah Gauvin, Mark Haley. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Anil Patel, Suhail Arora, Ella Dickenson. 
 
ADVISORS PRESENT:  John Watt. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Denny Morris, Martha Burton, Joanne Williams. 
 
The meeting was called to order by the chairman Mr. Young. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Upon motion of Ms. Bowman, seconded by Ms. Snead and carried, the minutes of the 
PART Board of Directors meeting held on March 18, 2017, were approved as presented. 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 
Proposed 2017-2018 Operational Budget  -  Mr. Morris stated that the budget requests 
presented to the local government members was for level funding and all of those requests were 
included in the adopted local budgets.  He thanked the local government managers for their 
support of PART.  In reviewing the proposed budget he noted the audited restricted funding, 
explaining that he always attempts to carry over money from one year to the next.  He said he put 
$100,000 in the proposed budget; however, the exact amount will not be nailed down until the 
Crater PDC audit is completed.  He said the Management Services (Crater PDC) item is the 
contract for PDC support of PART and includes in-house printing, travel, general support, 
adding that staff and fringe benefit costs are under the PDC management contract and outside 
grant funding.  He said that the DistribuTech contract covers 38 retail locations in higher income 
zones throughout the Richmond Metro Area.  He said that conversations are underway with 
DistribuTech to expand into other areas such as Williamsburg.  He said that the Highway 
Information Media contract warehouses the visitor guides and Walk in Lincoln’s Final Footsteps 
brochures and stocks the 13 Virginia Welcome Centers.  He said the Smith Travel Research 
contract is a subscription for the monthly hotel occupancy reports, and Ms. Williams operates 
Williams Media, LLC. 
 
Upon motion of Mr. Massengill, seconded by Ms. Snead and carried, the Board approved the 
2017-2018 budget, as proposed by staff. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Smith Travel Report – He referred to the May report covering April rates and said that while 
January and February were weaker, the occupancy rate for April was just a little below the April, 
2016 number and 2016 was a “banner year” in the region.  He added that revenue is on par with 
last year’s numbers and the running 12 months numbers are also positive. 
 
  



PART BOARD MINUTES 
May 19, 2017 
Page Two 
 
Feasibility Study-Appomattox River Trail & Capital Trail – Mr. Morris reported that VDOT 
is willing to put the request for a feasibility study of connecting the Appomattox River Trail to 
the Capital Trail on the list for the “Consultant on Call” program funding.  He said the Crater 
PDC’s MPO will manage the project.  He said he expects to obtain a sign-off on the project in 
June and there will be approximately $50,000 available.  He said that a stakeholder group will be 
pulled together for this initiative. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule  -  Mr. Morris distributed a proposed schedule of board meetings for 
2017-2018 and said that meetings will be held this year in Hopewell, Prince George and Colonial 
Heights. 
 
Marketing Report 
 
Ms. Williams reported that PART now has over 8,700 FaceBook followers.  She said that the 
video for Henricus needs to be filmed.  She also said she is having conversations with the 
television stations.  Regarding print media, she said an ad will be in the next issue of Richmond 
Magazine which is featuring the Appomattox River Trail.  She also said that there have been 
conversations with The Progress-Index re: their digital connections to the other papers owned by 
the P-I owner. 
 
She reported also that PART’s cost per copy for the new visitor guide, due to the partnership 
with The Progress-Index, was 25 cents per copy. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:30 p.m. 
 



Minutes of the Petersburg Area Regional Tourism Board of Directors meeting held on Friday, 
September 15, 2017, at the Prince George County Regional Heritage Center. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Rick Young, Sarah Snead, Doug Smith, Kevin Massengill, Jerry 
Desmond, Carol Marks Bowman, Yodi Jibri, Ann Blumenschine. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:    Anil Patel, Suhail Arora, Jane McCullen, Charles Dane, Aretha Ferrell-
Benavides, Ella Dickenson, Sarah Gauvin. 
 
ADVISORS PRESENT:   John Watt, Becky McDonough, Karen Epps, Marilyn Greene, George 
Fickett. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Denny Morris, Martha Burton, Joanne Williams. 
 
GUESTS PRESENT:  Colin Romanick, Pamplin Historical Park; Sarah Henderson, Hopewell 
Prince George Chamber of Commerce; Donald Hunter, Percy Ashcraft, Jeff Stoke, Prince 
George County. 
 
The meeting was called to order by the chairman, Mr. Young.  He thanked Prince George 
County for hosting the meeting and complimented Ms. Bowman on the museum. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Upon motion of Ms. Snead, seconded by Mr. Massengill and carried, the minutes of the 
PART Board of Directors meeting held on May 19, 2017, were approved as presented. 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 
2017-2018 Cooperative Agreement Between PART and Crater Planning District 
Commission – Mr. Young informed the members that the provisions of this agreement are the 
same as those in the 2016-2017 Agreement. 
 
Upon motion of Mr. Massengill, seconded by Ms. Snead and carried, the Board approved 
the 2017-2018 Cooperative Agreement Between PART and Crater Planning District 
Commission as presented. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Smith Travel Report for August, 2017  -  Mr. Morris referred to the report and noted that while 
there was a downturn in occupancy in August, revenue was up, Revenue Per Available Room 
(RevPAR) was up and the Average Daily Rate was up.  Ms. Greene said the local hotels are 
doing well, there is a good mix of business and leisure travelers. 
 
Meeting Schedule  -  Mr. Morris said that the Governor recently released the Economic Impact 
reports, by locality, for 2016, as reported by Virginia Tourism Corporation.  He said he compiled 
the regional report using the six reports, noting that only one-third of Chesterfield County’s 
numbers are included in the PART table.  He said that the report reflects a nice “bump-up” in 
  



PART BOARD MINUTES 
September 15, 2017 
Page 2 
 
expenditures, noting that the PART Region out-performed the state as a whole.  He said 
increases occurred in all six localities.  He also pointed out that the Meals, Admissions and 
Lodging Tax data is pulled from the Virginia Auditor of Public Accounts Comparative Report. 
 
Ordnance Facility  -  Mr. Morris reported that ground has been broken for the new ordnance 
facility that will house and display many of the very large ordnance pieces that came to Fort Lee 
from Aberdeen Proving Ground.  He said that the Ordnance Museum, when it was in MD, had 
visitation of 100,000 annually.   He then said that in a recent meeting with General Hurley, he 
once again raised the issue re: the need for a road directly off of Route 36 taking visitors to Fort 
Lee’s museum complex and the General agreed to look at it.  Mr. Morris said the MPO would be 
willing to consider this project and has a stream of revenue for local projects. 
 
Financial Report – Mr. Morris referred the members to the report for the period July 1-
September 5 and he thanked the six member localities for including full funding for PART in 
their budgets.  He commented on DistribuTech- the firm that places visitor guides in retail outlets 
in the Greater Richmond WAWAs, and Kroger’s and previously Martin’s.  He said staff is in 
conversations about Publix stores.  Also, there are opportunities to broaden our reach into 
Williamsburg, Yorktown, and Suffolk areas.  He also commented on the expenditure of 
$5,470.75, which is the 2-page ad that PART has in the GO Williamsburg publication that is 
distributed in all of the time shares and hotels in the Williamsburg area. 
 
DistribuTech Contract – Mr. Morris referred to the contract in the agenda package that covers 
the visitor guide placements in WAWAs and Krogers in designated zones for a total of $1,179 
per month.  He added that per the earlier conversation, staff continues to look at opportunities in 
other markets. 
 
Upon motion of Ms. Snead, seconded by Mr. Smith and carried, the Board approved the 
Pocket/ Service Agreement with DistribuTech in the amount of $1,179 per month, with the 
idea that it could be adjusted later in the year to increase the number of outlets. 
 
MARKETING REPORT 
 
Ms. Williams reported that PART was given one-third of a prime time one-half hour tourism 
special by WTVR and PART’s third of the program focused on food/dining.  She said the 
featured venues were:  Buttermilk Bakery in Petersburg, the Boathouse Restaurant in Hopewell, 
Ashton Creek Vineyard, Steam Bell Beerworks and the Halfway House in Chesterfield County. 
She said that PART has negotiated packages with WTVR and WWBT that have multiple 
components including non-traditional spots, traditional spots, social media, and A-List 
appearances.  Nicki Dee Ray has been in the region, most recently at Richlands Dairy in 
Dinwiddie County. She said there are many fall events, such as the county fairs in Chesterfield 
and Dinwiddie, FOLAR’s Battle or Paddle, Festival of Grapes & Hops, the Czech & Slovak 
Heritage Festival. Jessica Noll recently visited Pamplin Park to spotlight the new technology that 
visitors are using.  Ms. Williams then said that PART’s Facebook page activity continues to 
grow, with an average of 100,000 impressions per month and the number of friends continues to 



grow.  She cited as examples- the recent car show at Richard Bland College which was the 
largest ever, adding that 



PART BOARD MINUTES 
September 15, 2017 
Page 3 
 
the social media on the county fairs did really well.  Regarding print ads, she cited the GO 
Williamsburg guide and the Richmond Region Visitor Guide.  She said PART will not be in the 
Virginia Travel Guide as they have reduced the number of copies, there will be no editorial about 
the region, there was no negotiation on price and the response cards were eliminated so we 
would receive no names and addresses. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:30 p.m. 
 



Fiscal Year 2017 Budget 
Recreation and Parks Department 

Full Time Salaries

Part-Time Salaries

Benefits and Employer
Expenses

Programming Expenses

Operating Expenses

Total Budget:  $1,832,000 



Budget Category Descriptions 

• Full-time salaries 
– Includes salaries earned by employees who work a minimum of 37 hours/week, 

overtime costs 

• Part-time Salaries 
– Includes hourly wages for positions such as customer service agents, gym attendants, 

lifeguards, and custodians 

• Benefits and Employer Expenses 
– Includes health insurance, short-term disability, long-term disability, workers 

compensation, FICA, group life insurance, and retirement 

• Programming Expenses 
– Includes contractual vendor fees, programming supplies, food supplies, temporary 

vendor fees, and the lease/rental of equipment 

• Operating Expenses 
– Includes utilities, communications, office supplies, training and development costs, 

equipment repairs, vehicle maintenance, vehicle gas, janitorial supplies, credit card 
processing fees, and other miscellaneous operating expenses 

 

 

 



RECREATION COMMISSION MINUTES 
Wednesday, February 8, 2017 

Hopewell Community Center 

 

 
Present:  Anthony Sylvester, Chair 

Rogers Henry 

Terence Doctor 

 Janelle Taylor 

 Laura Sutton 

 Gregory Cuffey, Jr. (Student Representative) 

 

Absent:  None 

 

Staff:  Aaron Reidmiller, Director 

 Arlethia Dearing, Customer Service Manager 

 

Guests:   None 

  

  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Anthony Sylvester.  Brief introductions of new 

members and staff members were conducted.  Chairman Sylvester gave a general overview of how 

meetings are conducted and the roles and responsibilities of Recreation Commission members.  

Chair Anthony Sylvester motioned to adopt the minutes from the June 8, 2016 meeting, the last 

official meeting of the commission.  The motion was carried unanimously.  Due to 

reorganizational requirements, the meeting was turned over to the director, Aaron Reidmiller, at 

this time.   

   

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

Programming Update: 

 Director Reidmiller gave a copy of the current activity guide to Commission members.  

He explained that the guide is available online through the city’s website, in hard copy at 

the Hopewell Community Center and other city buildings, and is mailed to all Progress-

Index subscribers as an insert when first released.  The activity guide is published three 

times a year.   

 

Marketing Update: 

 Director Reidmiller explained that the Activity Guide had been totally reformatted and 

redesigned to offer the reader a document that was easier to understand and more 

aesthetically attractive.    In addition, the department’s social media presence has grown 

through the use of facebook and instagram accounts.  The social media outlets are used to 

distribute information on upcoming programs, events and facility updates.  A weekly 

email distribution has also begun in an effort to further increase the dissemination of 

department information.   

 

Maintenance/Capital Projects Update: 

 The department has welcomed Tom Gates, Manager of Maintenance and Facilities, to the 

team.  Mr. Gates is responsible for the oversight of all parks and facilities maintenance as 

well as capital project management.  Mr. Gates has been busy managing several large 

capital projects which include the replacement of the Hopewell Community Center 

security camera system, resurfacing of the Hopewell Community Center pool deck, and 

resurfacing of the Hopewell Community Center main parking lot and drop off loop.  

Additionally, Mr. Gates is overseeing an ongoing project to replace much of the signage 

in the city’s park system.   

 

 

 

  

  

Recreation and Parks 

 
100 W. City Point Road 

Hopewell, VA  23860 

 

(804) 541-2353 

(804) 541-2464 (fax) 

 

www.hopewellva.gov 



 

Special Projects: 

 City Park Improvement Project-the official groundbreaking ceremony for the City Park 

Improvement Project will be held on March 1 at 11:00 a.m. at City Park.  The project 

includes the replacement of the play area at City Park with a nature-inspired play area 

and other general park improvements.  The project is made possible through a $150,000 

grant from the American Water Charitable Foundation.   

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

   

Appointment of Chair:   

 Director Reidmiller informed members that according to Commission bylaws, the 

Recreation Commission must appoint a chair as part of the group’s annual organizational 

meeting.  Duties include presiding over meetings and reporting to City Council as 

needed.   

 Ms. Janelle Taylor nominated Anthony Sylvester to remain as the Chair of the Recreation 

Commission.  The motion was seconded.  The motion was carried unanimously and Mr. 

Sylvester was appointed as chair for the calendar year 2017.  

 

Review of Bylaws: 

 Chair Anthony Sylvester recommended that they Bylaws be tabled until the next meeting 

to give existing members a chance to review them. 

 

FURTHER DISCUSSION:   

 Chairman Anthony Sylvester inquired as to whether Commission members may apply for 

grants through the Cameron Foundation or other charitable foundations.  Director Aaron 

Reidmiller advised that members should relay funding opportunities to staff rather than 

trying to complete applications themselves.  Most applications require very specific 

program or operational details which commission members may not have access to. 

 

REQUESTS FROM COMMISSION MEMBERS:  

 Chair Anthony Sylvester requested a pie chart of the 16/17 fiscal year budget.   

 Chair Anthony Sylvester encouraged student representative, Greg Cuffey, Jr. to bring 

back ideas from students that they would like to see implemented.   

 

ADJOURNMENT:  

 With there being no further business to discuss, a motion was made by Greg Cuffey, Jr. 

and seconded by Laura Sutton to adjourn.  The motion was carried unanimously.  The 

next meeting will be held on Wednesday, March 8th at 6:00 p.m. in the Hopewell 

Community Center conference room.



RECREATION COMMISSION MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 10, 2017 

Hopewell Community Center 

 

 
Present:  Anthony Sylvester, Chair 

Terence Doctor 

 Janelle Taylor 

 Laura Sutton 

 

Absent:  Rogers Henry 

 Gregory Cuffey, Jr. (Student) 

 

Staff:  Aaron Reidmiller, Director 

  

Guests:   None 

  

  

Members completed the Pledge of Allegiance.  The meeting was called to order by Chairman 

Anthony Sylvester.  The meeting was turned over to the director, Aaron Reidmiller, at this time.   

   

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

Programming Update: 

 Mr. Reidmiller provided information on recently held and upcoming programs and events 

offered by the Recreation and Parks department. 

o Rockin’ on the River Concert Series begins Wednesday, May 10.   

o The Wonder City Craft Beer Festival will be held on Saturday, June 17 from 2-7 

p.m.  The event will be held in the upper area of City Park across from the 

library and Beacon Theatre.  This area is being referred to as Festival Park.   

o The Fireworks on the Appomattox event will be held on Saturday, July 1. The 

main viewing location for the event will be the rear parking area of the John 

Randolph Medical Center.  The Fort Lee Army Band will play music from 8-9 

p.m. and fireworks will begin at 9:30 p.m.   

o Summer Camps are scheduled to begin in June.  Eight weeks of camp will be 

offered throughout the summer.  Each week of camp will feature a different 

theme and will include field trips, special guests, meals, and a variety of 

activities.   

 

Marketing Update: 

 Mr. Reidmiller discussed the Summer Activity Guide and the program listings included 

in the guide.  Mr. Sylvester discussed the possibility of mailing a post card to households 

in and around Hopewell to market programs and facilities.  Mr. Reidmiller also discussed 

success with social media platforms including facebook and Instagram.  The city is still 

restructuring the website and working on implementing changes to the way information is 

shared through the site.   

 

Maintenance/Capital Projects Update: 

 The City Park Improvement Project is progressing as the formal site plan is being 

finalized.  The department used grant funding to hire Timmons Group to assist with the 

formal site plan of the park.  The department is also working with the city’s stormwater 

management team to ensure all regulations are followed during the construction process.  

Construction of the play equipment will begin once the site plan is finalized and 

approved.  

 Four electronic scoreboards were installed at Mathis Park in memory of Allen Flannagan, 

Jr.   The project was made possible with funding from the John Randolph Foundation.   

 The Department has received compliments on athletic field maintenance and overall 

facility cleanliness at Parks and at the Hopewell Community Center.   

  

  

Recreation and Parks 

 
100 W. City Point Road 

Hopewell, VA  23860 

 

(804) 541-2353 

(804) 541-2464 (fax) 

 

www.hopewellva.gov 



 The maintenance schedule has been difficult due to the department’s demanding athletic 

field maintenance schedule, which includes lining and field preparation for all high 

school sports events.  This is part of the department’s MOU with Hopewell City Public 

Schools.   

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

   

Review of Budget Breakdown:   

 Mr. Reidmiller presented a pie chart of the department’s budget and how funds are 

allocated within the budget, as requested by Mr. Anthony Sylvester at the February 2017 

meeting.  The chart demonstrates that the majority of the budget covers staff salaries 

(part-time and full-time), which is common for most governmental agencies.  Other 

budget areas included operational expenses and programming costs.   

 

ADJOURNMENT:  

 With there being no further business to discuss, a motion was made by Anthony Sylvester 

and seconded by Laura Sutton to adjourn.  The motion was carried unanimously.  The 

next meeting will be held on Wednesday, June 14 at 6:00 p.m. at the Hopewell 

Community Center. 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Brenda S. Pelham,  Ward #6    □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina  J .Luman-Bauiley, Ward #1 □ □ Councilor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5   

     □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 1.2015 
        

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Report on Upcoming Special Events   
 
ISSUE:  The department of Recreation and Parks will be hosting a variety of special events and 
activities to kick off the holiday season.  A presentation will be given to share the details of these 
activities with members of City Council and the general public.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Not applicable. 
 
TIMING:   Action is requested at the November 21, 2017 meeting of Hopewell City Council.   
 
BACKGROUND:   Not applicable.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable.   
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   None.  
 
STAFF:   Aaron Reidmiller - Director, Recreation and Parks 
            
                            

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Brenda S. Pelham,  Ward #6    □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina  J .Luman-Bauiley, Ward #1 □ □ Councilor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5   

     □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 1.2015 
        

 
 
  



Holiday Events in 
Hopewell

Hopewell Recreation and Parks



Wonder City Ice Rink 
Grand Opening
Friday, December 1, 6:00-9:00 p.m.

 Regular Operating Hours:

 Fridays:  6-9 p.m.

 Saturdays:  5-10 p.m.

 Sundays: 2-6 p.m.

 Fees

 Child Day Pass:  $5

 Adult Day Pass:  $8

 Family Day Pass:  $20

 Seasonal Pass:  $40



Holiday Boat Parade
Saturday, December 2

6:00-8:00 p.m.

Hopewell City Marina

Free and open to the public

*Additional parking available at Weston Manor 
with shuttle service provided



Light Up the Night
Parade, Tree Lighting, Holiday Concerts, and Downtown Activities

4:00 p.m. Parade from Cavalier Square Shopping Center to Ashford Civic Plaza 
immediately followed by Christmas tree lighting

6:00 p.m. Downtown activities to include visits with Santa at the Beacon 
Theatre, performances by local school groups on the main stage, 
horse and carriage rides on Cawson Street, crafts, vendors, and 
more!



Additional Information

Hopewell Recreation and Parks

(804) 541-2353

customerservice@hopewellva.gov

Tabitha Martinez

Special Events Supervisor

tmartinez@hopewellva.gov

mailto:customerservice@hopewellva.gov


PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 

 



 
PH-1 

 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice-Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

     
  

  
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Hold a public hearing regarding a request submitted by  
Marjorie Gray to vacate a portion of an alley adjacent to Sub-Parcels 047-1345 and 047-1335 also 
identified as 1507 Miles Avenue and 2957 Courthouse Road. 
 
ISSUE:  The applicant is requesting the vacation of alley in order to add square footage to her property 
and to erect a fence. The adjacent property owners has no objections to the vacation.    
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Administration recommends City Council consider citizen comments 
regarding the request.  Staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the vacation request.   
 
TIMING:  The public hearing will be held on November 21, 2017.   
 
BACKGROUND: The Planning Commission made a recommendation to approve the alley vacation at 
their October 5, 2017 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Increase in real estate tax revenue from added taxable property. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    Staff Report 
     Map 

 
STAFF:          Tevya W. Griffin, Director of Development  

 



Vacation of a portion of Miles Avenue alley 
located between 1507 Miles Avenue and 2957 
Courthouse Road 

 
  
Staff Report prepared for the City Council Regular Meeting 
November 21, 2017   
 
Last Revised: November 14, 2017 

 
 

 

 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to provide 
information to the Planning Commission to assist them in making an informed decision on this 
matter. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
Planning Commission October 5, 2017 Recommended Approval  

 
City Council November 21, 2017 Pending 

 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 
Requested Zoning: N/A 

Existing Zoning: R-2, Residential Medium Density 

Size of Area:  Approximately 1306 square feet 

Proposed Use: Additional Land to add to existing lot with 
single family detached home 

Location of Property: 

                                                   

Portion of Alley located between 1507 Miles 
and 2957 Courthouse Road  

Election Ward: Ward 7 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: Residential 

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
Marjorie Gray is requesting the City vacate 1,306 square feet of an alley located between 
1507 Miles Avenue and 2957 Courthouse Road in order to add the square footage to her 
property for personal use.  



Page | 2  
 

 

IV. STAFF ANALYSIS:  
The owner of the property is requesting the vacation to replace a fence that has been 
located in the alley for many years.  The fence was removed due to the emergency 
replacement of a sewer lateral project this year.  Because the fence was illegally located 
in the alley it cannot be placed in the same location without a request to vacate the alley.  
There is one property adjacent to the portion of the alley in which the vacation is 
requested.  The adjacent property owner has no objections to the vacation.  They are not 
interested in gaining additional property through the vacation, therefore, if approved, the 
entire vacated area would be provided to the applicant.   

This vacation would cut off access to Miles Avenue but not Central Avenue.  

 

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Based on the above review comments, staff recommends denial of the request submitted 
for the vacation of the portion of the alley.  The sewer lateral that was replaced earlier 
this year is located within the alley.  Although temporary, building a fence within this 
area could lead to problems in the future.  
 
However, if City Council decides to approve the alley vacation an approved plat must be 
submitted and approved by the Department of Development and an easement, approved 
by the City Engineer, must be finalized.  

 
Note: During the Planning Commission meeting Development Staff recommended 
approval of the alley vacation.  After further consultation with staff from Public Works 
and Hopewell Water Renewal, Staff no longer recommends approval of the vacation.  
 

VII. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION: 
 

In accordance with City Council’s Right-of-way Vacation Policy, The Planning 
Commission, at their November 2, 2017 meeting, recommended approval of the request 
submitted by Marjorie Gray to vacate a portion of an alley, approximately 1,306 square 
feet located between 1507 Miles Avenue and 2957 Courthouse Road.  The Planning 
Commission made this decision because the adjacent property owner had no objections to 
the vacation and no other neighbors had objections to the alley vacation.  
 
 
Attachment(s): 
1. Application  
2. Aerial Map 







 
PH-2 

 



 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

       
  
  

 

  
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business 
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Hold a public hearing to consider citizen comments regarding a 
request to amend the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, Article XI-A, Corridor Development District (B-4) 
to allow self-service storage facilities, by Conditional Use Permit.  
 
ISSUE:  The City has received a request to amend the Zoning Ordinance to add a self-service storage 
facility, with a Conditional Use Permit, in the B-4 Zoning District. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends that City Council consider citizen 
comments regarding this matter.  
 
TIMING:   Hold a public hearing on November 21, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND:  The Planning Commission was briefed on the request at their September 2017 meeting. 
The Commission held a public hearing to consider citizen comments at their October 4, 2017 meeting.   The 
Commission voted to 5 to 0 to recommend approval of the Zoning Ordinance Amendment to the City 
Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Allow development of a self-service storage facility in the B-4 Zoning District.   
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    1. Application 

2. Amendment  
3. Staff Report  

      
STAFF:       Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of Development  
  

 



The City of 
Hopewell, Virginia 

300 N. Main Street  Hopewell Virginia 23860  (804) 541-2220  Fax: (804) 541-2318 

       
 
 
TO:    Hopewell City Council 
 
DATE:   November 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:   Amendment ARTICLE XI-A, Section A. of the City of Hopewell Zoning 

Ordinance to allow self-service storage facilities in the B-4, Corridor 
Development District.   

 
 
I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The City of Hopewell has received a Zoning Ordinance Amendment request from Amin Land 
Holdings, LLC to add self-service storage facilities, with a Conditional Use Permit, in the B-4, 
Corridor Development District.  Currently self-service storage facilities are allowed by right in 
the M-1, Limited Industrial District and M-2, Intensive Industrial District, and by Conditional 
Use Permit in the B-3, Highway Commercial District.  
 
 
II. PRESENT ZONING ORDINANCE PROVISIONS 
 
Presently, Article XI-A, Corridor Development District, Section A:  Use Regulations, of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance does not include self-service storage facilities as a permitted use. A list 
of uses permitted in the B-4 District has been included with this report.  The B-4 District allows 
such uses as carwashes, banks, laundry and dry cleaning, restaurants and convenience stores by 
right.  The intent of the B-4 District as defined in the Zoning Ordinance is as follows: 
 
“This district is intended to provide a special district for the Woodlawn/Oaklawn Corridor area 
which will allow and encourage a harmonious mixing of a variety of commercial, high density 
residential, office and professional uses and financial institutions.’ 
 
 
III. STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the request for Self-storage facilities to be allowed in the B-4 
Zoning District only by approval of a Conditional Use Permit.  This will allow each project to be 
reviewed by the Planning Commission and the City Council.   We recommend using the same 
standard conditions that are in place for self-storage facilities in the B-3 District. They are as 
follows: 

 
 

Department of Development 



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 
1. All self-service storage facilities in the B-4 District be fully enclosed. All operations, 

activities and storage shall be conducted within a completely enclosed building; 
2. The leasing office must have a brick façade; 
3. Commercial activities being run in and out of storage units shall be prohibited; 
4. Storage of feed, fertilizer, grain, soil conditioners, pesticides, chemicals, explosives and 

other hazardous materials, asphalt, brick, cement, gravel, rock, sand and similar 
construction materials, inoperable vehicles, or bulk storage of fuels shall be prohibited. 
The operator of the self-service storage facility shall include a provision to this effect in 
any lease used to rent the storage units;  

5. Self-service storage facilities may not be located on land abutting a residential district or 
use; 

6. Storage of boats, recreational vehicles, and motor vehicles shall be prohibited. This 
includes outside storage. The operator of the self-service storage facility shall include a 
provision to this effect in any lease used to rent the storage units;  

7. All building façades abutting public right-of-ways shall have a brick façade. 
 
While the City received this request from Amin Land Holdings, LLC, this request would affect 
all property in the zoned B-4.  If approved, the amendment does not grant Amin Land Holdings, 
LLC the right to construct the storage facility.  They are required to file a Conditional Use Permit 
application and follow the application process. 
While the City received this request from Amin Land Holdings, LLC, this request would affect 
all property in the zoned B-4.  If approved, the amendment does not grant Amin Land Holdings, 
LLC the right to construct the storage facility.  They are required to file a Conditional Use Permit 
application and follow the application process. 
 
 
IV. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 
 
The Hopewell Planning Commission voted 5 to 0 at their October 5, 2017 to recommend 
approval of the request for a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to amend Article XI-A, Corridor 
Development District, Section A., Use Regulations to allow self-service storage facilities by 
Conditional Use Permit.  
 
 
V.  CITY COUNCIL 
 
The City Council held a work session on October 24, 2017 to discuss the amendment with Staff 
prior to setting a public hearing for November 21, 2017.  
 
 
VI.  CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 
 
The Hopewell City Council votes to [approve, approve with conditions, deny] the request 
submitted by Amin Land Holdings, LLC to add self-service storage facilities, with a Conditional 
Use Permit, in the B-4, Corridor Development District, with the following base conditions: 
 

1. All self-service storage facilities in the B-4 District be fully enclosed. All operations, 
activities and storage shall be conducted within a completely enclosed building; 



3 | P a g e  
 

 

2. The leasing office must have a brick façade; 
3. Commercial activities being run in and out of storage units shall be prohibited; 
4. Storage of feed, fertilizer, grain, soil conditioners, pesticides, chemicals, explosives and 

other hazardous materials, asphalt, brick, cement, gravel, rock, sand and similar 
construction materials, inoperable vehicles, or bulk storage of fuels shall be prohibited. 
The operator of the self-service storage facility shall include a provision to this effect in 
any lease used to rent the storage units;  

5. Self-service storage facilities may not be located on land abutting a residential district or 
use; 

6. Storage of boats, recreational vehicles, and motor vehicles shall be prohibited. This 
includes outside storage. The operator of the self-service storage facility shall include a 
provision to this effect in any lease used to rent the storage units;  

7. All building façades abutting public right-of-ways shall have a brick façade. 
 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 
 
 

Article XI-A 
Corridor Development District (B-4) 

 

STATEMENT OF INTENT 
This district is intended to provide a special district for the Woodlawn/Oaklawn Corridor area 
which will allow and encourage a harmonious mixing of a variety of commercial, office and 
professional uses and financial institutions. 

 

A. USE REGULATIONS 
Structures to be erected and land to be used shall be for the following uses: 

1. Automobile and truck sales and service establishments and truck rental and agencies, 
provided that all vehicle lifts and pits, dismantled and wrecked automobiles, and all 
parts and supplies be located within a building enclosed on all sides; and provided 
that all service and repair of motor vehicles be conducted in a building enclosed on all 
sides. 

2. Automotive parts stores. 

3. Barber shops and beauty parlors. 

4. Bookstores. 

5. Car washes. 

6. Casual and formal wear stores. 

7. Churches. 

8. Cigarette, cigar and tobacco retail distributor. 

9. Commercial banks and financial institutions, not to include check cashing 
establishments. 

10. Contractors' establishments and display rooms, where business is conducted entirely 
within a completely enclosed building and where there is no storage of supplies or 
equipment outside the building. 

11. Convenience stores with gasoline. 

12. Convenience stores without gasoline. 

13. Craft Beer/Tap Room. 

14. Day nurseries and child care centers. 

15. Financial and tax preparation services. 

16. Fire stations and rescue squads. 

17. Florist. 

18. Grocery store. 



5 | P a g e  
 

 

 

19. Home furnishing store. 

20. Hotels and motels. 

21. Institutions of higher learning. 

22. Insurance agency. 

23. Laundry and dry cleaning. 

24. Medical and dental offices. 

25. Microbrewery/Restaurant. 

26. Municipal and private utilities. 

27. Night clubs and dance halls, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

28. Off street parking. 

29. Pet shops and supplies, excluding boarding kennels. 

30. Pharmacy. 

31. Plant nurseries and greenhouses. 

32. Post Offices. 

33. Printing shops. 

34. Radio or television broadcasting stations, studios, or offices. 

35. Real estate agency. 

36. Restaurants. 

37. Schools, special 

38. Self-Service Storage Facility, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City 
Council 

39. Service stations. 

40. Shoe repair. 

41. Single family dwellings, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council, with 
all area, lot width, and setback requirements set on a case-by-case basis by Council in 
the permit. 

42. Sports facilities, indoor. 

43. Sports facilities, outdoor, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

44. Sporting goods and hunting supplies. 

45. Tailor and seamstress. 

46. Tattoo parlor and body piercing establishments, with a Conditional Use Permit issued 
by City Council. 

47. Telecommunications towers or antenna for wireless transmission above the frequency 
of 20,000 Hertz (hz) with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

48. Theaters, motion pictures theaters, and assembly halls, but excluding drive-ins. 



6 | P a g e  
 

 

49. Veterinary hospitals and animal shelters. 

50. Video rental stores, not to include adult video establishments. 

51. Wine bar 

52. Winery/Restaurant  

 

B. AREA REGULATIONS 
1. For each building containing or intended to contain one (1) or more permitted use, 

there shall be a minimum lot area of twelve thousand (12,000) square feet. 

2. For each apartment on the second or subsequent floors of a commercial/office use, 
there shall be a minimum lot area of one thousand (1,000) square feet per dwelling 
unit. This is not in addition to the twelve thousand (12,000) square foot minimum lot 
area required above. 

3. For multi-family uses, there shall be a minimum lot area of twelve thousand (12,000) 
square feet and one dwelling unit shall be permitted for each one thousand (1,000) 
square feet of lot area. 

 

C. LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS 
The minimum lot width for permitted uses in this district shall be one hundred (100) feet. 

 

D. SETBACK REGULATIONS 
Structures shall be located at least forty (40) feet from any street or highway right-of-
way. 

 

E. YARD REGULATIONS 
1. Side: The minimum width of each side yard for a permitted use in this district shall be 

ten (10) feet. 

2. Rear: Each main structure shall have a rear yard of at least twenty five (25) feet. 

 

F. HEIGHT REGULATIONS 
Buildings may be erected up to seventy (70) feet from grade. 

 

G. SUPPLEMENTAL PARKING REGULATIONS 
Off-street parking spaces shall be in conformity with the requirements for specific uses as 
set forth in Article XVIII, however, no off-street parking or paved travel way shall be 
located within ten (10) feet of a right-of-way; no off-street parking shall be permitted 
within ten (10) feet of the sideline. 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

 

H. SCREENING 
At least thirty (30) feet of vegetation screening is required along the northern side of 
Virginia Street and the southern side of Poplar Street. Buffers shall be required to 
separate residential from all other uses. 

 

I. LANDSCAPING 
All non-residential uses, including parking lots where a front yard is provided, shall be 
landscaped. A landscaping plan is required to be submitted in conjunction with the Site 
Plan Requirements of Article XVI. 

 

J. REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTED USES 
Before a building permit shall be issued or construction commenced on any permitted use 
in this district, or a permit issued for a new use, all requirements of Article XVI, Site Plan 
Requirements, shall be met. 

 

K. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
Rear entrances for businesses will not be allowed along Virginia Avenue Street or along 
Poplar Street. 

 

L. CONVERSION OF USE IN B-4 DISTRICT 
In order for property to be converted from residential use to any other permitted use, all 
area, lot width, setback, yard, supplemental parking, screening, and landscaping 
requirements of the zoning district must be met. 

 
 





 

 

 



 



 
PH-3 

 



 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

       
  
  

 

  
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business 
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Public hearing to consider citizen comments regarding a request 
to amend a Conditional Use Permit to decrease the required size of a single family home from 1,200 to 
1,000 square feet.  
 
ISSUE:  The City has received an application to amend a previously approved Conditional Use Permit on 
property located at Sub-Parcel 047-0310.  The applicant requests the amendment of the condition that 
required the single family home be 1,200 square feet.  The Hopewell Zoning Ordinance requires the City 
Council approve a major amendment to a Conditional Use Permit.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends City Council consider citizen comments 
regarding the matter.  Staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the amendment to the 
Conditional Use Permit. 
 
TIMING:   A public hearing will be held on November 21, 2017.   
 
BACKGROUND:  The Conditional Use Permit to allow a 1,200 single family detached home be built at 
Sub-Parcel 047-0310 was approved in 2009.  The home has not been built.  The owner is requesting a 
decrease in the square footage of the proposed home in order to sell the lot to a builder.  The home will be 
marketed for sale for homeownership.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Real Estate Tax Revenue 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Staff Report  
       Map 
      
STAFF:       Tevya W. Griffin, Director of Development  
           

 







  Page 1 

Ronald Joswick 
1105 Miles Avenue 
Conditional Use Permit 
Staff Report prepared for the Hopewell City Council Regular 
Meeting 
 
Last Revised: November 15, 2017 

 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to the City Council to assist them in making an informed decision on 
this matter. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Planning Commission November 2, 2017  Recommended Approval 
City Council  November 21, 2017 Pending 

 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 
 

Requested Zoning: N/A 

Existing Zoning: R-2, Residential, Medium Density 

Acreage: 5,000 square feet 

Owner: Ronald T. Joswick 

Location of Property: 1105 Miles Avenue 

Election Ward: Ward 6 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: Residential 

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

Map Location(s): Lots 1-2, Block 13, Hopewell Terrace 

Zoning of Surrounding Property: North:  R-2 
South:  R-2  
East:    R-2  
West:   R-2 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The City of Hopewell has received a request from Ronald T. Joswick to amend a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in accordance with Article XXI., Amendment, Section D, 
Sub-section (k), Amendment of a Conditional Use Permit to decrease the square footage 
of a single family detached home from 1,200 to 1,000 square feet. The initial Conditional 
Use Permit was approved by the City Council in October 2009 for 1005 Miles Avenue 
also identified as Sub-Parcel # 047-0310. 



  Page 2 

IV. APPLICABLE CODE SECTIONS: 
The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance that are germane to this request for a Conditional 
Use Permit are the following: 

Article XXI., Amendment, Section D, Sub-section (k), Amendment of a Conditional Use 
Permit  
a.  Amendment of Conditional Use Permits 

  A request for an amendment shall include any enlargement, expansion, increase in 
intensity, relocation, or modification of any condition of a previously approved 
and currently valid conditional use. Amendments shall be processed as follows: 

1.  Non-Material and Insignificant (Minor) Modifications 

  An amendment that requires the following shall be considered a Minor 
Modification:   

  Shifts in on-site location, and changes in size or intensity of less than five percent 
(5%); or a five percent (5%) or less increase or decrease in either lot coverage or 
floor area over what was originally approved. 

  Minor Modifications may be authorized by the Director, provided that such minor 
changes comply with the following criteria: 

i. No previous minor modification has been granted pursuant to this Sub-
Section; 

ii. There will be no detrimental impact to or on any adjacent property caused 
by significant change in the appearance or the use of the property or any 
other contributing factor; 

iii. Nothing in the currently valid conditional use permit precludes or 
otherwise limits such expansion or enlargement; 

iv. The proposal conforms to the provisions of this Article and is in keeping 
with the spirit and intent of the adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Major Amendments 

 Any proposed amendment other than those provided for in Sub-Section k.1. above 
shall be considered a major amendment of a previously approved and currently 
valid conditional use and shall be considered according to the provisions outlined 
in Sub-Section a., b., c., and d. of this Section.  

 

V. SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
The subject property is located at the intersection of Miles Avenue and Boston Street. 
The property is approximately 7,056 square feet and has 57.5 feet of frontage along Miles 
Avenue.  It is zoned R-2, and is surround by R-2 zoned property to the north, south, east 
and west. 

VI. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
Article IV, Section I of the Zoning Ordinance allows a property owner with a non-
conforming lot of record in the R-2 zoning district to appeal to the City Council for 



  Page 3 

approval of a Conditional Use Permit to construct a single family dwelling on a non-
conforming lot consisting of less than 7,500 square feet but at least 5,000 square feet 
and/or less than 75 feet but at least 50 feet or more of frontage.   

City Council approved a conditional use permit for the following conditions at their 
October 13, 2009 meeting: 

1. The proposed single-family dwelling shall have a brick foundation on all four (4) 
sides. A brick foundation consists of foundation block from the block work to the 
first floor elevation with brick veneer. 

2. The proposed single-family dwelling shall have a brick porch. A brick porch 
includes the steps, treads, risers, floor and side veneer.  A brick porch consists of 
a concrete porch. The porch should be enclosed from the ground level to the 
finished floor elevation with block and brick enclosure.  

3. The proposed single-family dwelling shall be constructed with vinyl siding that 
resembles wood or wood siding.  

4. All accessory structures shall be located only in the rear yard. 

5. The proposed single-family dwelling shall have a minimum of 1,200 square feet 
of finished living area. 

6. Street facing building facades shall not have a section of blank wall exceeding 30 
linear feet without being interrupted by a window. 

7. The home must front on Boston Street; 

8. The driveway for the proposed home will have ingress and egress onto Boston 
Street; 

The applicant is requesting to amend Condition #5 from a minimum square footage of 
1,200 to 1,000.   The average square feet of homes surveyed in the immediate area is 
1,033.  The average number of bedrooms is three (3) and the average number of baths is 
one (1).   

Neighborhood Inventory Table 
 

Parcel ID # Square 
footage 
of home 

Exterior Façade # of 
Bedrooms 

# of Baths Zoning 

0470291 960 Wood siding 3 1 R-2 

0470320 1,244 Asbestos siding 3 1 R-2 

0470290 960 Masonite 3 1 R-2 

0470325 1,024 Wood siding 3 1 R-2 

0470565 980 Shingle wood 3 1 R-2 

AVERAGE 1,033  3 1  R-2 



  Page 4 

 

The applicant is requesting the amendment because he does not believe a 1,200 square 
foot home in this particular community would sell.  He believes a smaller home is 
compatible to other homes in the neighborhood.  

 

VII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Staff recommends approval of the request submitted by Ronald T. Joswick to amend 
a conditional use permit to reduce the square footage of the proposed single family 
dwelling from 1,200 to 1,000 square feet.  The applicant will perform all other conditions 
previously approved by City Council.  

VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION: 
In accordance with Article XVIII, Section G, of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, the 
Hopewell Planning Commission, at their November 2, 2017 meeting voted to recommend 
approval of the amendment to the request submitted by Ronald T. Joswick to amend a 
Conditional Use Permit to decrease the square feet of the single family detached dwelling 
by 200 square feet; from 1,200 to 1,000 at 1105 Miles Avenue, also identified as Sub-
Parcel # 047-0310.   
 
IX. CITY COUNCI RESOLUTION 
In accordance with Article XVIII, Section G, of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, the City 
Council votes to [approve, approve with conditions, deny] the request submitted by 
Ronald T. Joswick to amend a Conditional Use Permit to decrease the square feet of the 
single family detached dwelling by 200 square feet; from 1,200 to 1,000 at 1105 Miles 
Avenue, also identified as Sub-Parcel # 047-0310.   
 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Application for an amendment to a Conditional Use Permit 
2. Map of Area 

 



`

 

NORTH 

Location Map 
 

Ronald T. Joswick 
Conditional Use Permit 

 
Department of Development 

City of Hopewell, Virginia 

City aerial photography taken March 1, 2002.  ( N.T.S.) 

Base mapping by: City of Hopewell, Virginia HWGIS 

1105 Miles Avenue 

LEGEND 



 
PH-4 

 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

 
  

       
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Hold a public hearing to consider citizen comments 
regarding the demolition, acquisition or rehabilitation of properties in accordance with the City’s 
Spot Blight Ordinance.  
 
ISSUE: City Staff has reviewed six properties that qualify for demolition, rehabilitation, and/or 
acquisition through the Spot Blight Ordinance.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Administration recommends the City Council consider citizen 
comments and determine if the City should move forward to demolish, purchase or rehabilitate the 
structures.  
 
TIMING:   The public heairng will be held on November 21, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND:  The Spot Blight Ordinance was adopted September 9, 2014.  The approval of the 
Spot Blight Ordinance was an action identified in the City Council’s Strategic Plan.   The proposed list 
was gathered through past derelict building inventory, the vacant building registry, and citizen 
recommendation.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Improve property values in immediate neighborhood by removing blighted 
properties.  
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Spot Blight Program Ordinance 
      Background information on six structures 
      Recommendations for Acquisition and Rehabilitation Program 
             
STAFF:         Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Neighborhood Assistance & Planning 
             Robert Todd Hawkes, Building Official              

                 

 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

 
  

       
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Hold a public hearing to consider citizen comments 
regarding the demolition, acquisition or rehabilitation of properties in accordance with the City’s 
Spot Blight Ordinance.  
 
ISSUE: City Staff has reviewed six properties that qualify for demolition, rehabilitation, and/or 
acquisition through the Spot Blight Ordinance.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Administration recommends the City Council consider citizen 
comments and determine if the City should move forward to demolish, purchase or rehabilitate the 
structures.  
 
TIMING:   The public heairng will be held on November 21, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND:  The Spot Blight Ordinance was adopted September 9, 2014.  The approval of the 
Spot Blight Ordinance was an action identified in the City Council’s Strategic Plan.   The proposed list 
was gathered through past derelict building inventory, the vacant building registry, and citizen 
recommendation.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Improve property values in immediate neighborhood by removing blighted 
properties.  
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Spot Blight Program Ordinance 
      Background information on six structures 
      Recommendations for Acquisition and Rehabilitation Program 
             
STAFF:         Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Neighborhood Assistance & Planning 
             Robert Todd Hawkes, Building Official              

                 

 



         
Opportunities for Derelict Properties 

 
Summary 
At the request of City Council, staff has developed options for disposition of blighted property that avoids 
indiscriminate demolition. While doing so, we kept in mind the strategic plan and the value of increasing 
resident-ownership. About half of the cases of spot blight could be remedied by rehabilitation rather than 
demolition but the owners do not chose to do so. To rehabilitate when we don’t own the building seems 
short-sighted ad not fiscally responsible. In order to consider rehabilitating a building in a responsible 
manner, the city must have some control of the property. There are several approaches to achieve this 
goal. Once achieved, could engage in a series of offers that would attract resident-owners, decrease rental 
properties, enhance tax revenues and improve infrastructure.  
 
Taking or Gifting 
Taking of a real property in Virginia must generally be for the purpose of public, not private use. An easy 
but lengthy method to transfer ownership for real property is through a tax sale as a result of failure to pay 
taxes. In many cases, owners of a derelict structure fail to pay taxes in a timely manner. When this 
happens, the City can lien the property for unpaid taxes, but even after an owner defaults on taxes a City 
must wait 5 years to be able to sell the property for taxes or 3 years if it has been declared a nuisance and 
is valued less than $50,000 (Section 58.1-3965). So, while the City may not seek to take a property 
directly, personal fines for public nuisances could escalate beyond the value of the property.  And, with 
enough economic incentive, an owner may be encouraged to grant a property to the City for private use or 
benefit. 

A) Grand Jury Determination of a Nuisance: Code of Virginia Sections 48-1 – 48-6: 
a. § 48-1. Investigation of complaint by special grand jury. When complaint is made to the circuit court of any county, or the 

corporation court of any city of this Commonwealth, by five or more citizens of any county, city or town, setting forth the 
existence of a public or common nuisance, the court, or the judge thereof in vacation, shall summon a special grand jury, 
in the mode provided by law, to the next term of such court, to specially investigate such complaint. 

b. § 48-2. Presentment against person causing nuisance. If upon a full investigation of the complaint mentioned in § 48-1 the 
grand jury is satisfied that the nuisance complained of is of a public nature, it shall proceed to make presentment against 
such person or persons as they may find have created or caused such nuisance. 

c. These sections offer an opportunity to assess a fine of $10,000 to the person creating or permitting the nuisance.  
B) Repeated property maintenance violations and repeated illegal dumping cases result in severe fine 

that can be assessed onto property and as a lien against the property.  
 
Transfer of Ownership for Residential Property with improvements 

If the City had control of a residential dwelling unit type property, it could transfer ownership to a 
new resident owner who would maintain it in a responsible manner, restoring it to tax rolls in one of the 
following manners: 

1. Give the real property and improvements in as-is condition directly to a family who agrees to live in home for up to five years and 
make all the necessary repairs within a certain amount of time. 

2. Give the real property and improvements to a foundation or trust that will transfer ownership to a family who agrees to live in home 
for up to five years and make all the necessary repairs within a certain amount of time. 

3. Give the real property and improvements to the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority that will transfer ownership to a 
family who agrees to live in home for up to five years and make all the necessary repairs within a certain amount of time. 

300 North Main Street *Hopewell, VA 23860 * Building Inspections/Code Enforcement  
(804) 541-2226 * Fax (804) 541-2318 
 

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/48-1/


 
Transfer of Ownership for Residential Property without improvements 

If the City had control of a residential dwelling property without improvements, it could transfer 
ownership to a new developer who would build according to the City of Hopewell Neighborhood 
standards for profit, restoring it to tax rolls. 
 
Transfer of Ownership for Commercial Property with or without improvements  

If the City had control of a commercial property with or without improvements, it could transfer 
ownership to a new developer who would agree to build a building or restore an existing building with a 
specific type of use that is advantageous to the neighborhood and in a responsible manner, restoring it to 
tax roles in one of the following manners: 

Give the real property (with or without improvements) in as-is condition directly to a developer who agrees to build or redevelop a 
specific type of building or use within City of Hopewell architectural standards. Selection of the developer would be through 
competitive selection process by City Council with recommendation by staff.  

 
Other Options to hasten resolution of derelict structures 

A) Advertising a list of derelict properties on which the City has taken action. The list would be in 
regional papers and for the intent of reaching developers who would seek to purchase from the 
owners and then redevelop and sell for profit.  
 

B) Aggressive Police action and Broken Glass Policing. Although minor compared to essential 
Police duties, a broken window or glass is the first sign of a future derelict building. If Police can 
initiate cases for every broken glass in a building, Property Maintenance can begin action to 
control conditions earlier. Most cases of spot blight had their first case of broken glass many 
years ago. 

C) Higher taxation for vacant buildings or vacant property. Tax incentives would encourage 
occupancy of buildings instead of leaving them vacant. 

 



SPOT BLIGHT
• ORDINANCE 2014-14, Adopted September 2015
• Between FY2014 and FY2016 City spent $271, 741

– To demolish buildings, board buildings, and provide
protective fencing

● Since implementation of dividing City into 4 quadrants and
the vacant building registry the Department now more easily
recognizes spot blight cases.

● A blighted property means any property that endangers the
public health or safety in its condition at the time of filing of
the petition for condemnation and is (i) a public nuisance or
(ii) improvement that is beyond repair or unfit for human
occupancy or use. (Code of Virginia)



• Public Safety- Does the building represent a potential 
danger to occupants or the public?

• Structural integrity - Is the building in jeopardy due to 
structural issues?

• Fire hazard - Does the building represent a fire hazard 
to surrounding buildings?

• Context - Where the building is located in proximity 
to a neighborhood. Is the building an eyesore?

• Attractive Nuisance - Is the building open and 
accessible and does it attract an illicit activity?

• General Appearance - The general appearance of the 
building and its surrounding appurtenances. 

Objective Score: Cumulative score (6-60)

SCORING
CRITERIA

The team that conducted the 
evaluation included:

1. Office of the City Manager
2. Director of Development 

Department
3. Fire Official
4. Building Official
5. Building Inspection staff       

(as selected)
6. City Planner



Spot Abatement Plan Public Hearing Cases  
Property 
Address Vacant

Public 
Hazard Boarded

Certified 
Notice Sent

Date of 
Notice #1

Date of 
Notice #2 Disposition Recommendation

3505 Sussex 
Drive    10.26.16

-SPOT BLIGHT CASE BEFORE 
CITY COUNCIL 4.4.17 Rehabilitation

311 Cedar 
Lane     10.26.16

-SPOT BLIGHT CASES BEFORE 
CITY COUNCIL 4.4.17

-PUBLIC HEARING 11.21.17 Rehabilitation

3925 
Courthouse 

Road    10.26.16

-SPOT BLIGHT CASES BEFORE 
CITY COUNCIL 4.4.17

-PUBLIC HEARING 11.21.17 Demolition

1304 Arlington 
Road



  9.12.16 11.29.16

-SPOT BLIGHT CASE 
BEFORE CITY COUNCIL 

4.4.17
-PUBLIC HEARING

11.21.17 Demolition

2313 Dellrose     9.12.16

-SPOT BLIGHT CASE 
BEFORE CITY COUNCIL 

4.4.17
-No response from owner

-PUBLIC HEARING 
11.21.17 Demolition

422 E 
Poythress    4.05.17

Owner responded 5.1.17 
stating structure would be 
demolished. -Demolition 

has not yet occurred. 
PUBLIC HEARING 11.21.17

Demoltion



Spot Blight Scoring

• 3505 Sussex
• Letter 10.26.2016

Average 36.5

Recommend 
Rehabilitation



Spot Blight Scoring

• 311 Cedar
• Letter #1 10.26.2016

Average 32.5

Recommend Rehabilitation



Spot Blight Scoring

• 3925 
Courthouse
• Letter #1  10.26.2016

Average 40.6

Recommend 
Demolition



Spot Blight Scoring

• 1304 Arlington
• Letter #1 9.12.16
• Letter 11.29.16

Average 45.5

Recommend Demolition



Spot Blight Scoring

• 2313 
Dellrose
• Letter #1  7.12.2016

Average 40.8

Recommend Demolition



Spot Blight Scoring

• 422 East 
Poythress
• Letter #1 Sent 4.5.17

Recommend Demolition



Current Spot Blight List
Property 
Address Vacant

Public 
Hazard Boarded Notice Sent Letter 1 Letter 2 Disposition

1811 
Dinwiddie 

Drive    11.9.2016

SPOT BLIGHT CASES BEFORE CITY 
COUNCIL 4.4.17

-PURCHASED BY DEVELOPER. 
AWAITING DISCONNECTION OF 

UTILITIES BY VA DOMINION POWER. 
STRUCTURES WILL BE DEMOLISHED

623 Atwater 
Road    11.15.2016 DEMOLISHED BY OWNER

2400 Oaklawn
Boulevard    11.15.2016

SPOT BLIGHT CASES BEFORE CITY 
COUNCIL 4.4.17

-08.15.17 BOARD OF ZONING 
APPEALS DENIED REQUEST TO 

REHABILITATE. 
-REMOVED FROM THE CITY IN 

NOVEMBER 2017

425 East
Broadway   10.31.16

PURCHASED FROM BANK. NOW 
UNDER NEW OWNERSHIP. 
CURRENTLY UNDERGOING 
INTERIOR RENOVATIONS. 

435 East  
Broadway   10.31.16

PURCHASED FROM BANK. NOW 
UNDER NEW OWNERSHIP. 
CURRENTLY UNDERGOING 
INTERIOR RENOVATIONS. 

625 East 
Broadway   10.31.16

PURCHASED FROM BANK. NOW 
UNDER NEW OWNERSHIP. 
CURRENTLY UNDERGOING 
INTERIOR RENOVATIONS. 

408 East
Cawson   10.31.16

PURCHASED FROM BANK. NOW 
UNDER NEW OWNERSHIP. 
CURRENTLY UNDERGOING 
INTERIOR RENOVATIONS. 



Current Spot Blight List
Property 
Address Vacant Public Hazard Boarded Notice Sent Letter 1 Letter 2 Disposition

2110 Freeman    3.6.2017

Letter sent 
3.6.17; Owner 

responded 
4.3.17

2304 Boston    3.6.2017

No Improvement 
to property. No 
response from 

owner. 

406 N 12th    4.4.2017

The owner is 
rehabilitating the 

interior 

2330 Dellrose    10.26.16

SPOT BLIGHT 
CASES BEFORE CITY 

COUNCIL 4.4.17
Property sold to 

new owner. Work 
was conducted 

without permits. 
City has contacted 
owner.  Work has 

stopped.  
Contractors must 
apply for permits.

1710 Danville    10.26.2016

SPOT BLIGHT 
CASES BEFORE CITY 

COUNCIL 4.4.17

108 North 3rd

Avenue   4.5.17

No Improvement 
to property. No 
response from 

owner. 



Current spot blight list
Property 
Address Vacant Public Hazard Boarded Notice Sent Letter 1 Letter 2 Disposition

2110 Freeman    3.6.17

Owner 
responded 

4.3.17

2304 Boston    3.6.17

No Improvement 
to property. No 
response from 

owner.

406 North 12th    4.4.17

No Improvement 
to property. No 
response from 

owner.

108 North 3rd    4.5.17

No Improvement 
to property. No 
response from 

owner.

501 Sherman    4.11.17

Rehabilitation
work started 

07.17
-Staff continues 
to monitor work 

not complete



Current Spot Blight List
Property Address Vacant Public Hazard Boarded Notice Sent Letter 1 Letter 2 Disposition

1207 High  

Placed on list 
11.17. Certified 
Letter needs to 

be sent. 

2002 Stewart    05.08.17

No Improvement 
to property. No 
response from 

owner.

308 Davis    02.09.15

Owner is 
conducting

interior 
renovations

2904 Winston 
Churchill Drive    04.11.17

No improvement
to property. No 
response from 

owner. 



Current Spot Blight List
Property Address Vacant Public Hazard Boarded Notice Sent Letter 1 Letter 2 Disposition

2115 Trenton   04.12.17

No Improvement 
to property. No 
response from 

owner.

1113 Delaware 

2408 Waverly    11.09.16

Owner agreed to 
fix by 4.10.17.

Work is not yet 
complete

801 Winston 
Churchill     11.15.16

04.12.17
Legal council for 

new owners 
contacted the City. 

Plans are to 
demolish or rehab 

the building. 
Awaiting title 
issues to be 

resolved. 



 

CLOSED 
MEETING 

 



 

ADJOURN 

 
 


	ADPD44A.tmp
	CITY OF HOPEWELL
	AGENDA
	Communications from Citizens
	Reports of the City Clerk:

	ADP44BE.tmp
	Proposed 2018 General assembly legislative priorities��
	Machinery & tools
	Funding for k-12 
	state aid to Local Police Department
	state mandates 
	Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits
	Charter change
	State assessment for k-12 schools
	High poverty school districts
	Chesapeake bay foundation
	Water Quality Improvement Fund 
	Virginia First Cities Coalition DRAFT 2018 Legislative Agenda 
	Virginia Municipal League 2017 Legislative Program 

	ADPE666.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP2452.tmp
	Police �Recruitment & Retention 
	Issues
	Pay Comparison
	Pay Comparison
	Proposed Salary Pay Grade/Adjustments 
	Fiscal Impact (Estimated)
	Benefits of Salary Adjustments

	ADP8655.tmp
	FY 17-22

	ADPA5D9.tmp
	BUDGET AMENDMENT RESOLUTION
	FISCAL YEAR 2018
	UHopewell Water Renewal Fund - 032:
	UResources:

	ADPE8D4.tmp
	Holiday Events in Hopewell
	Wonder City Ice Rink �Grand Opening
	Holiday Boat Parade
	Light Up the Night
	Additional Information	

	ADP79CF.tmp
	Staff Report prepared for the City Council Regular Meeting Regular Meeting- November 21, 2017
	Last Revised: November 14, 2017, 2017

	ADP92CF.tmp
	Staff Report prepared for the City Council Regular Meeting November 21, 2017
	Last Revised: November 14, 2017

	ADP6F89.tmp
	Staff Report prepared for the City Council Regular Meeting November 21, 2017
	Last Revised: November 14, 2017

	ADPD300.tmp
	Ronald Joswick
	1105 Miles Avenue
	Conditional Use Permit
	Staff Report prepared for the Hopewell City Council Regular Meeting

	ADPA1E5.tmp
	300 N. Main Street ( Hopewell Virginia 23860 ( (804) 541-2220 ( Fax: (804) 541-2318

	ADPFD70.tmp
	Ronald Joswick
	1105 Miles Avenue
	Conditional Use Permit
	Staff Report prepared for the Hopewell City Council Regular Meeting

	ADP8FC8.tmp
	a. § 48-1. Investigation of complaint by special grand jury. When complaint is made to the circuit court of any county, or the corporation court of any city of this Commonwealth, by five or more citizens of any county, city or town, setting forth the ...
	b. § 48-2. Presentment against person causing nuisance. If upon a full investigation of the complaint mentioned in § 29TU48-1U29T the grand jury is satisfied that the nuisance complained of is of a public nature, it shall proceed to make presentment a...

	ADPB40.tmp
	SPOT BLIGHT
	Slide Number 2
	Spot Abatement Plan Public Hearing Cases  
	Spot Blight Scoring
	Spot Blight Scoring
	Spot Blight Scoring
	Spot Blight Scoring
	Spot Blight Scoring
	Spot Blight Scoring
	Current Spot Blight List
	Current Spot Blight List
	Current spot blight list
	Current Spot Blight List
	Current Spot Blight List




